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Key indicators

FINANCIAL INDICATORS FOR THE GROUP IN 2011*
REVENUE

ADJUSTED EBITDA

CAPEX

NET DEBT

39.7

5.2

10.8

11.9

billion rubles

billion rubles

billion rubles

billion rubles

FINANCIAL INDICATORS BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS*
SUGAR BUSINESS

MEAT BUSINESS

AGRICULTURE BUSINESS

OIL & FATS BUSINESS

25.6 billion rubles

5.4 billion rubles

6.7 billion rubles

6.8 billion rubles

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

1.4 billion rubles

2.3 billion rubles

1.9 billion rubles

0.6 billion rubles

EBITDA

EBITDA

EBITDA

EBITDA

PRODUCTION INDICATORS BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS*

* Operating data and
certain financial
information used in this
Annual Report are based
on management
accounting data which
is subject to the
management judgment
and presentation.
The financial information
presented in a number of
tables in this document
has been rounded to the
nearest whole number or
the nearest decimal place.
Therefore, the sum of the
numbers in a column may
not conform exactly to
the total figure given for
that column. In addition,
certain percentages
presented in the tables
and charts in this
document reflect
calculations based upon
the underlying
information prior to
rounding, and,
accordingly, may not
conform exactly to the
percentages that would
be derived if the relevant
calculations were based
upon the rounded
numbers.

SUGAR BUSINESS

MEAT BUSINESS

AGRICULTURE BUSINESS

OIL & FATS BUSINESS

Production in 2011

Produced in 2011

Harvested in 2011

Produced in 2011

627,000 tonnes

63,500 tonnes

2.3 mln. tonnes

67,000 tonnes

of raw sugar

of pork

of beet sugar

of vegetable oil

462,000 tonnes

233,500 tonnes

72,000 tonnes

57,000 tonnes

of beet sugar

of fodder

of sunflower seed

of mayonnaise

497,000 tonnes

35,000 tonnes

of grain

of margarine

MAYONNAISE PRODUCTION

MARGARINE PRODUCTION

5th place
7% share

1st place
32% share

MARKET POSITION*
CUBED SUGAR

PORK PRODUCTION

PRODUCTION

1st place
5 th place
30% share 3% share

The Group holds a leading position for all four
segments. RUSAGRO is the largest importer and
processor of raw sugar and is Russia’s second
largest manufacturer of sugar and largest
manufacturer of sugar cubes. In the meat segment,
the Group is Russia’s fifth largest pork producer, in
oil and fats – it is the number one manufacturer of
packed (B2C) margarine, the fifth largest producer
of mayonnaise and seventh largest manufacturer
of oil. RUSAGRO also exports oils and fats to the
Central Asia, where it holds a leading position on
the market.
Here and further in the text the Group and RUSAGRO Group
or RUSAGRO implies the Company (ROS AGRO PLC) and its
subsidiaries.
1

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report was written using the information available to
ROS AGRO PLC and its subsidiaries at the time of its preparation. Some of
thestatements in this Annual Report regarding the Group's business activities,
economic indicators, financial position,business and operating performance,
plans, projects and expected results, as well as tariff trends, costs,
anticipatedexpenses, development prospects, industry and market forecasts,
individual projects and other factors are forward-looking statements, i.e.
they are not established facts. The forward-looking statements which the
Group maymake from time to time (but which are not included in this
document) may also contain planned or expected dataon revenue, profits
(losses), dividends and other financial indicators and ratios. The words
«intends», «aims», «projects»,«expects», «estimates», «plans», “believes»,
«assumes»,«may», «should», «will», «will continue» and similar
expressionsusually indicate forward-looking statements. However, this isnot
the only way to denote the forward-looking character ofinformation.
Due to their specific nature, forward-looking statements areassociated with
inherent risk and uncertainty, both generaland specific, and there is the
danger that assumptions,forecasts and other forward-looking statements will
notactually come to pass. In light of these risks, uncertaintiesand
assumptions, the Group cautions that, owing to the influence of a wide range
of material factors, actual resultsmay differ from those indicated, directly or
indirectly, in the forward-looking statements, which are only valid as atthe
time of preparation of this Annual Report. ROS AGRO PLC neither affirms
nor guarantees that the performance resultsset forth in the forward-looking
statements will be achieved.
The Group accepts no liability for losses which may beincurred by individuals
or legal entities who act on the basis of the forward-looking statements. In
each particularcase, the forward-looking statements represent only one of
many possible development scenarios, and should not beseen as the most
probable. Except in those cases directly stipulated by applicable legislation
and the Listing Rules ofthe UK Listing Authority, the Group assumes no
obligation to publish updates and amendments to the forwardlookingstatements to reflect new information or subsequent events.
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RUSAGRO Group1 is one of Russia’s largest
vertically-integrated agricultural holding
companies. The companies within the Group work
in four core businesses: sugar (7 sugar plants in
Belgorod and Tambov regions), meat (2 large pork
complexes in Belgorod and Tambov regions),
agriculture (extensive land resources, controlled by
the Group, in Belgorod, Voronezh and Tambov
regions, which are used to grow sugar beet,
sunflower seeds and different grain crops) and oils
and fats (oil extraction plant in Samara region and a
fats factory in Yekaterinburg).
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Letter from the chairman
of the board

We have made excellent progress
against our strategic objectives
The Board is pleased with both the progress and
performance of ROS AGRO over the last year. We
have delivered growth in all business areas: our Sugar
division delivered record refining volumes; our Oil
extraction facility in Samara has been successfully
integrated and is already operating at design capacity
and our Agriculture division delivered record harvests
of sugar beet and sunflower.
We have also made excellent progress against our
strategic objectives as we aim to strengthen our
market position in all segments where we compete.
Our major construction projects in Tambov and
Belgorod are progressing on track to more than treble
our pork capacity to over 200,000 tonnes, by 2014.
Our land holdings, in the same regions, have expanded
to over 424 ,000 hectares and operating efficiencies at
our sugar mills remain best in class.
Richard SMYTH,
Chairman of the Board
of Directors ROS AGRO PLC

In terms of financial performance, we are pleased with
our sales growth of 28% to 39.7 billion rubles with
growth achieved across all business segments. The
decline of adjusted EBITDA by 35% was disappointing,
although this reflects sugar pricing levels in the end of
raw cane sugar period and in the final quarter, rather
than any fundamental structural issues. Indeed,
operating efficiencies and yields improved in all
segments. The Board of Directors does not
recommend the payment of a dividend and the net
profit for the year is retained.
One of the highlights of the year was our entry into
international equity markets. Our initial public offering
on the LSE, in April 2011, raised $300 million to
support our long-term investment plans. The market
capitalisation of ROS AGRO, at this time, was $1.8
billion, with a free float of 20.8%. The proceeds from
the offering are being used to fund land bank
expansion, construction of major pig farming projects
in Tambov and Belgorod as well as equipment
modernization. The fundamental drivers of limited
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agricultural land and consistent population growth will
remain and we strongly believe that these investment
projects will, ultimately, create significant, long-term
shareholder value.
Our Board has focused on embedding the principles of
the UK Governance Code into our operating practices
and behaviours. As a relatively new Board, we have
been establishing discipline in the core processes by
which we govern our operations. In November 2011,
Marcus Rhodes left our Board to pursue other
commitments and I would like to thank him for his
contribution during this transitional period of our
history and, in particular, for his leadership of the Audit
Committee. Tassos Televantides has just been
appointed to our Board as Audit Committee Chair and
I would like to both welcome him and wish him every
success in his new role.
When considering our outlook, it is important to
mention Russian accession to the WTO. Overall, we
believe this long-awaited event will be positive for

ROS AGRO. Firstly, we assume that current
Government support levels will be more or less
maintained, in those specific sectors where we
benefit and, secondly, that increased competition will
accelerate further market consolidation. As a cost
leader, with further modernization plans and a proven
integrated business model, we foresee WTO
accession leading to a strengthening of our market
position.
Additionally, feeding the world remains one of the
greatest challenges of the 21st century. The world’s
population has reached 7 billion this year and food
production levels are predicted to need to rise 70% by
2050. Russia is uniquely placed as both the largest
resource of under-utilised land together with the
highest quality of available land. At ROS AGRO, we
believe our integrated business model, technical and
operational competences, investment capability and
talent, leave us well placed to capitalize on these
growth opportunities and create significant long term
value for our shareholders.

We have delivered growth
in all business areas
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Letter from the director

2011 was a year
of production records
We present the 2011 annual report for
ROS AGRO PLC. This is our first annual report as a
public company and we can observe that the company
continues to successfully implement its development
program.
We are pleased with the operating indicators achieved
but the past year has not been without its difficulties.
Overall, 2011 was a year of production records,
returning to the vegetable oil production business and
record price volatility.
Development of all four business areas demonstrates
the solid base we have built for further achievement of
better production and financial results.

Maksim Dmitrievich BASOV,
Director ROS AGRO PLC
General Director LLC RUSAGRO Group

Production at our seven sugar plants in 2011 reached
627,000 tonnes of raw sugar and 462,000 tonnes of
beet sugar, up 31% and 113%, respectively, on the
previous year. We are a leading player in the Russian
sugar market with a market share of approximately
16%. The company is a leader in the processing of raw
sugar and in 2011 processed 26% of total imports. Our
advantageous vertically integrated business model
allowed us to source at least half of the required sugar
beet from our own agriculture division. Modernization
of our production facilities in 2011 resulted in a 13%
increase in the total sugar beet processing capacity (to
34,350 tonnes per day), while the production capacities
of packaged and cubed sugar (the most attractive
market segment) increased by 33 % (to 115,000 tonnes
per year). In 2011 the National Trade Association
awarded our Russkii Sakhar brand a “Product of the
Year” title (within the sugar category). We have ended
the year with all-time highest beet sugar reserves which
will allow us to achieve record-high beet sugar sales in
2012. For 12 months 2011, total sales in the sugar
segment reached 25.6 billion rubles with adjusted
EBITDA amounting to 1.4 billion rubles.
In the meat business we produced and sold record high
volumes for our company, obtained solid financial

Letter from the director
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results and continued to build new pork complexes in
Tambov and Belgorod regions, which will enable us to
triple pork production over the next two years. We are
pleased that this result was achieved not only due to
high meat prices on the Russian market but also due to
high technological performance in the business. The
company became involved in the meat business six
years ago and it has become the direction with the
highest profit. The meat business can maintain this
position further with the 8 billion roubles in investment
that we plan to make in 2012. We should note that
biological safety is of the utmost importance to us in
the meat segment – we continue to maintain the
highest standards of biological safety in the production
of pork in order to ensure healthy animals and top
quality meat. Sales revenue in this segment was 5.4
billion rubles and adjusted EBITDA – 2.3 billion rubles.
Summing up the results of the agriculture division, we
should note that in 2011 there were record harvests
for sugar beet (100% of which is processed at our own
plants), sunflower and grain; there was also record
crop yield for sugar beet and sunflower. The company
harvested 2,300 thousand tonnes of sugar beet
(151% up on the previous year), 72,000 tonnes of
sunflower seed (47% up on the previous year)and
497,000 tonnes of grain (wheat, barley and peas).
Crop yield for sugar beet was 35,2 tonnes per hectare
(in goal-weight) and 2.3 tonnes per hectare for
sunflower seeds; thus, there were increases of 116%
and 64%, respectively. These results were achieved
thanks to good weather conditions and the use of
modern agricultural technology. We also increased our
land resources to 424,000 hectares. Sales revenue in
this segment was 6.7 billion rubles, and adjusted
EBITDA – 1.9 billion rubles.
In the oil and fats segment we maintained our position
as the largest manufacturer of packaged margarine
with a share of approximately 32% and as the fifth
largest manufacturer of mayonnaise with a 7% share.
The high quality of our products ensures the popularity

of our brands both in Russia and abroad. Exports
increased 11% year-on-year in 2011; the geography
of sales is constantly expanding. The company
produced 57,000 tonnes of mayonnaise and 35,000
tonnes of margarine in 2011. The oil and fats division
expanded in 2011 through the acquisition in March of
an oil extraction plant in Samara region. The plant
reached projected capacity in October and production
in 2011 totalled 68,000 tonnes. Sales revenue in this
segment was 6.8 billion rubles, and adjusted EBITDA –
0.6 billion rubles.
The RUSAGRO Group constantly invests in production
development in all its business segments. Capital
expenditure in 2011 was 10.8 billion rubles.
The Company achieved positive financial results.
Consolidated revenue in 2011 increased28 % to reach
39.7 billion rubles. Adjusted EBITDA was 5.2 billion
rubles, and net profit – 2.4 billion rubles.
We will adhere to the established strategy in each of
our business directions and are confident in the
potential of the Russian food market for our company.
This is a huge fast-growing market and currently it is
not sufficiently consolidated so there are opportunities
in Russia for the most ambitious goals in terms of the
rate and scale of growth on the food market. The
strategy we have chosen of vertical integration,
collaboration between business segments and cluster
locations for production assets enables us to
confidently speak about the potential for further
company development and growth.
We have a professional qualified team with wide
ranging expertise and skills to enable the realization of
short-term plans and long-term targets. We highly
value our employees whose responsible attitude to
work is indispensable for the success of the company.
Overall we strengthened our positions in 2011, thus
ensuring successful future development for ROS AGRO.
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Management report

Responsibility statement
I confirm that to the best of my knowledge this
management report gives a true and fair view of the
development, results and position of the Company and
its subsidiaries (RUSAGRO Group).
Maksim Dmitrievich Basov

2004 – 2005 Establishment of the RUSAGRO
Group
The holding company is incorporated.
The oil and fats division of the Group expands its
presence on the market, acquiring assets in Voronezh
region and Krasnodar territory.

Director ROS AGRO PLC

Land bank expansion in Belgorod region.

History
The story of one of the largest vertically-integrated
agriculture industry holding companies in Russia and
the CIS began in 1995 with sugar import operations
and later import and processing of raw sugar cane in
Russia. Soon the holding began to take shape, which
can be divided into the following key stages:
1997 – 2003 Asset acquisitions
The Group acquires its first sugar plants in Belgorod
region to maximise sugar trading profits.
In order to supply sugar plants with sugarbeet, the Group
launches its own agriculture project in Belgorod region.
Land resources configuration provides for efficient
sugarbeet transport logistics – the distance from the field
to the plant does not exceed 60 kilometres.
Building an integrated vertical for agriculture
production, the Group acquires elevators to provide
storage for its own grain and for trade transactions.
The Company expands into the production of
vegetable oil and oil and fats production, which will
later become a separate oil and fats division.
The company focuses on expanding its presence on
the Russian sugar market and launches its first retail
brand in 2003.

The Group optimizes its investment portfolio by selling
grain trading and elevators that were not associated with
the production and storage of the company’s own grain.
2006 – 2007 Consolidation and expansion
The Group focuses on the sugar and agriculture
businesses and decides to sell oil and fats assets in the
south and centre of Russia.
The Group invests the money raised into expanding
land bank, the main aim of which is to provide
sugarbeet – the most profitable crop – to the Group’s
sugar plants in Belgorod and Tambov regions.
A project to build a modern pig breeding complex was
launched on the company’s own lands in Belgorod
region.
2008 – To date Stage of growth and attaining
leadership on key markets
After acquiring two of the largest sugar plants in
Russia, the Group becomes a leading sugar
manufacturer in the country and one of the retail
brand leaders.
The pig breeding complex in Belgorod region is
completed and reaches projected capacity and
construction of a new complex begins in Tambov region.
The Group continues to expand its land bank and at
the same time increases its crop yield by using modern
equipment and technology.

Management Report

Sugar
Business

August

October

December

Sugar beet processing
capacity of the Group’s
plants expanded

The National Trade
Association awarded the
Russkii Sakhar brand a
“Product of the Year” title in
the sugar category

Sugar plants storage
capacity increased in 2011

13% to reach a total of

34,350

Meat
Business

169,000

tonnes

tonnes daily

Nikolai Alexandrovich
Zhirnov appointed head of
the sugar division

March

October

December

The construction of the
Tambovskiy Bacon pig
breeding complex facilities
started in accordance with
the schedule for 2011

The first breeding animals
arrive to the new Shidlovskiy
complex in Belgorod region
(projected capacity

A large share of
the construction work
is completed at the
Shidlovskiy pork
complex

13,400
tonnes per year)

August

Agriculture Record grain harvest – over
Business
497,000

THE FIRST PART
OF THE COMPLEX
IN TAMBOV IS BUILT
AND HOUSED WITH
ANIMALS

October

December

RECORD SUNFLOWER
HARVEST

RECORD SUGARBEET
HARVEST

tonnes

Oil & Fats
Business

by

March

October

RUSAGRO Group acquires
oil extraction plant in
Samara region

Samara region plant
reached projected
capacity of

1,050

tonnes of sunflower daily
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The Company carries out initial public offering
on the London Stock Exchange and raises around
$300 million for investment projects
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Strategy
The Group is adhering to a two-tier development
strategy aimed for the long term to improve operating
and corporate efficiency.
The Group considers one of the conditions required to
ensure operating efficiency and increased
competitiveness is the adoption of measures to reduce
expenditures.
In all business segments we strive to achieve cost
leadership through a combination of factors:
introduction and extensive use of the latest
technological advances, application of the most
advanced technology and market practices,
optimization of logistical and storage operations.
We also believe that the success of the Group on the
market is due to efficient staff policy, aimed at
motivating employee and all-round development of
staff. Due to our partnership with famous foreign
specialists, our employees are aware of innovative
developments in their area, are constantly improving
their qualification and also have traineeship in the best
foreign companies.

The Group’s corporate strategy aims to expand our
presence in all key markets by increasing
competitiveness and ensuring the relevant growth in
market share. We consider the B2C market to be a very
high potential direction and plan to expand the
number and popularity of our brands.
The vertically-integrated structure of the Group allows
the best use of the advantages provided by
diversification. First and foremost these are financial
stability and the synergy effect. There are strong
economic ties between our business divisions. This
enables optimum use of resources, reduced logistics
and other expenditures and the most efficient solution
to the task of procuring raw resources and selling
finished products.
On the basis of the overall development strategy of the
Group, we have compiled elements of the strategy for
each business direction and portfolio strategy, enabling
the best use of existing competitive advantages to
achieve long-term goals and to create new competitive
advantages for the Group.

Management Report
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

IMPROVING CORPORATE
EFFICIENCY

REDUCING
EXPENDITURES

EXPANDING PRESENCE
IN ALL SEGMENTS

INTRODUCING
NEW TECNOLOGY

SYNERGY EFFECT
REALIZATION

IMPROVING AND
DEVELOPING PERSONNEL

REDUCING
CAPITAL COSTS

DEVELOPMENT
OF CONSUMER BRANDS

ROS AGRO PLC

IMPROVING OPERATING
EFFICIENCY
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Company results overview
Sugar business
Results for 2011
The Group produced over

The Group produced over

of raw sugar in 2011

of beet sugar in 2011

627,000 tonnes

462,000 tonnes

Sugar plant
Land bank
Land bank added in 2010
60 km zone
30 km zone

BELDOROD
REGION

BELGOROD

Rzhevsky
Sakharnik

Nikiforovsky
plant

Chernyanka
plant

Znamensky
plant

Nika plant

Zherdevsky
plant

Valikasakhar
plant

MOSCOW

MAIN RUSSIAN SUGAR PRODUCERS, 2011, %

TAMBOV

TA M B O V
REGION

RUSSIAN SUGAR MARKET, mln tonnes
Russian sugar market, mln. tonnes

Russian sugar producers, 2011, %

8
7

Prodimex
RUSAGRO
Dominant
Sucden
Razgulay
Others

23%
16%
11%
9%
8%
33%

6
5

0.2
0.7
3.1

0.3

0.3

2.9

2.6

2.4

0.3
1.8

4
3
2

2.4

0.2

3.2

3.2

2006

2007

3.5

3.2

2.5

0.2
2

4.7

2.7

1
0
2005
Beet sugar
Source: Soyuzrossakhar

Raw sugar

Source: IKAR Soyuzrossakhar

2008

2009

2010

Imported sugar

2011
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Sales revenue in this segment
reached

25.6

billion rubles

Group’s share on the Russian
sugar market reached

16%

Capital expenditures
for the sugar business
of the Group totalled

1.5

billion rubles in 2011

GROUP
SUGAR
PRODUCTION,
thsdГруппы,
tonnes
Производство
сахара
предприятиями
тыс. тонн
1200

37

1000

462

800
600

83

52

54

248

270

299

383

359

353

2007

2008

2009

400
200

From sugarbeet

The sugar business is the Group’s main
division in terms of revenue. Sales
revenue in this segment reached
25.6 billion rubles in 2011 and the
Group’s share on the Russian sugar
market reached 16%.
The Russian sugar market is rather stable. Annual
consumption in the country is around 5.6 million
tonnes of sugar or around 39 kilograms per capita,
which is 15% more than the average for the EU. The
majority of sugar (over 66% in 2011) is produced from
sugarbeet and the rest from imported raw sugar cane.
Government policy is aimed at developing the
sugarbeet complex and increasing the share of
sugarbeet to 80%, because import duties on raw sugar
are rather high making processing less profitable.
According to analysts the average adjusted EBITDA
margin on the Russian market was 1.3% in 2011 for
raw sugar cane processing and 29% for sugarbeet
processing. High import duties on white sugar mean
that imports are kept to a minimum. Production from
raw sugar cane in 2011 totalled 2.4 million tonnes and
production from sugarbeet – 4.7 million tonnes.
Imports of white sugar amounted to 0.2 million
tonnes.

62
216

Key operating assets
627

The Group’s sugar business is represented by 7 sugar
plants in Tambov and Belgorod regions, located close to
the sugarbeet crops of the Group’s agriculture division
(a radius of around 60 km).

478

0

From raw sugar

Group position in this segment

2010

2011

On tolling agreements
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Results for 2011
The Group produced over 627,000 tonnes of raw sugar
and over 462,000 tonnes of beet sugar in 2011, up 31%
and 113%, respectively, on the previous year.

Strategy
The strategy of the Group’s sugar business is based on a
series of competitive advantages that ensure a high profit
margin and a significant market share:
• The vertically-integrated structure of the Group
provides the opportunity to obtain around 50% of the
sugarbeet processed from our own agriculture division.
This provides for guaranteed utilization of production
capacity at the sugar plants and strengthens the
position of the Group on the market when buying raw
sugar from outside sources.
• The cluster principle in locating sugar plants in relation
to each other and to areas where sugarbeet is grown
by the Group’s agriculture division keeps transport and
logistics expenditures to a minimum.
• Sufficient storage capacity enables to optimize the
organization of beet sugar sales during the season
when prices are most beneficial.
• Together with beet sugar, the Group also imports
and processes raw sugar, holding a leading position
on this market (of the 2,504 million tonnes of raw
sugar imported to the country in 2011, Group plants
processed 25.6% or 640,000 tonnes). As a result
production capacity and other resources are used to

maximum effect and the seasonal impact in sugarbeet
processing is smoothed. Consumer supplies of sugar
are stable throughout the year.
• Investment in upgrading equipment ensured the high
efficiency of production at the Group plants.
• Active promotion of our own four brands of sugar and
presence in all segments of the sugar market (by types of
sugar – white and brown, and by types of packaging –
packed and pressed) ensures the RUSAGRO Group has a
solid position in the most promising segments. Demand for
the products is steadily growing on the Russian market and
the Group brands account for 30% of sales in the pressed
sugar segment.

Investment projects
All companies within the Group were subject to significant
modernization between 2008 and 2010 and their
consolidated capacity for sugarbeet processing climbed
13% in 2011 to 34,350 tonnes per day.
New packing line was launched at the Nikiforovsky plant
resulting in the Group’s packaged sugar production
capacity rise from 52,700 to 77,800 tonnes per year and
cubed sugar production capacity increase from 33,700 to
37,300 tonnes per year.
Capital expenditures for the sugar business of the Group
totalled 1.5 billion rubles in 2011.

Plans for 2012
CONSOLIDATED PROCESSING CAPACITY
OF
RUSAGRO SUGAR PLANTS, mln tonnes
Growth in processing capacity at yearend, mln tonnes
4.0

3.95

3.78

3.61

3.5
3.0
2.5

2.47

2.47

2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5

0.97
0.65

1.04

1.04

0.65

0
2007
Beet sugar

2008

2009

Raw sugar

2010

2011

The Group will in 2012 continue to expand production
capacity and carry out technical reequipment at its
companies:
• Sugarbeet processing capacity at the Zherdevsky
plant will increase from 3,800 to 5,000 tonnes
per day;
• A new tract for providing beet from the beet
cleaning section will be installed at the Nikiforovsky
plant;
• New equipment for filtering syrup, evaporation and
drying sugar will be installed at the Valuisky plant;

Management Report
Sugar business
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Planned capital expenditures in 2012 stand about
1.3 billion rubles.

The Group brands account for 30% of sales
in the pressed sugar segment
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• A transport-washing water drainage device will be
installed at the Chernyansky plant;
• A packaging line will be introduced at the
Znamensky plant;
• A pressing line will be launched at the NIKA plant.

Results for 2011
OJSC Belgorodskiy Bacon produced

OJSC Belgorodskiy Bacon produced

of pork in 2011

of fodder

63,500 tonnes

233,500 tonnes

Pig breeding complex
Elevator
Fodder plant

BELGOROD
TA M B O V
REGION

TAMBOV
MOSCOW
BELDOROD
REGION

Top pork producers in 2011 , %

MAIN PORK PRODUCERS IN 2011, %

PORK CONSUMPTION (IMPORTS AND
Pork consumption in Russia, mln. tonnes
DOMESTIC PRODUCTION) IN RUSSIA, mln tonnes
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3.3

2

1.9

1.8

1.0

APKDon

Eksima

Cosmos
Group

Kopitania

Agrarian
Group

RUSAGRO

0
Prodo
Management

0
Cherkizovo

0.5

Agro
Belogorye

1

Source: National Union of Pork Producers
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Meat business
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5.4

billion rubles

The Group held a

3.4%

share of the pork
production in 2011

Capital expenditures in 2011
for the meat segment totalled

4.3

billion rubles

PORK PRODUCTION AT RUSAGRO GROUP
Pork productionthsd.
at Group
companies, thsd. tonnes
COMPANIES,
tonnes
70
62.4

60

63.5

Group position in this segment

The RUSAGRO Group entered the meat
market relatively recently (construction
of the first pork complex began in 2006),
but it is already one of the leaders in this
market. The Group held a 3.4% share of
the pork production in 2011 (fifth place).
Sales revenue in this business segment in
2011 was 5.4 billion rubles and EBITDA
was 2.3 billion rubles.
The Russian meat market is currently one of the biggest
markets in the world, with pork accounting for around
34% of consumption. Consumption in Russia is around
65 kilogrammes per capita annually. This is a relatively
low figure that is constantly growing. Pork consumption
in 2011 was around 3.8 million tonnes (21.6 kilograms
per capita) with an annual increase in consumption of
about 3% per year in 2004 to 2011. A large share of the
infrastructure leftover from Soviet times is obsolete and
inefficient; therefore some of the demand for pork is
covered by imports. The government is implementing a
policy aimed at protecting and encouraging domestic
producers and as a result the share of imports in
consumption is gradually narrowing, dropping from
38.7% in 2006 to 33.3% in 2011.

50
38.9

40

A feature of the Russian pork market is its low concentration
providing a relatively low level of competition. The market is
currently undergoing intense consolidation: the top 10
producers accounted for 13% of the market in 2009, 35%
in 2010 and 38.2% in 2011.

30
20

12.7

10
2008

2009

2010

2011

Key operating assets

Source: Company data

The Group’s meat business is represented by 2 pork
production companies located in Tambov and Belgorod
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Sales revenue in this business
segment in 2011 was
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The Group entered the meat market
relatively recently but is already one
of the leaders

Annual Report 2011
ROS AGRO PLC

16

regions close to elevators on farmland that belong to the
Group. Each complex operates to international
standards and uses the newest achievements in science
and technology in pork and fodder production – both
companies have pig farms and breeding complexes as
well as their own fodder plants. Capacity at OJSC
Belgorodskiy Bacon is over 62,500 tonnes of pork and
240,000 tonnes of fodder per year; with the start of
production at the Shidlovskiy complex in 2012, capacity
will increase by another 13,400 tonnes per year.
Capacity at the Tambovskiy Bacon complex that is being
built (production there will start in 2012, projected
capacity to be achieved in 2015) is 115,000 tonnes of
pork and 290,000 tonnes of fodder per year.

Results for 2011
OJSC Belgorodskiy Bacon produced 63,500 tonnes of
pork in 2011 (1.8% more than in 2010) and produced
233,500 tonnes of fodder 58,000 tonnes of which was
sold (34% more than in 2010).
Despite a significant rise in the cost of fodder
ingredients (prices in 2011 jumped 42.9% for wheat,
63.9% for barley, 19% for peas and 29% for
sunflower oil) and a rise in energy prices, RUSAGRO
was able to contain the rise in cost to 4.1% by
increasing labour productivity. In the meat segment
the Group has the best profit margin in the sector
thanks to low costs.
FEED CONVERSION RATIO IN 2011

Коэфициент конверсии кормов в свиноводстве
4.0

4.0
3.5
3.0
2.5

2,75

2,95

2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5
0
RUSAGRO

Leading
pork producers

Other large
pork producers
in Russia

Feed conversion ratio – indicator of the relation
between feed mass and obtained body mass
Source: Company materials, companies’ annual reports, materials from the
program on Developing pork production in Russia in 2010-2012

Strategy
The RUSAGRO Group aims to adopt a leading position
on the CIS market in this business segment. To achieve
its aims the Group will use and strengthen its
competitive advantages:
• Modern equipment with high productivity. The
Group’s pig breeding complexes use the newest
achievements in modern technology. Funds are
invested in quality servicing of equipment for
maximum efficiency of use enabling the Group
to maintain the lowest costs among Russian pork
producers.
• The vertically-integrated structure of the Group
enables the pork production business to have
constant access to high-quality agricultural
production. Grain produced by the Group’s
agriculture unit is used to produce fodder, reducing
transport and storage expenses for the meat unit.
The Group is largely protected from shortages
of grain, grown in Belgorod region and possible
insufficiently high quality. In 2011, 77% of the grain
used in the production of fodder for pig farming was
supplied by the Group’s own agriculture division.
The rest is purchased from other reliable suppliers
at competitive prices. In turn, pig farms provide the
agriculture unit with quality organic fertilizer.
• Biosafety is a priority in the meat segment. The
Group maintains the toughest standards of biological
safety in order to ensure healthy animals and high
quality meat. The complexes are located on territories
controlled by the Group in Belgorod region, so
optimum location was ensured in terms of providing
biosafety and minimum transport expenditures.
• Constant monitoring of the situation on markets
for ingredients to reduce expenditures. A wide
variety of recipes is used in the production of
fodder in accordance with age, health status and
other animal features. In addition, the Group
changes the recipe in accordance with ingredient
prices and minimizes the use of economically
inefficient ingredients.
• The feed conversion ratio at the Group is considerably
better than existing indicators among major pig farms
in Russia as well as the target indicators, envisaged in
the program on Developing pork production in Russia
in 2010-2012. Taking into account that the cost of
raw materials (primarily feed) accounts for over 76%
of sales costs in the meat business, efficient use of
feed is an important advantage, which the Group has
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been able to achieve through balanced feeding and
acquiring animals from leading international suppliers
of genetic material.

Investment projects
The RUSAGRO Group invested 6.7 billion rubles in the
construction of Belgorodskiy Bacon, which began in
2006. The company achieved projected capacity in
2009 and currently the main share of capital
expenditure in Belgorod region is spent on construction
of the Shidlovskiy complex, into which 732 million
rubles was invested in 2011. The Group invested 3.5
billion rubles in the construction of Tambovskiy Bacon,
which began in 2011. Capital expenditures in 2011 for
the meat segment totalled 4.3 billion rubles.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY OF THE GROUP’S
RUSAGRO
Group production
capacity
MEAT
SEGMENT
IN 2007-2015,
thsd tonnes
in 20072015, thsd. tonnes
250
114.1 115.6
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70.5
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70.8 78.0 79.5

“Belgorodskiy Bacon”
“Tambovskiy Bacon”
Source: Company materials

“Shidlovskiy”
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The Shidlovskiy complex will achieve projected
capacity in 2012. Construction of Tambovskiy Bacon
will continue. Construction of a grain storage (120,000
tonne storage capacity) and fodder production
complex (290,000 tonnes per year) will continue.
Pork production in 2012 will reach 72,000 tonnes
including 64,000 tonnes produced by Belgorodskiy
Bacon and 8,000 tonnes – Tambovskiy bacon.
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To achieve its strategic goals, the Group is constantly
working to further increase productivity by using the
latest pig farming technology, introducing the most
efficient systems for organizing production, and
expanding its presence by building new capacity and
making possible acquisitions.

Plans for 2012
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Agriculture business
Results for 2011
The RUSAGRO Group harvested

The RUSAGRO Group harvested

2,300

72,000 tonnes
of sunflower in 2011

thousand tonnes
of sugarbeet in 2011

MOSCOW

BELGOROD

TAMBOV

MOSCOW

VORONEZH

Black Eath Belt

Regions of operations of Rusagro

LAND ALLOCATION IN 2011

LAND LEGAL STATUS

Crops grown in 2011

Group land bankstructure
Wheat
Sugarbeet
Barley
Peas
Sunflower
Others

Source: Company data

21%
19%
18%
11%
9%
22%

Ownership
Longterm lease
Shortterm lease
In the process
of registration

Source: Company data

32%
39%
17%
12%
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The RUSAGRO Group is one of the largest
agriculture companies in Russia
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Sales revenue in this
business segment was

6.7

Group position in this segment

billion rubles in 2011

The Group controls

310,000
114,000

hectares

in Belgorod region and
hectares

in Tambov and Voronezh
regions

The RUSAGRO Group is one of the
largest agriculture companies in Russia.
The land controlled by the group is
located near to the company’s processing
complexes: sugar, fodder plants and
elevators. All of the sugarbeet produced
is supplied to the company’s sugar plants
and grain is used to produce feed at the
RUSAGRO meat unit. The Group has 4
elevators providing the opportunity to
process and store grain throughout the
year. Crops grown include sugarbeet,
wheat, barley, peas, soya, sunflower
seeds, corn and others.
Key operating assets

GROUP LAND RESOURCES AREA, thsd hectares
Group land resources area (thsd. hectares)
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200
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200

0
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Cultivated land
Source: Company data

2011

Others

F2014 F2015

The agriculture business comprises agriculture companies
in Belgorod and Tambov regions with overall land of
424,000 hectares, 4 elevators that have the capacity to
store 341,000 tonnes of grain at one time and over
140,000 tonnes of outdoor storage, as well as 3 dairy
complexes.
The Group’s agricultural land is located in the Central Black
Earth area of Russia, which has some of the most fertile
land in the world. The soil in this region contains a high
percentage of humus (nutrient containing organic matter),
ensuring high crop yield. The percentage of humus in
Belgorod region ranges between 4% and 6%, while in
Tambov region the percentage of humus is 7,5-8%.
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The Group controls 310,000 hectares in Belgorod
region and 114,000 hectares in Tambov and Voronezh
regions.

Results for 2011
The RUSAGRO Group harvested 2,300 thousand tonnes
of sugarbeet in 2011 and 72,000 tonnes of sunflower in
2011, 151% and 47% up on 2010. Crop yield increased
116% to 35 tonnes per hectare for sugarbeet and 64% to
2.3 tonnes per hectare for sunflower. Increase in crop
yield was mainly due to good weather and the use of
modern agricultural technology.
The total grain harvest reached 497,000 tonnes, including
267,000 tonnes of winter wheat, 174,000 tonnes of
barley and 56,000 tonnes of peas. The RUSAGRO Group
plans to use 60,000 tonnes for planting, 27,000 tonnes
for rent payment and 7,000 tonnes for feed production.
The Group plans to sell 232,000 tonnes of wheat,
127,000 tonnes of barley, 38,000 tonnes of peas and
6,000 tonnes of crop waste.
Winter crops were sown on 89,000 hectares, 18% more
than in the 2010-2011 season.

Strategy
The agriculture unit has the following competitive
advantages, which enable successful implementation of
the Group strategy:

• Synergy with other business segments. The land on
which the Group grows sugarbeet is located close
to the sugar plants. All the sugarbeet grown is sent
to the Group’s own sugar plants for processing and
the plants provide beet sugar production waste,
which is used as a fertilizer. Grain is sent to the meat
unit fodder plant, located close to the Nezhegolsky
elevator, and manure from the pig farms is also used
as a soil fertilizer. Location – close to sugar plants
and elevators – provides considerable savings on
transport costs.
• Economy of scale. Diversity and significant volume
in the agriculture division considerably strengthen
our position on the market and when concluding
contracts with suppliers and distributors. The
Group is one of the country’s largest sugarbeet

producer. The size of the crop areas enables the
use of technology and equipment that would be
impossible or inexpedient to use in smaller fields.
• Location of agricultural land. Group land
resources are located in the most fertile region in
the country. Belgorod region, where a large share
of the land resources are found, also has several
pig and poultry farms, which ensure stable demand
for our grain.
• Modernization, efficiency & productivity. The
Group constantly upgrades equipment used by
the agricultural business. The use of modern crop
growing technology means crop yield on our fields
is higher than the average in the regions where they
are located.
• Ownership of grain elevators. As the Group owns
4 elevators with total capacity of 341,000 tonnes
and over 140,000 tonnes of outdoor storage, it
can fully control the grain storage and distribution
process. The storage capacity of the elevators
enables us to trade grain throughout the year,
taking maximum benefit from changes to the
market situation. The elevators also make export
transactions easier because dealers can make
deliveries directly from the elevators.
The Group aims to make maximum use of and strengthen
its competitive advantages to attain its strategic aims – to
become the company with the lowest expenditures in the
regions where it operates. The Group is looking for
opportunities to expand its land resources; to increase
sugarbeet production for its own sugar production,
including through changing the ratio of crops rotation in
favour of sugarbeet and sunflower; to constantly increase
crop yield through serious investment in modern
agricultural equipment and to encourage labour
productivity growth.

Investment projects
The Group expanded its land resources in Tambov region
by 39,000 hectares in 2011. Investment in acquiring new
agricultural equipment was about 2 billion rubles.
Updating tractor machinery enabled fieldwork to be
completed in optimal time and with good quality.
In 2011, commodity and seed barns were built and
upgraded and elevators were upgraded for direct
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acceptance of grain products from combines to reduce
losses during harvesting.

The Group will continue to acquire machinery for new
land due to the continuing expansion of land resources in
Tambov region. There are plans to build a single fuel
storage facility instead of the existing 8 small storage
facilities and there is a project to build a seed plant.
Aspiration systems will be installed at the elevators to
reduce emissions.

Crop yield increased 116% to 35 tonnes
per hectare for sugarbeet and 64%
to 2.3 tonnes per hectare for sunflower
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The Group’s capital expenditure in agricultural segment in
2011 was 4.9 billion rubles.

Plans for 2012
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Oil & fats business
Results for 2011
The Group produced around

The Group produced around

of mayonnaise in 2011

of margarine in 2011

57,000 tonnes

35,000 tonnes

Oil extraction plant in Samara region
produced 67,000 tonnes of finished products in 2011

Export destinations in 2011
New export destinations in 2011
New export destinations
to be added in 2012

EKATERINBURG

MOSCOW

SAMARA

K A Z A K H S TA N

U Z B E K I S TA N
AZERBAIJAN
T U R K M E N I S TA N

EGYPT

K Y R G Y Z S TA N
TA J I K I S TA N

IRAN
INDIA

U.A.E.

Largest manufacturer of margarine in Russia in 2011

MAIN PRODUCERS OF MAYONNAISE IN RUSSIA
IN 2011
Essen
NMZhK
EFKO
(without Noginsk)
Sun Products
RUSAGRO
Unilever (including
Baltimor from 2010)
Kazan Fats Plant
Other producers

17.0%
13.1%
12.2%
11.4%
7.3%
5.7%
5.4%
33.4%

Source: Russian Oil and Fats Union data
(The study only includes companies within the Russian Oil and Fats Union)

Russia’s largest manufacturer of margarine in 2011

MAIN PRODUCERS OF PACKED
(B2C) MARGARINE IN RUSSIA IN 2011

RUSAGRO
NMZhK
Sun Products
Evdakovskiy MZhK
Irkutsk Oil and Fats
Unilever
Other producers

32%
24%
20%
10%
5%
4%
5%

Source: Russian Oil and Fats Union data
(The study only includes companies within the Russian Oil and Fats Union)
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The RUSAGRO Group’s oil and fats business segment includes two independent
units: production of sauces and fats (fats plant) and production of vegetable oil (oil
extraction plant). The group holds a leading position in both areas and its products
are widely represented on the Russian market and exported abroad.
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Sales revenue in this
business segment was

6.8

Production of sauces and fats
Group position in this segment

billion rubles in 2011

RUSAGRO is the Russia’s largest
manufacturer of packed (B2C)

32%

margarine with a
share of production in Russia
in 2011
Structure of mayonnaise sales in value terms in 2011
STRUCTURE
OF MAYONNAISE SALES
IN VALUE TERMS IN 2011

RUSSIA
90.7%
Kazakhstan
7.6%
Other (Uzbekistan,
Tajikistan, Kyrgyzstan) 1.7%

Source: Company data

Структура продаж маргарина предприятием Группы

STRUCTURE
OF MARGARINE SALES
в 2011 году в стоимостном выражении
IN VALUE TERMS IN 2011

RUSSIA
Uzbekistan
Kazakhstan
Kyrgystan
Tajikistan

Source: Company data

24,9%
47,3%
14,7%
6,8%
6,3%

The RUSAGRO Group is Russia’s largest manufacturer
of packed (B2C) margarine with a 32% share of
production in Russia and the fifth largest manufacturer
of mayonnaise with a 7% share.
There is significant volume and a stable rate of growth on
the mayonnaise market in Russia and the CIS. Mayonnaise
consumption in Russia totalled 738,700 tonnes in 2011 and
the consolidated average annual rate of growth between
2006 and 2011 was 2.8%. There is a strong tradition of
mayonnaise consumption in Russia, where at least 95.5%
of households use it with a vast range of dishes. Average
annual mayonnaise consumption is Russia is higher than in
other countries at 5 kilogrammes per capita, compared to
the average around the world of 3.6 kilograms per capita.
The situation on the Russian margarine market is
different: margarine consumption in Russia at
0.47 kilograms per capita is lower than the world
average at 1.25 kilograms per capita and significantly
lower than the average for Western and Eastern Europe
(5.3 and 6.7 kilograms per capita, respectively).
Consumption has been relatively stable in the past few
years and has even seen some decline – from 73,000
tonnes in 2009 to 67,000 tonnes in 2011. This situation
on the domestic market has encouraged the Group to
promote margarine on the Central Asian market with
more favourable dynamics.

Key operating assets
The segment is represented by ”Zhirovoy Kombinat”
in Yekaterinburg, which is the fifth largest oil and fats
plant in Russia and produces wide range products,
including mayonnaise, margarine, soap, mustard,
sunflower oil and ketchup. Nominal annual production
capacity of the plant in 2011 was 74,100 tonnes of
mayonnaise and 46,500 tonnes of margarine.
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Results in 2011
The Group produced around 57,000 tonnes of
mayonnaise in 2011 (up 0.2% on 2010) and 35,000
tonnes of margarine (up 8.9%). Sales volumes were
virtually equal to production volumes. Exports
increased 10%. The main importing countries were
Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Uzbekistan and Tajikistan.
Azerbaijan became a new importer in 2011.
During 2011 “Zhirovoy Kombinat”:
• developed and introduced a new management
system for production and finished product reserves;
• reduced consumption of energy and other resources
per tonne of production;
• introduced lean production system.

Strategy
Thanks to its oil and fats unit, the Group is one of
Russia’s largest manufacturers of mayonnaise and
packed (B2C) margarine, especially in the regions where
the production assets are located. To realize its goals, the
oil and fats unit uses the following competitive
advantages:
• Leading regional brands. The Group produces
mayonnaise and margarine under the brands
Provansal EZhk and Shedroe Leto, which account
for a significant share of the market in the regions
of presence; the brands are also popular in countries
that import our products. Analysis of import
statistics, carried out by Business Analytica and
Mittel, in 2009-2010 show our margarine was the
absolute sales leader in Uzbekistan with a 53%
market share and one of the top three in Kazakhstan
with a 21% market share. The Group’s production
assets are well located in terms of further growth of
exports to Central Asian markets.
• Strong distribution system in the regions. In Sverdlovsk
region where the plant is located, the Group has its
own distribution system, providing products directly to
retail chains, ensuring higher efficiency.
• Wide range of products. The Group produces
mayonnaise, margarine, ketchup, mustard and
other products. This enables it to minimize the
adverse impact of sharp seasonal price fluctuations
on certain types of products and to stabilize revenue
throughout the year. The group is also ready to
meet consumer demand for more products.

The main aim of the Group’s oil and fats unit is to attain
and strengthen the position of leading mayonnaise
and packed (B2C) margarine manufacturer in the CIS.
To achieve this we plan to:
• Maintain and strengthen our leading position in the
Urals and adjacent regions and on the basis of that
to increase sales volumes in other Russian regions
and expand exports to Central Asia, especially to
Uzbekistan, Kazakhstan, Tajikistan and Kyrgyzstan;
• Expand production with existing capacity and invest
funds in its expansion;
• Identify and apply opportunities for further
expanding the range of products offered.

Investment projects
Transport and new storage equipment was purchased
in 2011 and the level of automation in storage was
significantly enhanced.

Plans for 2012
The Group’s plans for 2012 include development of
new recipes, entering the B2B segment in the
margarine category and entering a new spread
segment.
The Group will continue to expand capacity and carry
out upgrades:
• Cooking equipment in the mayonnaise section will be
replaced with modern German produced equipment;
• New highly productive packing equipment will be
installed.
The Group plans to expand exports. It plans to enter
the Turkmen market with its products.

Vegetable oil production
Group position in this segment
The RUSAGRO Group is one of the leading sunflower
processing companies in Russia at number 8 among
the holding companies with a 3.24% market share.
Vegetable oil consumption (including products
containing vegetable oil) amounted to 1.92 million
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The main vegetable oil production capacity in Russia is
concentrated in the southern and central regions and
the maximum share of sunflower crop processing
(33%) is handled at plants with processing capacity of
from 1,000 to 1,500 tonnes per day.

Key operating assets
In March 2011 the Group acquired the oil extraction
plant – LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka (CJSC SAPP
since January 10, 2012) which produces pressing and
extraction sunflower oil, oilseed meal and husk. The
plant has the capacity to process 1,050 tonnes of seed
per day. The plant achieved full projected capacity in the
fourth quarter of 2011 and has now become a new
independent unit within the Group. The oil extraction
plant is located in a region with a large sunflower
harvest and lack of other oil extraction plants. Thus, the
company has no difficulties in buying raw materials.

Results in 2011
The new plant in Samara region produced 67,000
tonnes of finished products. Exports to Kazakhstan
accounted for 18% of overall sales from the oil
extraction plant.

Plans for 2012
The Company plans to increase the share of exports in
total sales to 30%. Capital expenditure on the oil and fats
business amounted to 70 million rubles in 2011. Capital
expenditure in 2012 is planned at 186 million rubles.

MAIN SUNFLOWER
OIL
PRODUCERS
IN 2011
Holding
company shares
in sunflower
processing,
2011

YUG Rusi
Yantarnoe
Aston
EFKO
Bunge
Kernell
NMZhK
RUSAGRO
Masloproduct
AgroSib Razdole
Nefis Cosmetics
Others
Source: Company materials

26%
8%
7%
5%
5%
4%
4%
3%
3%
3%
3%
29%
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tonnes, or 13.5 kilogrammes per capita, in Russia in
2011. Per capita consumption was up 1.9% compared
to 2010. Basically the same level of average annual
growth in consumption has been observed since 2005.
According to forecasts, consumption of vegetable oil
(including products containing vegetable oil) will
continue to grow and could reach 1.98 million tonnes
by 2017 (or 13.95 kilogrammes per capita). Demand
for vegetable oil for the production of fodder is also
expected to continue growing: from 318,000 tonnes
in 2012 to 407,000 tonnes by 2017.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT, KEY INDICATORS
(*) Adjusted EBITDA
is defined as operating profit before
taking into account
(i) depreciation,
(ii) other operating
income, net (other
than reimbursement of fuel and
fertilisers and feed
costs (government
grants)), (iii) the difference between
gain on revaluation
of biological assets
and agriculture produce recognised in
the year and the gain
on initial recognition of agricultural
produce attributable to realized agricultural produce for
the year and revaluation of biological
assets attributable
to realised biological
assets and included
in cost of sales (iv)
provision/(reversal) for net realisable value, (v) sharebased remuneration
(see Note 26 of the
Group’s consolidated
financial statements
for the detailed calculation of Adjusted
EBITDA). Adjusted
EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under
IFRS. You should not
consider it an alternative to profit for
the year as a measure of operating performance or
to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of
liquidity. Our calculation of Adjusted
EBITDA may be different from the calculation used by
other companies and

in mln Rubles
Sales
Gross profit
Gross margin, %
Adjusted EBITDA*
Adjusted EBITDA margin, %
Adjusted Net profit**
Adjusted Net profit margin %
Net profit for the period
Net profit margin %

In general, year 2011 in the context of Group financial
results was marked by significant growth in sales and
decrease in operating profitability. Sales growth came
from increase in sales volume in all business segments
and increase in sales prices of all Group products

2011

2010

% change

39,715

30,956

28%

8,346

10,060

-17%

21%

32%

5,154

7,880

13%

25%

3,092

5,115

8%

17%

2,420

5,115

6%

17%

-35%

-40%

-53%

except the most agricultural crops. Profitability was
damaged by high volatility and unfavorable price
situation on commodity markets. Detailed
explanations of our financial results from each
segment perspective are given further in this section.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AS PER DIVISIONS
in mln Rubles

2011

% of segment
in
consolidated
results 2011

2010

% of segment
in
consolidated
results 2010

Sales, incl.

39,715

100%

30,956

100%

28%

Sugar

25,634

65%

20,321

66%

26%

Meat

5,410

14%

4,572

15%

18%

Agricultural

6,720

17%

4,279

14%

57%

Oil & Fats

6,752

17%

4,635

15%

46%

Other

% change

347

1%

280

1%

24%

(5,148)

-13%

(3,132)

-10%

64%

Gross profit, incl.

8,346

100%

10,060

100%

-17%

Sugar

2,820

34%

5,566

55%

-49%

Eliminations

Meat

1,926

23%

1,908

19%

1%

Agricultural

2,817

34%

1,268

13%

122%

Oil & Fats

1,495

18%

1,324

13%

13%

347

4%

280

3%

24%

(1,060)

-13%

(287)

-3%

270%

Other
Eliminations
Adjusted EBITDA, incl.

5,154

100%

7,880

100%

-35%

Sugar

1,442

28%

4,476

57%

-68%

Meat

2,309

45%

1,937

25%

19%

Agricultural

1,881

36%

1,115

14%

69%

577

11%

651

8%

-11%

Oil & Fats
Other
Eliminations

(47)

-1%

(180)

-2%

-74%

(1,008)

-20%

(120)

-2%

737%
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in mln Rubles

% of segment
in
consolidated
results 2011

2010

13%

25%

Sugar

6%

22%

Meat

43%

42%

Agricultural

28%

26%

Oil & Fats
Other
Eliminations

9%

14%

-13%

-64%

20%

4%

Sugar segment
Sales in Sugar segment increased by 26% to 25,634
million rubles in 2011 compared to 20,321 million rubles
in 2010. The main factors that stipulated this increase in
Sales were price growth for cane sugar period and sales
volume increase from 781 thousand tonnes in 2010 to
927 thousand tonnes in 2011. The average sale prices
increased from 25.3 rubles per kilogram excl. VAT in 2010
up to 26.9 rubles per kilogram excl. VAT in 2011. We are
pleased that part of our sales volume increase came from
increase in refined packed cube sugar sales that is in line
with Group’s B2C expansion strategy.
One of the main operational results of Sugar segment in
2011 is the historical maximum of production volume
which reached 1,090 thousand tonnes (excluding tolling).
Sales volume increase and raw cane sugar prices
increase influenced the cost of sales of Sugar segment
in 2011. Cost of sales summed up with Gain less losses
from trading sugar derivatives increased by 55% from
14,756 million rubles in 2010 to 22,814 million rubles
in 2011.
In 2011 in the end of the cane sugar period we faced loss
of correlation between internal Russian prices for white
sugar with international sugar prices (contract Sugar 11):
despite the increase in international prices internal prices
decreased due to market participants’ expectations of
high sugar beet harvest and respective sharp drop in
prices. An additional factor that had a negative effect on
profitability was the decrease in white sugar prices at the
end of 2011. As a result we took the decision to keep
sugar in stocks and move sales from Q4 2011 to the first
half of 2012 where we expect a more favorable price

% of segment
in
consolidated
results 2010

% change

situation. At 31 December 2011 we had 256 thousand
tonnes of white sugar in stocks compared to 57
thousand tonnes as at 31 December 2010. This price
situation had a significant negative effect on gross profit
that was partly offset by an increase in sales volume.
Gross profit decreased from 5,566 million rubles in 2010
to 2,820 million rubles in 2011. Gross profit margin
decreased from 27% in 2010 to 11% in 2011.
To quantify the factors affecting Gross profit we divide
the overall change in Gross profit by the following
components: about 2.3 billion rubles decrease as a
result of raw cane sugar operations, about 100 million
rubles decrease as a result of sugar beet period
operations (harvest of 2011) and about 200 million
rubles decrease coming from opening balance effect
(harvest of 2010).
In raw cane sugar period 2011 we had 650 million
rubles increase in Gross profit as a result of a sales
volume increase of 148 thousand tonnes (from 479
thousand tonnes in 2010 to 627 thousand tonnes in
2011) and more than 2.5 billion rubles increase in Gross
profit as a result of sales price increase by 4.1 thousand
rubles per tonne excl. VAT (from 23.5 thousand rubles in
2010 to 27.6 thousand rubles in 2011, excl. VAT). The
positive effect of sales volume and sales prices increase
was netted off by the effect of an increase in raw cane
sugar prices, which including the result of trading
operations with derivatives on the high volatile market
totaled more than 5.4 billion rubles.
In 2011 sugar beet period we had about 600 million rubles
increase in Gross profit as a result of a sales volume
increase by 65 thousand tonnes (from 177 thousand
tonnes in 2010 to 242 thousand tonnes in 2011) and

therefore comparability may be limited. We believe that
Adjusted EBITDA
provides useful information to investors
because it is an indicator of the strength
and performance of
our ongoing business
operations, including
our ability to fund
discretionary spending such as capital
expenditures, acquisitions of subsidiaries and other investments and our ability
to incur and service
debt.
(**) Adjusted Net
profit is determined
as Profit for the year
excluding sharebased remuneration
of 672 mln rubles.
Share-based remuneration represents the fair
value of shares of
ROS AGRO PLC
granted by the controlling shareholder
in March 2011 to
Maxim Basov as part
of his compensation
package and gradually expensed in
statement of comprehensive income
until 2014, providing
Mr. Basov remains
in the position of the
Director.
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Adjusted EBITDA margin, %

2011
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about 1 billion rubles increase as a result of sugar beet
prices falling by 0.6 thousand rubles per tonne excl. VAT
(from 2.14 thousand rubles in 2010 to 1.57 thousand
rubles in 2011, excl. VAT), that was netted off by about
1.3 billion rubles decrease due to sale price decrease in
sugar beet period by 5.8 thousand rubles per tonne excl.
VAT (from 29.2 thousand rubles in 2010 till 23.4 thousand
rubles in 2011, excl. VAT) and about 350 million rubles
decrease as result of sugar beet conversion ratio reduction
from 13.84% in 2010 to 12.63% in 2011, which is in turn
resulted from high sugar beet harvest and prolonged
period of sugar beet processing (123 days in 2011
compared to 67 days in 2010).
Opening balance effect in the amount of about 200
million rubles came from the 2010 drought that resulted
in a significant reduction of white sugar stocks at the end
of 2010 (by 68 thousand tonnes from 125 thousand
tonnes at the beginning of the year to 57 thousand
tonnes at the end of the year) and related increase in

white sugar costs per unit, that was partly offset by the
sale price increase.
In 2011 Distribution and selling expenses in Sugar
segment increased by 56% from 910 million rubles in
2010 to1,418 million rubles in 2011. Basically this
increase is explained by an increase in transportation
and loading services of 344 million rubles from 617
million rubles in 2010 till 961 million rubles in 2011 and
by an increase in payroll costs of 73 million rubles from
166 million rubles in 2010 to 239 million rubles in 2011,
mainly due to the development of B2C segment.
In aggregate the factors mentioned above led to negative
dynamic in operating profit that amounted to 739 million
rubles in 2011 which is 81% lower than in 2010.
Adjusted EBITDA in Sugar segment decreased by
68%, from 4,476 million rubles in 2010 till 1,442
million rubles in 2011. Adjusted EBITDA margin
amounted to 6% in 2011 and 22% in 2010.

SUGAR SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

Sales – external

25,587

20,196

27%

47

126

-63%

Sales to other segments
Total sales

% change

25,634

20,321

26%

(22,501)

(15,971)

41%

(313)

1,215

2,820

5,566

11%

27%

(1,418)

(910)

(736)

(729)

1%

73

9

693%

739

3,936

-81%

3%

19%

Depreciation included in Operating Profit

689

550

25%

Other operating expenses, net

(73)

(9)

693%

87

-

1,442

4,476

6%

22%

Cost of sales
Gains less losses from trading sugar derivatives
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
Distribution and selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses, net
Operating profit
Operating profit margin

-49%

56%

Adjustments:

Provision for net realizable value included in cost of sales
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin

-68%
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Meat segment

Revaluation of biological assets (pigs) at fair value had
negative net effect on profit figures in 2011 totaling
7 million rubles compared with positive net effect in
2010 in the amount of 305 million rubles. Net effect of
pigs’ revaluation represents the difference between
gain on revaluation of pigs recognized for the period
and gain on revaluation attributable to realized pigs and
included in the Cost of sales for the same period. The
difference in net effect of pigs’ revaluation on profit
figures between 2011 and 2010 is explained by the
significant growth in pork market prices during
2010 compared with relatively modest increase in 2011.
Cost of sales increased by 17% from 4,499 million rubles
in 2010 to 5,260 million rubles in 2011. 253 million rubles
of this increase came from increase in Revaluation of
biological assets attributable to realised biological assets
and included in Cost of sales, which went up to
1,783 million rubles in 2011 compared to 1,530 million
rubles in 2010. Remaining increase relates to increase in
sales volume of fodder and higher cost per unit of fodder
connected with the summer drought of 2010. Share of
feed costs in cost of production (measured on cash basis)
increased in 2011 and amounted to 69.18%.
The factors mentioned above led to Gross profit
increase of 1% from 1,908 million rubles in 2010 to
1,926 million rubles in 2011 and gross profit margin
decrease from 42% in 2010 to 36% in 2011. Gross
profit excluding effect of biological assets revaluation
totaled 1,933 million rubles in 2011 compared with

We significantly improved the operating indicators of
the Belgorod Bacon. The average weight of our pigs
increased by almost 2 kilograms and amounted to
109,38 kilograms per head. The rate of sale of live stock
per one sow improved from 20.8 up to 21.1 heads per
sow. We significantly reduced culling rates at every
production stage, and improved feed conversion ratio
from 2.9 in 2010 to 2.75 in 2011. At Belgorod Bacon we
improved labour productivity by more than 6%.
General and administrative expenses increased by 30%
from 247 million rubles in 2010 to 321 million rubles in
2011 mainly due to an increase in payroll costs of
52 million rubles, caused by a continued expansion of
business in Meat segment.
Accrual of provision for impairment of advances paid for
property, plant and equipment in the amount of
324 million rubles (2010: nil) net of government grants
received for reimbursement of feed costs in 2011 in the
amount of 103 million rubles (2010: nil) represent the
main components of Other operating expenses, net in
2011. Other operating expenses, net in 2010 included
76 million rubles expenses from writing-off of receivables
relating to government grants, which was not the case in
2011. These one-off income and expenses led to an
increase of Other operating expenses, net by 128% from
95 million rubles in 2010 to 218 million rubles in 2011.
Adjusted EBITDA in Meat segment increased by 19%,
from 1,937 million rubles in 2010 to 2,309 million
rubles in 2011. Adjusted EBITDA margin amounted to
43% in 2011 and 42% in 2010. Tambov Bacon,
greenfield project in the Meat segment, had negative
effect on adjusted EBITDA of the Meat segment,
totaling 63 million rubles in 2011 and 6 million rubles
in 2010. Adjusted EBITDA in Meat segment excluding
the effect of Tambov Bacon (which is currently under
construction and does not produce products)
amounted to 2,372 million rubles in 2011 and
1,943 million rubles in 2010, which is a 22% growth.
Respective Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding losses
of Tambov Bacon (which is currently under
construction and does not produce products)
increased from 43% in 2010 to 44% in 2011.
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In 2011 Meat segment has performed best results
among the Group’s segments. All financial and
production targets have been achieved. Sales have
increased by 18% from 4,572 million rubles in 2010 till
5,410 million rubles in 2011 due to attractive prices
and increase in sales volume of fodder from
43 thousand tonnes in 2010 to 58 thousand tonnes in
2011. Sales volume of pigs livestock products
remained nearly stable having increased from
62.4 thousand tonnes in 2010 to 62.5 thousand
tonnes in 2011. The average pork sale prices increased
from 67.77 rubles per kilogram excl. VAT in 2010 to
75.86 rubles per kilogram excl. VAT in 2011, average
fodder sale prices increased from 7,922 rubles per
tonne excl. VAT in 2010 up to 10,462 rubles per tonne
excl. VAT in 2011.

1,603 million rubles in 2010 (21% growth) with
respective adjusted gross profit margin growth from
35% in 2010 to 36% in 2011.
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MEAT SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

% change

Sales – external

5,408

4,572

18%

2

-

Total sales

5,410

4,572

Gain on revaluation of biological assets

1,776

1,835

-3%

Cost of sales

(5,260)

(4,499)

17%

Gross profit

1,926

1,908

1%

36%

42%

Sales to other segments

Gross profit margin
Distribution and selling expenses

18%

(22)

(10)

General and administrative expenses

(321)

(247)

30%

Other operating expenses, net

(218)

(95)

128%

Operating profit

1,366

1,556

-12%

25%

34%

Depreciation included in Operating Profit

583

590

-1%

Other operating expenses, net

218

95

128%

Operating profit margin

129%

Adjustments:

Reimbursement of feed costs (government grants)
Gain on revaluation of biological assets
Revaluation of biological assets attributable to realised biological assets and included
in cost of sales
Provision for net realizable value
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin

Agricultural segment
Sales in Agricultural segment increased by 57% to
6,720 million rubles in 2011 compared to 4,279 million
rubles in 2010. The main factor of Sales growth was a
record harvest of sugar beet (all of which is processed
at our own plants), sunflower and grain that in turn led
to increase in sales volume. Volume of sugar beet sold
to Sugar segment in 2011 amounted to
2,143 thousand tonnes compared to 928 thousand
tonnes in 2010. Sales volume of grain (wheat, barley,
corn, peas, soya beans) in 2011 amounted to
334 thousand tonnes (incl. 139 thousand tonnes sold
to Meat segment) compared to 253 thousand tonnes
in 2010 (incl. 129 thousand tonnes sold to Meat
segment). Sales volume of sunflower seeds in
2011 amounted to 61 thousand tonnes compared to
47 thousand tonnes in 2010, basically all sold to third
parties. Increase in volume of agricultural crops
harvested is explained first of all by increase in yield
achieved because of good weather conditions and
through the use of modern agricultural technology,

103

-

(1,776)

(1,835)

-3%

1,783

1,530

17%

34

-

2,309

1,937

43%

42%

19%

and secondly by expansion of arable land cultivated
during the year by 23 thousand hectares from
338 thousand in 2010 to 361 thousand in 2011.
The average sale prices per tonne (excl. VAT) in 2011 were
as follows: 5.0 thousand rubles for wheat (compared to
3.9 thousand rubles in 2010), 5 thousand rubles for barley
(compared to 2.9 thousand rubles in 2010), 8.2 thousand
rubles for sunflower seeds (compared to 19.4 thousand
rubles in 2010), 6.3 thousand rubles for peas (compared
to 7.1 thousand rubles in 2010), 6.2 thousand rubles for
corn (no sales in 2010).
Due to the volume factor the Gain on revaluation of
biological assets and agriculture produce is more than
doubled and amounted to 1,545 million rubles in
2011 compared to 738 million rubles in 2010. Basically
all this gain was expensed in the same year and
included in Cost of sales: the effect of this on cost of
sales totaled 1,307 million rubles in 2011 and
767 million rubles in 2010.
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improved from 30% in 2010 to 42% in 2011. Gross
profit excluding effect of agricultural produce and
biological assets revaluation totaled 2,579 million rubles
in 2011 compared with 1,297 million rubles in 2010
(99% growth) with respective adjusted gross profit
margin growth from 30% in 2010 to 38% in 2011.

The above mentioned factors with overwhelming
influence of yield increase led to the growth of Gross
profit by 122% from 1,268 million rubles in 2010 to
2,817 million rubles in 2011. Gross profit margin

Adjusted EBITDA in Agricultural segment increased
by 69%, from 1,115 million rubles in 2010
to 1,881 million rubles in 2011. Adjusted EBITDA
margin amounted 28% in 2011 and 26% in 2010.

In 2011 distribution and selling expenses in
Agricultural segment increased by 190% from
218 million rubles in 2010 to 632 million rubles in
2011, primarily due to an increase in transportation
services, which is in turn resulted from sales volume
increase and fuel prices growth.

AGRICULTURAL SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

% change

Sales – external

1,968

1,552

27%

Sales to other segments

4,752

2,727

74%

Total sales

6,720

4,279

57%

Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agriculture produce

1,545

738

109%

Cost of sales

(5,447)

(3,749)

45%

Gross profit

2,817

1,268

122%

42%

30%

Distribution and selling expenses

(632)

(218)

190%

General and administrative expenses

(724)

(614)

18%

16

(117)

1,478

319

22%

7%

Depreciation included in Operating Profit

610

536

Other operating (income) /expenses, net

(16)

117

Gross profit margin

Other operating income/(expenses), net
Operating profit
Operating profit margin

364%

Adjustments:

Reimbursement of fuel and fertilisers (government grants)

14%

46

138

-67%

(1,545)

(738)

109%

Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce attributable to realised agricultural
produce

1,329

767

73%

Revaluation of biological assets attributable to realised biological assets and included
in cost of sales

(22)

-

1

(24)

1,881

1,115

28%

26%

Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agriculture produce

Provision/ (Reversal) for net realizable value
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin

69%
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Cost of sales in Agricultural segment increased by 45%
to 5,447 million rubles in 2011 compared to
3,749 million rubles in 2010. Several factors caused
this increase including the increase by 540 million
rubles in gain on revaluation of biological assets and
agricultural produce included in the cost of sales;
expansion of arable land cultivated during the year;
price increase for fuel and fertilizers; decrease of
expenses attributed to crops failure (lost harvest
write-off) that is excluded from cost of sales and
included in other operating expenses. In 2011 lost
harvest write-off amounted to 17 million rubles
compared to 191 million rubles in 2010.
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Oil&fat segment
Sales in Oil&Fat segment increased by 46% from
4,635 million rubles in 2010 to 6,752 million rubles in
2011. 1,673 million rubles of Sales growth are
attributed to external Sales by the new vegetable oil
production plant located in Samara and acquired by
the Group in March 2011. Sales volume of the new
plant totaled 65 thousand tonnes which include
39 thousand tonnes attributable to external sales and
26 thousand tonnes sold internally to the Group’s fat
and oil production plant in Yekaterinburg. Remaining
growth in sales relates to mayonnaise and consumer
margarine sales and was caused mainly by an increase
in prices and to a lesser eхtent by an increase in sales
volume. Mayonnaise sales volume grew from
56.4 thousand tonnes in 2010 to 56.9 thousand
tonnes in 2011. Margarine sales volume grew from
32 thousand tonnes in 2010 to 34 thousand tonnes in
2011. The mayonnaise sale prices increased from
48.8 thousand rubles per tonne excl. VAT in 2010 to
53.4 thousand rubles per tonne excl. VAT in 2011,
average margarine sale prices increased from
45.6 thousand rubles per tonne excl. VAT in 2010 to
48.7 thousand rubles per tonne excl. VAT in 2011.
Cost of sales in Oil&Fat segment increased by 59% from
3,311 million rubles in 2010 till 5,256 million rubles in
2011 mainly due to launching of vegetable oil
production. Cost of the oil extraction plant related to
third party sales totaled 1,217 million rubles. Cost of
sales of margarine and mayonnaise also increased
primarily as result of higher vegetable oil prices in
2011 compared with 2010.

Due to factors mentioned above Gross profit of the
segment increased by 13% from 1,324 million rubles
in 2010 to 1,495 million rubles in 2011. Gross profit
margin decreased from 29% in 2010 to 22% in 2011.
Gross profit attributed to sales of raw vegetable oil to
third parties totaled 456 million rubles (2010: nil) with
gross profit margin 27%. Remaining gross profit in the
amount 1,039 million rubles in 2011 is attributed to
mayonnaise and consumer margarine sales which is a
22% decrease compared to 2010. Gross profit margin
of mayonnaise and consumer margarine sales
amounted to 20% in 2011 compared to 29% in 2010.
The expansion of business through acquisition of oil
extraction plant was also the main reason for 43%
increase in Distribution and selling expenses, from
600 million rubles in 2010 to 856 million rubles in
2011, and 34% increase in General and administrative
expenses, from 229 million rubles in 2010 to
308 million rubles in 2011. Most considerable changes
in Distribution and selling expenses were in transport
costs and payroll costs that increased by 204 million
rubles and 49 million rubles respectively. 51 million
rubles of increase in General and administrative
expenses relates to payroll costs.
Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 11%, from 651 million
rubles in 2010 to 577 million rubles in 2011. All adjusted
EBITDA 2010 is attributed to mayonnaise and consumer
margarine sales. Adjusted EBITDA in 2011 is divided
between raw vegetable oil sales to third parties that gave
275 million rubles in Adjusted EBITDA (with 16% of
Adjusted EBITDA margin), and mayonnaise and
consumer margarine sales, that gave 302 million rubles in
Adjusted EBITDA (with 6% of Adjusted EBITDA margin).

OIL&FAT SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

% change

Sales – external

6,750

4,635

46%

1

-

Sales to other segments
Total sales

6,752

4,635

46%

Cost of sales

(5,256)

(3,311)

59%

Gross profit

1,495

1,324

13%

22%

29%

Gross profit margin
Distribution and selling expenses

(856)

(600)

43%

General and administrative expenses

(308)

(229)

34%

(13)
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Other operating income/(expenses), net
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in mln Rubles

2011

2010

% change

Operating profit

318

527

-40%

Operating profit margin

5%

11%

Depreciation included in Operating Profit

245

156

Other operating (income) /expenses, net

13

(32)

Adjusted EBITDA

577

651

Adjusted EBITDA margin

9%

14%

Other
In 2011 Other operating income of holding companies
included 2,050 million rubles of intercompany
dividends (2010: nil) that is netted out of our
consolidated results owing to inter-segment
eliminations.
In March 2011 5% shares of ROS AGRO PLC were
granted by the controlling shareholder to the Group’s
CEO as part of his compensation package. The
difference between the fair value of the shares granted
and the considerations received is expensed in
statement of comprehensive income under the
headings “Share-based remuneration”. Details of the
transaction and its accounting treatment are disclosed

57%

-11%

in note 24 of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. For the purpose of segment information
we allocated share-based remuneration to “Other”.

Eliminations
Increase in white sugar stocks at the end of 2011
compared to 2010 gave reason for significant
unrealized gain as at 31 December 2011, aroused on
sales of sugar beet from Agro segment to Sugar
segment, and unrealized fair value revaluation of sugar
beet produced in 2011. As a result the net negative
effect of inter-segment elimination on Adjusted
EBITDA figure increased from 120 million rubles in
2010 to 1,008 million rubles in 2011.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW – KEY INDICATORS
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

Net Operating cash flow, incl.

2,875

4,106

-30%

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

4,754

7,385

-36%

(1,530)

(2,676)

-43%

Net Cash flows from investing activities, incl.

(19,998)

(7,995)

150%

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

(10,845)

(2,923)

271%

17,410

6,558

165%

337

2,662

-87%

Working capital changes

Net cash from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net cash from operating activities decreased by 30%
from 4,106 million rubles in 2010 to 2,875 million
rubles in 2011 as result of negative changes in
operating profit that was partly offset by favorable
changes in working capital.
Capex investments in 2011 totaled 10,845 million
rubles, 271% higher than in 2010 primarily due to

% change

purchases of property and equipment in Agricultural
division of 4.9 billion rubles, in Meat division of 4.3
billion rubles and in Sugar division of 1.5 billion rubles.
Capex investments in 2010 totaled 2,923 million
rubles with major investments in Agricultural division
in the amount 1.3 billion rubles and Sugar division in
the amount 1.4 billion rubles.

ROS AGRO PLC

Adjustments:
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For the capital expenditure financing purposes the
Group uses both its own resources and long-term loans
(typically with maturities of seven years) with the
partial rebates of the interest expenses incurred
provided by the State.

One of the main factors of increasing net cash from
financing activities was the Group’s IPO that attracts in
the Group 8,227 million rubles, net of transaction
costs.

DEBT POSITION AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT
in mln Rubles

(***) LTM – The
abbreviation for
the “Last twelve
months”.

At 31 December
2011

At 31 December
2010

Gross debt

31,972

19,472

64%

Short term borrowings

17,129

11,210

53%

Long term borrowings

14,843

8,262

80%

Net debt

11,877

8,672

37%

Short term borrowings, net

(2,563)

509

-

Long term borrowings, net

14,440

8,163

77%

5,154

7,880

-35%

2.3

1.1

Adjusted EBITDA (LTM***)
Net debt/Adjusted EBITDA (LTM)

Despite net debt increase, resulted basically from bank
credits obtained to finance investment projects, and
decrease in Adjusted EBITDA for reasons described
above, ratio Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA (LTM) totaling
2.3 as at 31 September 2011 remains on safe and
comfortable level.

% change

Net debt is well balanced by maturity and demonstrates
the stable financial position of the Group. Group Treasury
aims to maintain low currency risk in deposit and credit
portfolio thereby all our borrowings and basically all our
bank deposits are nominated in Russian Rubles.
On 31 December 2011 the Group has kept committed
credit lines available in the amount 15.5 billion rubles.

NET FINANCE EXPENSE
in mln Rubles

2011

2010

% change

Net interest expense

(720)

(790)

-9%

Gross interest expense

(1,999)

(1,689)

18%

1,279

899

42%

Interest income

882

433

104%

Other financial income/(expenses), net

(76)

5

-

86

(352)

-

Reimbursement of interest expense

TOTAL NET FINANCE EXPENSES

As an agricultural producer Rusagro benefits from
government support in the form of government grants
for repayment of interest paid. All gross debt excluding
trade financing as at 31 December 2011 can be
subsidized.

successfully resolve professional tasks and support
constructive team relations.
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The average number of staff in the Group in 2011 was
10,804. This number is 15% lower than in 2010 and
reflects the results of Group efforts to increase labor
productivity within units. Despite the reduction in the
average number of staff all Group businesses attained
high operating results in 2011.

ROS AGRO PLC

Corporate social responsibility is an integral and
essential part of the Group. As a company that
produces food goods we understand the importance
of the quality of our products for the health and
well-being of people. We believe our mission is the
innovative, environmentally safe, quality and
economically effective satisfaction of the needs of
society in the food industry sector. As a responsible
taxpayer, creating new jobs in the regions where it is
present, the Group enables their progressive
development. We pay close attention to supporting
good relations with society and treat our employees
responsibly.

Average salaries increased in all divisions in 2011 –
there were increases of 14% compared to 2010 in the
sugar segment; 48% and 53% in the agriculture
segment; 6% in the oil and fats segment and 13% in
the meat segment.

Management of human capital
The employees of the Group are its most valuable
resource. We strive to create a workplace that
stimulates the best professional and human qualities of
our staff.
The companies within the Group do not discriminate
against sex, age, race or nationality, religion, political
beliefs, sexual orientation and so on.
We strive to:
• Ensure stable and decent wages and working
conditions, in accordance with legislation;
• Ensure the necessary level of labour protection and
industry safety in accordance with legislation and
the Group’s internal documents;
• Provide social security, medical aid and other
elements of corporate social responsibility in line
with the programs carried out by the companies of
the Group;
• Build long-term relationships with employees,
provide employees with adequate trust and ensure
open dialogue;
• Develop and improve training systems, incentives
and employee potential evaluation;
• Support staff initiatives and desire for selfdevelopment, improving professional competency
and implementation of challenging tasks;
• Support an atmosphere of cooperation,
understanding and stability.
Interaction between management and staff is built on
respect for the person and is focussed on results to
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Сorporate social responsibility

The RUSAGRO Group provides employees with the
following social benefits: voluntary medical insurance,
compensation for use of personal transport for work,
non-resident housing, special clothing, annual medical
examinations.

Labour protection
and industrial safety
The labour protection system at Group companies fully
complies with legislation, on the basis of which
measures are carried out to ensure a high level of
efficiency and safety in production. The Company
invests in work protection measures, such as special
clothing, individual protection means for personnel
working with chemicals, special literature and
healthcare.
Group companies are constantly carrying out staff
training and special safety training sessions are carried
out.
The observance of labour protection standards are
constantly monitored by the government Labour
Inspectorate.
The Group companies observe all applicable
environmental legislation. Special attention is paid to
observance of biological and veterinary safety in
livestock units. Our pig farms are designed and built on
the recommendations of leading international
specialists. The Company adheres to the most
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Среднесписочная численность персонала
на предприятиях Группы в 2010 2011 годах

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
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Средняя зарплата на производственных и операционных предприятиях Группы в 2010 2011 годах, тыс. руб./мес.
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up-to-date standards in this area to breed high quality
animals and reduce the risk of diseases:
• Geographic separation – the land on which the
pig farms are located are controlled by the Group.
There are no other animal breeding complexes or
household farms within a 10 km zone around our
farms. Our farms are located 1 to 3 km from each
other, helping to prevent the spread of infection;
• Territorial specialization – animals of different
generations and different production functions
are kept separately to prevent the spread of
diseases;
• Restricted access – access to areas inside the pig
farms is strictly controlled and restricted. Each site
is equipped with showers and any visitor must take
a shower before entering and exiting and must
leave personal belongings outside the facility and
use special clothing and footwear inside. Vehicles

only enter the territory after being washed and
disinfected. Entry and exit by personnel, visitors and
vehicles is registered;
• Feed quality control – all feed ingredients are
constantly lab controlled, including control
over quality, cleanliness, absence of pathogenic
elements, infections and toxic substances. All feed
undergoes thermal treatment, which prevents the
spread of disease through feed;
• Strict sanitary procedures – production sites are
regularly cleaned and disinfected. We employ the
all in/all out principle, i.e. filling the production site
exclusively with animals of one generation. After
the breeding period is complete the empty area is
cleaned and disinfected;
• Vaccinations – animals are regularly vaccinated to
prevent any known diseases;

Сorporate social responsibility
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Protecting the environment
We pay great attention to production safety and
minimizing the impact on the environment in all regions
where our divisions operate. In all our companies we
continuously monitor the discharge of wastewater and
air quality. The companies are equipped with treatment
facilities that comply with all the requirements of
applicable environmental legislation.
In 2011, the Group began to insert 100% of manure
into soil by a closed-type injection method, thereby
reducing ammonia concentration in the air.
In the reported year the oil and fats division continued
to research the recycling of husks and their processing
into heating oil.
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• Monitoring disease situations – our veterinary
specialists constantly monitor data on the spread
of any disease and study the latest scientific
achievements in the area of biological security
and veterinary safety. We attempt to promptly
respond to any outbreaks of disease in the
country, immediately ceasing the purchase of
feed from and animal supply to the regions where
cases of disease have been recorded. In 2011,
we actively participated in a regional program to
prevent the infiltration of African swine fever by
supporting the functioning of veterinary posts
and participation in the program to buy animals
from household farms unable to maintain the
necessary level of safety.
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Corporate governance system
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The RUSAGRO Group devotes considerable attention
to corporate governance, recognizing its importance
for maintaining business efficiency.
The fundamental corporate values of the Company are:
• professionalism and perfection, as conditions for
the successful implementation of our commitments
before interested parties;

• results and integrity, as permanent guidelines
for our activity and as a guarantee of our high
reputation;
• initiative and responsibility, as a means of ensuring
the development and competitiveness of the
Company;
• trust and respect, as the basis for constructive
interaction and mutual support.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE KEY GROUP'S COMPANIES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011:
ROS AGRO PLC (Cyprus)
100%

OJSC RUSAGRO GROUP
99.99%

LLC RUSAGRO GROUP OF COMPANIES

99.73%
98.55%

99.73%

100%

23.73%

100% 100%

OJSC VALUYKISAKHAR

LLC NEZHEGOL-AGRO

OJSC NIKA

OJSC
OSKOLSKIEPROSTORI

90.7%

LLC
AGROTECHNOLOGY

100%

OJSC RZHEVSKY SUGAR

LLCRUSAGRO-MOLOKO

OJSC OIL AND FATS
PLANT

100%

CJSC
RUSAGRO-AYDAR

LLC SAMARAAGROPROMPERERABOTKA

94.1%

OJSC ZHERDEVSKY
ELEVATOR

CJSC CHERNYANSKY
SUGAR PLANT
OJSC ZNAMENSKY
SUGAR PLANT
75.49%

100%

LLC RUSAGRO-INVEST

87.39%

74.9%

OJSC BELGORODSKIY
BACON

100%

LLC TAMBOVSKIY
BACON

100%

LLC RUSKIISAKHAR
100%
100%

LLC POLETAEVSKOE

LLC RUSAGRO-SUGAR

The Company began to optimize its corporate-legal
structure in 2010 with the aim of increasing
transparency and reducing expenses. At the end of
2011, two key legal entities were established in the
agriculture unit (RUSAGRO – Invest in Belgorod and
Agrotechnology in Tambov), accumulating the core
assets of the agriculture business in the indicated
regions. In the sugar unit, the establishment of a single
legal entity was completed (through the merger of the

Zherdevsky Sugar Plant and Nikiforovsky Sugar Plant to
the Znamensky Sugar Plant) in Tambov region.
Completion of the sugar plant merger in Belgorod region
(merging RzhevskySakharnik, Nika and Chernyansky
Sugar Plant to Valuykisakhar) is completed in 2012.
The Company’s core corporate governance
documents are:
• Company Charter

50%

Corporate governance
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GENERAL
SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING

BOARD
OF DIRECTORS
(with two
independent
directors)

General shareholders meeting
The highest management body of the Company is the
General Shareholders Meeting. The Annual General
Meeting (hereafter – "AGM") is held once per year.
Shareholder meetings held outside of the AGM are
considered extraordinary meetings. Shareholder
meetings are held at: Mykinon 12, LAVINIA COURT,
6th floor, 1065, Nicosia, Cyprus. If the location for the
meeting has to be changed the Company Board of
Directors will determine the date and place of the
AGM and extraordinary meetings.
The General Shareholders Meeting holds exclusive
authority to:
• Announce payment of Company share dividends;
• Make decisions to issue shares and other securities;
• Make decisions to acquire shares issued previously
by the Company;
• Approve the Company financial report;
• Review of reports from auditors, Board of Directors;
• Elect members to the Board of Directors;
• Elect an auditor for the Company and determine
their remuneration;
• Approval of Company share acquisition by Board of
Directors members;
• Make decisions on Company liquidation.

Board of directors
The Board of Directors is a collective management
body that carries out the overall management of the
Company, with the exception of matters that are

In accordance with the Charter, the Company’s
management system bodies consist of the following levels:
• General Shareholders Meeting;
• Board of Directors;
• Board Audit Committee;
• Managing Director.

BOARD AUDIT
COMMITTEE

MANAGING
DIRECTOR

within the exclusive authority of the General
Shareholders Meeting.
In accordance with the Company Charter, the number of
Directors should be no less than two and no more than
five, of which at least two should be independent directors.
The Board of Directors was elected at the
AGM on February 9 2011:
1. Mr. Richard Smyth, Chairman of the Board of
Directors (independent director)
2. Mr. Marcus Rhodes, board member (independent
director)
3. Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya, board member
4. Ms. Ganna Khomenko, board member, Company
Managing Director and Compliance Officer
5. Mr. Maxim Basov, board member and LLC Rusagro
Group of Companies General Director
In November 2011 Mr. Marcus Rhodes left the Board
of Directors.
Instead of him Mr. Televantides was elected as a new
independent director of the Company at the AGM on
November 25, 2011. The current composition of the
Board of Directors is the following:
1. Mr. Richard Smyth, Chairman of the Board of
Directors (independent director)
2. Mr. Tassos Televantides (independent director)
3. Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya, board member
4. Ms. Ganna Khomenko, board member, Company
Managing Director and Compliance Officer
5. Mr. Maxim Basov, board member and LLC Rusagro
Group of Companies General Director.
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• Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for
ROS AGRO PLC and companies in the group
• Code of Conduct regarding insider information for
ROS AGRO PLC and companies in the group
• Provision on the ROS AGRO PLC Board of Directors
• Provision on the ROS AGRO PLC Board Audit
Committee
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Richard Andrew Smyth
Board Chairman

ROS AGRO PLC

Richard Andrew Smyth was born in 1962. He graduated from Oxford University in the UK in 1984.
He was appointed Board Chairman in February 2011. He became Mars regional president
in Central Europe and the CIS in January 2009 and was a general manager at LLC Mars from 2003 to 2009.

Tassos Televantides

Member of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the ROS AGRO (Cyprus) Board Audit Committee
Tassos Televantides was born in 1948. He is a certified auditor of the highest category.
He was elected a member of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Board Audit Committee in November 2011.
Tassos Televantides has been Chairman of CyproDirectLimited since 2008. He was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cyprus for over 20 years. He has held directorships in a Canadian pharmaceuticals group, Norwegian construction and drilling
company, Gazprombank – Financial Services and Olivant Investments. He has been the Board Chairman at Limassol Bishopric
since 2009. He was a member of the ICPAC Board of Directors from 1994 to 1998 and was the Honorary Treasurer of the
Limassol Chamber of Commerce and Industry from 2002 to 2008.

Natalia Alekseevna Bykovskaya

Member of the Board of Directors and Board Audit Committee
Natalia Bykovskaya was born in 1971.
She was elected to the Board of Directors in February 2011. She was appointed LLC Rusagro-Sugar Deputy General Director
in 2004. Natalia Alekseevna was Deputy General Director of LLC Rusagro-Management from 2006 to 2007. She has been
Deputy General Director of LLC Rusagro Group of Companies since 2007. She is a member of the OJSC RUSAGRO Group
Board of Directors and Management Board.

Ganna Khomenko

Member of the Board of Directors and Board Audit Committee, Managing Director and Compliance
Officer
Ganna Khomenko was born in 1977. She studied international law at the Taras Shevchenko Institute in Ukraine and continued
her studies at Keele University in the UK, where she obtained a dual degree in law and international policy.
From 2007-2009, she was the CEO and a member of the Board of Directors of IFG Trust (Cyprus) Limited, specializing
in financial services for companies whose shares were traded on the London and Dublin stock exchanges. Before 2007,
Ms. Khomenko was Manager of the Corporate Department of Excel-Serve Management (Cyprus).
She is currently Managing Partner at Fudiciana Trust (Cyprus) Limited.

Maxim Dmitrievich Basov

Board member and LLC Rusagro Group of Companies General Director
Maxim Dmitrievich was born in 1975. He graduated from New York University in the United States, where he majored in
Economy and Finance, International Business and Philosophy.
He was elected member of the Board of Directors in February 2011. He is OJSC RUSAGRO Group General Director and has
led the Group since it was established. He was appointed General Director of LLC Rusagro Group of Companies on July 6
2009. He has previously held management positions at Severstal, Kuzbassugol, Severstal Resource and Interpipe. He led the
Metalloinvest Holding Company from April 2006 to May 2009.

Four face-to-face Board of Directors meetings were
held in 2011.

Board committees
To increase the efficiency of the Board of Directors
work a Board Audit Committee was established, the
main objective of which is to help the Board of

Directors with financial reporting, internal control and
audit. Detailed information on the Committee is
provided in the section Internal Control & Audit.
Four face-to-face Board Audit Committee meetings
were held in 2011.

Corporate governance

Annual Report 2011

41

Management
experience, enabling successful development of the
Group.

Maxim Dmitrievich Basov

Board member and LLC Rusagro Group of Companies General Director
The profile for Mr. Basov can be found in section Board of directors.

Vladimir Sergeevich Gromov

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Group First Deputy General Director in charge of M&A, Capital
Markets and Investor Relations
Vladimir Gromov was born on October 12 1973 in Moscow. He graduated from the Ordzhonikidze State Academy of
Management in 1995 with a degree in economics and production management. He held management posts at SBS-Agro from
1996.
He joined the RUSAGRO Group in 1999 as deputy financial director and was later promoted to Financial Director. In May 2005
he was appointed Deputy General Director for Economy and Finance at LLC Rusagro Group of Companies.
From August 2007 to July 2009, Mr.Gromov was General Director of LLC Rusagro Group of Companies.

Olga Alexeevna Petrova

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Financial Director
Olga Petrova was born on October 1 1974.She graduated from Omsk Technology Institute in 1995. She was Chief Accountant
at Russian Industrial Bank from 1999 to 2002. In 2002 she was appointed Audit Director at Planet Management/Unimilk and
worked as Financial Director of Unimilk from 2006 to 2009.
She was appointed LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Financial Director in August 2009.

Svetlana Borisovna Krinichnaya

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Personnel Director
Svetlana Krinichnaya was born on June 1 1968. She graduated from the Irkutsk Foreign Languages University in 1992 and
completed the international Personnel Management program, offered by the St. Petersburg Economics and Finance University
together with the Pierre Mendes-France University in Grenoble, France.
She has held personnel management posts at Telenor Media AS, OJSC Severstal Resource and LLC Severstal Gold.
She was appointed LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Personnel and Organizational Development Director in October 2011.

Vadim Arkadyevich Zaitsev

Deputy General Director for Legal and Corporate Affairs
Vadim Zaitsev was born on December 24 1969. He graduated from the Moscow Military Institute of Foreign Languages in
1992.
He obtained an MA in Law from the University of New South Wales, Sydney “UNWS, Australia in 2002.
He has worked as legal department chief at the Razgulyai Group, investment company Arlan and direct investment fund
Invest AG.
He was appointed LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Deputy General Director for Legal and Corporate Affairs in
November 2009.

Dmitry Nikolaevich Brekhov

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Internal Audit Department Head
Dmitry Brekhov was born on October 16 1971. He graduated from the Economics Faculty of Lomonosov Moscow State University in 1997. He holds the ACCA DipIFR diploma and a Russian Finance Ministry Audit Certificate.
He has worked in managerial internal audit posts at agriculture company Agrico and investment group Antanta Pioglobal.
He was appointed LLC Rusagro Group of Companies Internal Audit Department Head in October 2010.

ROS AGRO PLC

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies corporate
management have extensive and diverse business
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LLC Rusagro Group Divisions Management
Nikolai Alexandrovich Zhirnov
Head of the Sugar Division

Nikolai Zhirnov was born on January 5 1974 in Chelyabinsk. He graduated from Chelyabinsk State Technical University in 1996
with a degree in mathematical engineering in 1996.
He worked at Wrigley Russia from 1997 to 2005. His last post there was Divisions Manager.
He obtained an MBA from the Stockholm School of Economics in 2004.
He was General Director of Sportland Russia, the Russian division of Sportland International, from 2005 to 2009.
He was appointed LLC Rusagro-Center Commercial Director in September 2009.
Nikolai Zhirnov was appointed LLC Rusagro-Center General Director on October 31 2011.

Alexander Alexandrovich Pak
Head of the Meat Division in Belgorod

Alexander Pak was born on August 12 1972. He graduated from the Economics and Trade Faculty of Tashkent State University
in 1994.
He has held managerial posts at Bryansk Meat Combine, CJSC Renova-Product, CJSC Kirov Energomash, CJSC Atomenergo
and OJSC Krivorozhsky Iron Ore Plant.
He was appointed RUSAGRO Group Meat Division Head in November 2009.

Yevgeny Leonidovich Antipin

Head of the Tambov Bacon construction project
Yevgeny Antipin was born on June 4 1961 in Lensk, Sakha Republic, Yakutia.
He graduated from the Automobile and Roads Institute in 1988.
From 1990 to 2010, he worked in managerial posts at OJSC Kuzbassugol Coal Company, LLC Optima and LLC Regionstroy.

Konstantin Alekseevich Beldushkin

Head of the Agriculture Division in Belgorod since January 19 2012
Konstantin Beldushkin was born on February 17 1974. He graduated from Moscow State Institute of International Relations
with a diploma in international economic relations in 1996.
He has worked as deputy business chief for strategy development, investment and optimization at Interpipe Group
and Centerinvest Group and carried out strategy projects at Bain and Company.
From August 2009 to January 2012, Mr.Beldushkin was Strategy Director at LLC Rusagro Group of Companies.

Elena Viktorovna Leonova

Head of the Agriculture Division in Tambov since September 30 2011
Elena Leonova was born on October 24 1967 in Dzezkazgan, Kazakhstan. She graduated from the Agronomy Faculty of the
Kazakhstan Agriculture Institute with a degree in agricultural engineering in 1992.
Elena Leonova moved to Russia in 2000.
From 2002 to 2011 she has worked at companies such as LLC Prodimex, CJSC Terra Technology and LLC Terra Technology
Chernozemie and has held managerial positions at LLC Agro-Invest Management Company, LLC Sosnovka Agro-Invest and
Kastornoe Agro Invest.

Alexander Petrovich Demidenko

Head of the Oil and Fats Division in Yekaterinburg
Alexander Demidenko was born on July 26 1970 in Partizansk, Primorye territory. He graduated from the History Faculty of the
Far Eastern State University in Vladivostok in 1992.
From 1992 to 2007 he held managerial posts at American Power, Conversion, Mars and American Express.
From 2007 to 2010 he worked as General Director at Hygiene Kinetics and Russian Fish Company.
He was appointed Managing Director of the Oil and Fats Division and General Director of OJSC Oil and Fats Plant on March 9
2010.

Corporate governance
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Viktor Petrovich Rozbeiko

Head of the Oil and Fats Division in Samara region since April 2012

Key management personnel
remuneration
Remuneration the Company paid to
13 representatives of key management personnel in
2011 equalled 217 million rubles.

Risk management
The Company strives to identify, assess and minimize
the potential impact of risks on its activities and
endeavours to comply with international and national
risk management standards.

Internal control & audit
The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for
maintaining the Company’s internal control and audit
system. Internal control is carried out jointly by the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the
General Director with the aim of ensuring compliance
with legislation and the internal documents of the
Company, reporting reliability and high results.
The Board Audit Committee operates on the basis of
the Provision on the Board Audit Committee, in
accordance with the legislation of Cyprus, the
Company Charter, the Provision on the Board of
Directors and Company Board decisions. The
objectives of the Audit Committee are the following:
• Helping the Board of Directors take decisions on
reports and audits;
• Increasing the efficiency of the Board of Directors’
control over the Company’s financial and economic
activities through preliminary revision and drafting
of recommendations for the Board on issues that fall
within the competence of the Board;
• Creating an efficient system of control over
financial and economic activities and ensuring

Board participation in monitoring the financial and
economic activities of the Company.
Audit Committee members are elected by the Company
Board of Directors. The Committee includes three
members of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee
chairman can only be an independent director.
The previous Audit Committee was elected by the
Board on June 10 2011:
1. Mr. Marcus Rhodes (chairman);
2. Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya;
3. Ms.Ganna Khomenko.
The present Audit Committee was elected by the
Board on November 25 2011:
1. Mr.Tassos Televantides (chairman);
2. Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya;
3. Ms.Ganna Khomenko.
As well as the Audit Committee, internal control is
exercised in accordance with Russian legislation in
LLC Rusagro Group of Companies, which is part of the
Group. Control over financial and operating activity is
exercised by the internal audit office, headed by
Dmitry NikolaevichBrekhov. Mr.Brekhov was
appointed to this post in October 2010.

Share capital
Charter capital
Company charter capital on December 31 2011
consisted of 60,000,000 declared common shares and
24,000,000 issued common shares, with par value of
0.01 euros.
The Company carried out an Initial Public Offering
(IPO) on the London Stock Exchange in April 2011. The

ROS AGRO PLC

Viktor Rozbeiko was born on November 25 1966 in Ukraine.
He graduated from Dnepropetrovsk Mining Institute in 1990. Since 2001 he has held managerial posts in companies such as
Dnepropetrovsk Vtormet, Interpipe, Intervtorprom and Level.
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Company placed 4,000,000 shares (including GREEN
SHOE), issued by the Company and 1,000,000 shares
offered by controlling shareholders at $15 per GDR. The
global coordinators, bookrunners and lead managers
were Alfa Capital Holdings (Cyprus) Limited, London
Branch, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited and
Renaissance Securities (Cyprus) Limited.
The Company raised around $300 million from the IPO
not including commission expenses, and capitalization
during the IPO was $1.8 billion. The free float after the

IPO was 20.8% of charter capital and that slid toward
the end of the year to 19.72 % on December 31 2011.
The reduction in the free float was due to the Company
buying 1,290,999 GDR between September and
November 2011.
Trade codes for Company shares:
• Reuters – AGRORq.L
• Bloomberg – AGRO LI Equity
• Ticker LSE – AGRO

IPO AND CHARTER CAPITAL STRUCTURE CHANGES, 2011
Before IPO

Redistribution during IPO

Number
of shares

Share
of charter
capital, %

Redistribution
of existing
shares

19,000,000

95.00%

-1,000, 000

1,000,000

5.00%

Treasury shares

-

-

Free float

-

-

20,000,000

100%

Moshkovich family
Management

TOTAL

+ 1,000,000

Distribution
of new
shares

After IPO

On December 31 2011

Number
of shares

Share
of charter
capital, %

Number
of shares

Share
of charter
capital, %

18,000,000

75.00%

18,000,000

75.00%

1,000,000

4.17%

1,008,200

4.20%

-

-

258,200

1.08%

+ 4,000,000

5,000,000

20.83%

4,733,600

19.72%

+4,000,000

24,000,000

100%

24,000,000

100%

Information for shareholders
The Company delivers high business margins. The
Company respects the rights of all shareholders
equally, regardless of the number of shares they own,
and it adheres to the following principles:
• It seeks to minimize risks to investors. It discloses
the necessary information about its activities and
refrains from actions that might mislead investors;
• It makes every effort to increase its value for
customers, to avoid corporate conflicts and to
ensure a high level of corporate governance. It
follows and complies with a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics and other internal documents of
the Company.
The Company guarantees all its shareholders that it
will ensure all rights laid out in applicable legislation
and relating to Company commitments with regard
the trading of its shares on foreign stock exchanges.
The Company offers its shareholders help and support
to the best international standards of corporate
governance. The Company constantly works toward

simpler, more accessible, highly effective and less
costly implementation of shareholder rights.
The Company builds its relations with shareholders on
the basis of the best protection and non-violation of
shareholders rights.
The Company demonstrates its investment appeal for
investors as a share issuer. The foundation of the
investment appeal of the Company is its efficient and
effective operations, however, corporate governance
issues are especially important for the adoption of
positive investment decisions, especially regarding
openness and transparency.
Wanting to ensure a level of openness that
corresponds to the best international practice, the
Company compiles and promptly delivers to the
investment community all information that can have a
significant impact on the share price: annual and
quarterly reports, information about all significant
events and special analytical materials for investors.

Corporate governance
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COMPANY CHARTER CAPITAL STRUCTURE PRIOR
Структура уставного капитала Компании до IPO
TO IPO

COMPANY CHARTER CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Структура уставного капитала Компании после IPO
AFTER IPO

Source: Company data

Source: Company data

COMPANY CHARTER CAPITAL STRUCTURE ON
Структура уставного капитала Компании
DECEMBER 31 2011

COMPANY
GDR
QUOTES ON LONDON STOCK
Котировки
GDR
Компании
на
Лондонской фондовой
EXCHANGEG,
$ per GDRбирже, в $ за GDR

на 31 декабря 2011 года

16
Moshkovich family 75.00%
Management
4.20%
Treasury shares
1.08%
Free float
19.72%

11

6
May 2011

Jul 2011

Sep 2011

Dec 2011

Feb 2012

Source: Company data

Source: LSE website

The Company regularly reports on meetings between
Company leadership and key managers with the press
and the investment community as well as visits to
important production facilities and other events. The
Company provides equal access to all investment
community members to information about the
Company and takes care to exclude exclusive access
for certain groups of investors to this information.

• optimum combination of the interests of the
Company and shareholders;
• the need to develop the Company and increase its
investment appeal;
• transparent mechanism for determining the size of
dividends and their payment.

Dividend policy
The Company’s dividend policy is built on the
following principles:
• respecting the rights of shareholders under the
requirements of legislation;

The Company waived dividends in 2011. At the
present stage and in the next 3 years the Company
does not plan to pay dividends and will invest all net
profit in development. We are convinced that such a
policy is in the best interests of the company and its
shareholders.

ROS AGRO PLC

Moshkovich family 75.00%
Management
4.17%
Freefloat
20.83%

Moshkovich family 95.00%
Management
5.00%
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ROS AGRO PLC
International Financial Reporting Standards
Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
and Independent Auditor’s Report

ROS AGRO PLC's (formerly Matchzone Holdings Limited)
Parent company stand-alone financial statements and Independent Auditor’s Report as of 31 December 2011 available at the Company's web
site: http://www.rusagrogroup.ru/en
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Board of directors and other officers

Board of Directors
Mr. Richard Smyth
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Non-executive Director
Mr. Anastassios Televantides
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Non-executive Director
Mrs. Natalia Bykovskaya
Member of the Audit Committee
Executive Director
Deputy CEO of LLC Rusagro Group
Mrs. Ganna Khomenko
Member of the Audit Committee
Non-executive Director
Mr. Maxim Basov
Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer of OJSC Rusagro Group
and LLC Rusagro Group

Board Support
The Company Secretary is available to advise all Directors
to ensure compliance with the Board procedures.

Company Secretary
Fiduciana Secretaries Limited
12 Mykinon
Lavinia Court, 6th floor
CY-1065, Nicosia
Cyprus.

Registered office
12 Mykinon
Lavinia Court, 6th floor
CY-1065, Nicosia
Cyprus.

were made in the Meat division for construction of a
new pig-breeding farm in Tambov region and
expansion of capacity at the pig-breeding farm in
Belgorod region. The Agro division invested RR
4,852,839 thousand in expansion of the land bank and
acquisition of new agricultural machinery and
equipment.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group are the agricultural
production (cultivation of sugar-beet, grain and other
agricultural crops), cultivation of pigs, processing of
raw sugar and production of sugar from sugar-beet,
vegetable oil production and processing.

The Group’s critical estimates and judgments and
financial risk management are disclosed in Notes 2 and
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s contingencies are disclosed in Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Future developments
Review of developments, position and
performance of the Group’s business
In 2011 revenue grew by RR 8,759,585 thousand or
28%. The main reasons for growth were the increase
in sales volumes in all business segments and the
acquisition of a new oil processing plant in Samara at
the beginning of the year. The price factor played a
different role in revenue dynamics in different
segments: positive in Sugar, Meat and Oil
Yekaterinburg, and negative in the Agro division.
Adjusted EBITDA decreased by RR 2,725,399 thousand
or 35%. The decrease came from the Sugar division
where we faced a broken correlation between
international and domestic prices at the end of the raw
sugar season, caused by the market participants’
expectations of a high sugar beet harvest, and the
decline in prices in the end of the year as a result of
which we moved sales to the first half of 2012 where we
expect a more favorable price situation. The Meat
division demonstrated positive dynamics in adjusted
EBITDA driven by favorable prices and an increase in
efficiency. Adjusted EBITDA in the Agro division
increased as a result of a yield increase that was partly
offset by adverse price changes.
In 2011 the Group investments in property, plant and
equipment amounted to RR 10,845,355 thousand on
cash basis. Investments of RR 4,279,324 thousand

The Group adheres to its strategy the main purpose of
which is to become the largest vertically integrated
agricultural company in the Russian market. In 2012
and beyond, the Group plans to continue
modernization and expansion of its production and
storage facilities in all business segments.

Results
The Group’s results for the year are set out on page 2
of the consolidated financial statements.

Dividends
Pursuant to its Articles of Association the Company
may pay dividends out of its profits. To the extent that
the Company declares and pays dividends, owners of
Global Depositary Receipts (hereafter also referred as
“GDRs”) on the relevant record date will be entitled to
receive dividends payable in respect of Ordinary
Shares underlying the GDRs, subject to the terms of
the Deposit Agreement.
The Company is a holding company and thus its ability
to pay dividends depends on the ability of its
subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Company in
accordance with the relevant legislation and
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The Board of Directors presents its report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of
ROS AGRO PLC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
as adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.
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contractual restrictions. The payment of such
dividends by its subsidiaries is contingent upon the
sufficiency of their earnings, cash flows and
distributable reserves. The maximum dividend payable
by the Company`s subsidiaries is restricted to the total
accumulated retained earnings of the relevant
subsidiary, determined according to the Russian law.

Directors sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures all obligations to shareholders are understood
and met. The Board believes it maintains a sound
system of internal control to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ investments in the Group.

Members of the Board of Directors
There were no dividends announced and paid during
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010.The Board of Directors does not recommend the
payment of a dividend and the net profit for the year is
retained.

Share capital
As a result of the initial public offering in April
2011(hereinafter also referred to as “IPO”), the
Company issued 4,000,000 new ordinary shares with
a par value of EUR0.01 per share and at a price of
US$75 per share. These shares were fully paid. In the
context of the IPO, the existing shareholders have also
sold 1,000,000 shares to the public. Each ordinary
share of the Company is represented by 5 GDRs. The
gross proceeds from the IPO, related to and receivable
by the Group, amounted to approximately RR 8.4
billion and the Group’s net transaction costs amounted
to approximately RR 217.3 million.
All changes in the share capital of the Group are
disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The role of the Board of Directors
The Company is governed by its Board of Directors
(hereafter also referred as “the Board”) which is
collectively responsible to the shareholders for the
successful performance of the Group.
The Board sets corporate strategic objectives, ensuring
that the necessary financial and human resources are
in place for the Group to meet its objectives and
reviewing management performance. The Board of

The members of the Board of Directors at 31
December 2011 and at the date of this report are
shown on page 1.The Board currently has 5 members
and all of them were appointed on 25 February 2011,
except Mr. Anastassios Televantides who was
appointed on 25 November 2011. Mrs Androulla
Papadopoulou and Mrs. Illiana Chatzisavva
Giannakou, who held at office on 1 January 2011,
resigned on 25 February 2011. Mr. Marcus Rhodes
who was appointed as Director on 25 February 2011,
resigned on 25 November 2011.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, one third of the Directors shall retire by
rotation and seek re-election at each Annual General
meeting.

Directors’ Interests
The Directors Mrs. Natalia Bykovskaya and Mr. Maxim
Basov held interest in the Company as at 31 December
2011.
The number of shares directly held by Mrs. Natalia
Bykovskaya as at 31 December 2011 is 200,000 (31
December 2010: nil), and in addition 17,799,996
shares (31 December 2010: 200,000) were held
indirectly through her family relationship with Mr.
Vadim Moshkovich.
Mr. Maxim Basov has no direct interest in the
Company as at 31 December 2011 (31 December
2010: none), the number of share held indirectly
(through an entity controlled by Mr. Maxim Basov) as
at 31 December 2011 is 1,008,200 (31 December
2010: nil).
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Audit Committee

The Company did not operate through any branches
during the year.

Treasury shares
On 25 August 2011, the Board unanimously resolved
that it is in the best interest of the Group to buy back
GDRs from the market for the total amount of up to
US$10 million. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has
totally acquired 1.29 million GDRs from the market,
through Renaissance Capital own name but on the
Group’s behalf, for a total cost of RR 303,750 thousand.

Going Concern
Corporate Governance
On 20 September 2011, the Company has approved
and adopted the following codes: Code of Conduct on
insider information and Code of Business Conducts
and Ethics (the “Codes”). In addition the subsidiary
company LLC “Group of Companies Ros Agro” was
instructed and authorized to adopt the New Edition of
the Codes and in its turn to instruct its subsidiaries and
affiliates to adopt the same Codes for mandatory
compliance by all employees.

Directors have access to all information necessary to
exercise their duties. The Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
based on the fact that, after making enquiries and
following a review of the Group’s budget for 2012,
including cash flows and borrowing facilities, the
Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Independent Auditors
Events after the balance sheet date
The events after the consolidated balance sheet date
are disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
By Order of the Board

Richard Smyth
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Limassol
26 April 2012

The Independent Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited, have expressed their willingness to continue
in office. A resolution giving authority to the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting.
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The Board of Directors has established an Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee is primarily
responsible for (i) ensuring the integrity of our financial
statements, (ii) ensuring our compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iii) evaluating our internal
control and risk management procedures, (iv) assuring
the qualification and independence of our
independent auditors and overseeing the audit process
and (v) resolving matters arising during the course of
audits and coordinating internal audit functions. The
Audit Committee consists of three members appointed
by the Board of Directors. The current members are
Mr. Anastassios Televantides (Chairman), Mrs. Natalia
Bykovskaya and Mrs. Ganna Khomenko.

Branches
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Board of Directors of ROS AGRO PLC (the
“Company”) is responsible for preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the
European Union (“EU”) and the requirements of the
Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate

By Order of the Board

Richard Smyth
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Limassol
26 April 2012

accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Each of the Directors confirms to the best of his or her
knowledge that these consolidated financial
statements (which are presented on pages 55 to 118)
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Cyprus
Companies Law, Cap. 113, and give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole.

Report on the consolidated financial
statements

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and the requirements of the
Cyprus Companies Law, Cap 113, and for such internal
control as the Board of Directors determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether theconsolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of theconsolidated financial statements.

ROS AGRO PLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of ROS AGRO PLC (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company, the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of ROS AGRO PLC

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap 113.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, City House, 6 Karaiskakis Street, CY-3032 Limassol, Cyprus
P O Box 53034, CY-3300 Limassol, Cyprus
T: +357 25 – 555 000, F:+357 – 25 555 001, www.pwc.com/cy

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Ltd is a member firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Ltd, each
member firm of which is
a separate legal entity.
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Ltd is a private company
registered in Cyprus (Reg.
No. 143594). A list of
the company's directors
including for individuals
the present name and
surname, as well as any
previous names and for
legal entities the corporate
name, is kept by the
Secretary of the company
at its registered office at
3 Themistocles Dervis
Street, 1066 Nicosia and
appears on the company's
web site. Offices in
Nicosia, Limassol, Larnaca
and Paphos.
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Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
Pursuant to the requirements of the Auditors and
Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts
Law of 2009, we report the following:
• We have obtained all the information and
explanations we considered necessary for the
purposes of our audit.
• In our opinion, proper books of account have been
kept by the Company.
• The consolidated financial statements are in
agreement with the books of account.
• In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,
the consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap. 113, in the manner so required.
• In our opinion, the information given in the
report of the Board of Directors is consistent with
theconsolidated financial statements.

Yiangos Kaponides
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors
Limassol, 26 April 2012

Other matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared
for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Section 34 of the Auditors and
Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts
Law of 2009 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whose
knowledge this report may come to.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)
31 December
2011

31 December
2010

Cash and cash equivalents

3

5,457,567

5,120,208

Restricted cash

3

29,618

305,276

Short-term investments

4

14,670,667

6,165,571

Trade and other receivables

5

2,315,475

2,237,468

Prepayments

6

507,009

906,444

ASSETS
Current assets

Current income tax receivable
Other taxes receivable
Inventories
Short-term biological assets

32,161

63,519

7

1,480,439

725,322

8

10,402,449

7,298,722

10

1,145,562

855,069

36,040,947

23,677,599

9

21,537,127

13,721,002

22

1,175,578

474,899

1,762,301

135,563

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Advances paid for property, plant and equipment
Long-term biological assets

10

880,048

703,676

Long-term investments

11

487,681

152,950

Deferred income tax assets

23

474,577

153,965

49,640

31,711

101,432

-

Total non-current assets

26,468,384

15,373,766

TOTAL ASSETS

62,509,331

39,051,365

Other intangible assets
Restricted cash

3

The accompanying
notes 1 to 30
form an integral
part of these
consolidated
financial
statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

ROS AGRO PLC
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(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

The accompanying
notes 1 to 30
form an integral
part of these
consolidated
financial
statements.

Notes

31 December
2011

31 December
2010

Short-term borrowings

13

17,129,130

11,209,711

Trade and other payables

14

1,889,143

1,934,441

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current income tax payable
Other taxes payable

15

Total current liabilities

80,049

26,639

499,915

475,859

19,598,237

13,646,650

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

13

14,842,960

8,262,101

Government grants

16

512,998

577,134

Deferred income tax liability

23

376,451

386,627

46,659

43,046

Total non-current liabilities

15,779,068

9,268,908

Total liabilities

35,377,305

22,915,558

85

Other non-current liabilities

Equity
Share capital

12

9,734

Treasury shares

12

(303,750)

-

Share premium

12

10,557,573

341,317

Share-based payment reserve

24

672,247

-

Retained earnings

15,851,492

15,385,050

Equity attributable to owners of ROS AGRO PLC

26,787,296

15,726,452

344,730

409,355

Total equity

27,132,026

16,135,807

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

62,509,331

39,051,365

Non-controlling interest

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 26 April 2012

Basov M.D.
Director of ROS AGRO PLC

Richard Smyth
Director of ROS AGRO PLC
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)
Year ended
31 December 2011

Year ended
31 December 2010

Sales

17

39,715,115

30,955,530

Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agriculture produce

10

3,320,938

2,572,854

Cost of sales

18

(34,377,027)

(24,683,471)

Gains less losses from trading sugar derivatives

27

(313,264)

1,214,660

8,345,762

10,059,573

Distribution and selling expenses

19

(2,454,778)

(1,641,600)

General and administrative expenses

20

(2,431,696)

(2,235,004)

Share-based remuneration

24

(672,247)

-

Other operating expenses, net

21

(245,955)

(204,815)

2,541,086

5,978,154

(720,264)

(789,554)

Interest income

882,376

433,222

Other financial (expenses)/ income, net

(75,787)

4,743

2,627,411

5,626,565

Gross profit

Operating profit
Interest expense

16

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

(207,565)

(511,427)

Profit for the year

23

2,419,846

5,115,138

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,419,846

5,115,138

2,364,732

5,078,430

55,114

36,708

2,419,846

5,115,138

2,364,732

5,078,430

55,114

36,708

2,419,846

5,115,138

103.57

253.92

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
Owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per ordinary share for profit attributable to the equity holders
of ROS AGRO PLC, basic and diluted (in RR per share)

25

The accompanying
notes 1 to 30
form an integral
part of these
consolidated
financial
statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

ROS AGRO PLC
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(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)
The accompanying
notes 1 to 30
form an integral
part of these
consolidated
financial
statements.

Notes

Year ended 31
December 2011

Year ended 31
December 2010

2,627,411

5,626,565

18-20

2,132,110

1,858,178

16

1,999,337

1,688,503

16, 21

(1,522,577)

(1,230,239)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense
Government grants
Interest income
Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce, net
Change in provision for net realisable value of inventory
Revaluation of biological assets, net
Change in provision for impairment of receivables and prepayments

(882,376)

(433,222)

10, 18

(660,904)

(100,349)

18

121,632

(23,592)

10, 18

(46,413)

(272,241)

19

Unrealised foreign exchange gain

39,522

(888)

(93,666)

(32,063)
75,959

Write-off of trade and other receivables

21

20,709

Share-based remuneration

24

672,247

-

Lost harvest write-off

21

16,673

191,425

Change in provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and
equipment

21

329,088

-

711

37,401

Other non-cash and non-operating expenses, net
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

4,753,504

7,385,437

Change in trade and other receivables and prepayments

424,162

(1,973,539)

Change in other taxes receivable
Change in inventories
Change in biological assets
Change in trade and other payables
Change in other taxes payable
Cash generated from operations

(755,116)

(155,307)

(1,158,960)

(2,044,903)

(381,132)

1,466

70,562

1,390,468

270,557

106,161

3,223,577

4,709,783

Income tax paid

(348,650)

(603,373)

Net cash from operating activities

2,874,927

4,106,410

(10,845,355)

(2,922,663)

(33,908)

(19,866)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of other intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

40,541

52,762

Investments in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

(1,963)

(1,469)

Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed
Purchases of promissory notes
Proceeds from sales of promissory notes
Proceeds from sales of other investments

-

204

(3,054,557)

(2,402,688)

2,626,002

2,402,796

-

4,500

12,733,790

3,020,000

(21,227,779)

(8,070,190)

(1,392,965)

(1,643,129)

Loans repaid

255,173

1,506,263

Interest received

722,807

383,141

Proceeds from cash withdrawals from deposits
Deposits placed with banks
Loans given

Dividends received
Movement in restricted cash
Net cash used in investing activities

5,782

1,021

174,226

(305,276)

(19,998,206)

(7,994,594)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

Notes

Year ended 31
December 2011

Year ended 31
December 2010

Cash flows from financing activities
28,454,169

15,099,244

Repayment of borrowings

(18,212,554)

(7,934,513)

(2,082,809)

(1,610,034)

(116,813)

(46,499)

Interest paid
Purchases of non-controlling interest
Sale of non-controlling interest
Proceeds from government grants

170

-

1,458,441

1,271,831
-

Proceeds from issue of own shares, net of transaction costs

12

8,227,414

Purchases of treasury shares

12

(303,750)

-

-

(169)

(14,664)

(221,554)

17,409,604

6,558,306

51,034

(7,835)

Dividends paid
Lease payments
Net cash from financing activities
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

337,359

2,662,287

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

3

5,120,208

2,457,921

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

3

5,457,567

5,120,208
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Proceeds from borrowings

The accompanying
notes 1 to 30
form an integral
part of these
consolidated
financial
statements.
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Сonsolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

ROS AGRO PLC

60

Notes

Balance at 1 January
2010
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Share
capital

Treasury
shares

Attributable to owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Share
premium

Sharebased
payment
reserve

Retained
earnings*

Total

Noncontrolling
interest

Total
equity

65

-

-

-

10,609,566

10,609,631

457,517

11,067,148

-

-

-

-

5,078,430

5,078,430

36,708

5,115,138

Share issue

12

20

-

341,317

-

-

341,337

-

341,337

Adjustment due to Group
restructuring

12

-

-

-

-

(341,317)

(341,317)

-

(341,317)

Acquisition of noncontrolling interest

22

-

-

-

-

38,371

38,371

(84,870)

(46,499)

Balance at 31 December
2010

85

-

341,317

-

15,385,050

15,726,452

409,355

16,135,807

Balance at 1 January
2011

85

-

341,317

-

15,385,050

15,726,452

409,355

16,135,807

-

-

-

-

2,364,732

2,364,732

55,114

2,419,846

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Share issue

12

9,649

-

10,216,256

-

-

10,225,905

-

10,225,905

Adjustment due to Group
restructuring

12

-

-

-

-

(2,042,425)

(2,042,425)

-

(2,042,425)

Purchases of
treasuryshares

12

-

(303,750)

-

-

-

(303,750)

-

(303,750)

Share based remuneration

24

-

-

-

672,247

-

672,247

-

672,247

Acquisition of subsidiaries

22

-

-

-

-

(51,746)

(51,746)

192,982

141,236

Acquisition of noncontrolling interest

12

-

-

-

-

197,329

197,329

(314,339)

(117,010)

-

-

-

-

(1,448)

(1,448)

1,618

170

9,734

(303,750)

10,557,573

672,247

15,851,492

26,787,296

344,730

27,132,026

Sale of non-controlling
interest
Balance at 31 December
2011

* Retained earnings in the separate financial statements of the Company is the only reserve that is available for distribution
on the form of dividends.

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1.Background
Description of the business

ROS AGRO PLC

These consolidated financial statements were prepared for ROS AGRO PLC (hereinafter the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively with the Company, the “Group”). The Group is ultimately controlled by
Mr. Vadim Moshkovich (hereinafter the “Owner”), who owns 74.17% of issued shares in ROS AGRO PLC (75%
together with his close family members) as at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: 99% of shares in the
previous holding company of the Group OJSC Rusagro Group, including 14.3% through ROS AGRO PLC). OJSC
Rusagro Group was the holding company of the Group up to January 2011. As part of restructuring by the Owner,
in January 2011 the remaining 85.7% of the issued ordinary shares of OJSC Rusagro Group were contributed by
the Owner to the charter capital of ROS AGRO PLC (Note 12). The principal subsidiaries obtained by the
Company as a result of the restructuring are shown below. The restructuring is accounted for as a transaction
between entities under common control (see Note 2.4).
The principal activities of the Group are:
• agricultural production (cultivation of sugar-beet, grain and other agricultural crops);
• cultivation of pigs;
• processing of raw sugar and production of sugar from sugar-beet;
• vegetable oil extraction and processing.

* OJSC Rusagro
Group was the
Holding company
of the predecessor
group up to
January 2011.

During the first half of 2011 the Company has successfully completed an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its
shares in the form of global depositary receipts (“GDR”). The Company’s GDRs (five GDRs representing one
ordinary share of the Company) are listed on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange under the symbol
“AGRO”. For further details please refer to Note 12.
The registered office of ROS AGRO PLC is at Mykinon 12, LAVINIA COURT, 6th floor, 1065, Nicosia, Cyprus.
The Group operates in the Russian Federation except for financial derivatives trading activity (Note 27).
Principal subsidiaries of the Group included into these consolidated financial statements are listed below:
Entity

Principal activity

Group’s share
in the share capital, %
31 December
2011

31 December
2010

OJSC Rusagro Group

Investment holding, financing

100*

n/a

LLC Rusagro Group

Investment holding, financing

100

100

Sugar segment
LLC Rusagro- Sakhar

Sugar division trading company, sales operations

100

100

OJSC Sugar Plant Zherdevsky

Beet and raw sugar processing

-**

99.9

OJSC Rzhevsky Sakharnik

Beet and raw sugar processing

99.7

99.7

OJSC Valuikisakhar

Beet and raw sugar processing

99.2

99.2

OJSC Nika Corp.

Beet and raw sugar processing

98.6

98.3

OJSC Sugar Plant Znamensky

Beet and raw sugar processing

99.2

95.3

OJSC Sugar Plant Nikiforovsky

Beet and raw sugar processing

-**

72.8

LLC Chernyansky Sugar Plant

Beet and raw sugar processing

100

100

Limeniko Trade and Invest Limited

Financial derivatives trading

100

100

87.4

97.6

Oil segment
OJSC Fats and Oil Integrated Works

Oil processing

** In December
2011 the Group
undertook legal
reorganization
in its Sugar
segment. Within
this reorganization
OJSC Sugar Plant
Zherdevsky and
OJSC Sugar Plant
Nikiforovsky were
merged into legal
entity OJSC Sugar
Plant Znamensky
*** In the first half
of 2011 the Group
undertook legal
reorganization
in its Other
agriculture
segment. Within
this reorganization
12 legal entities
in the Tambov
region and 12
legal entities in the
Belgorod region
were merged into
legal entities LLC
Agrotehnology
and LLC RusagroInvest,
respectively.
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Entity

Principal activity
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LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka

Oil extraction

Group’s share
in the share capital, %
31 December
2011

31 December
2010

74.9

n/a

Meat segment
OJSC Belgorodsky Bacon

Cultivation of pigs

100

100

LLC Tambovsky Bacon

Cultivation of pigs

100

100

Other agriculture segment
LLC Rusagro-Invest

Agriculture

100

100

LLC Agrotehnology

Agriculture

100

100

LLC Rusagro-Tambov

Agriculture

-***

100

LLC Agronik

Agriculture

-***

100

OJSC Zherdevsky Elevator

Grain elevator

94.1

84.6

LLC Rusagro Oskol

Agriculture

-***

100

LLC RusAgro-Invest

Investments, trading

-***

100

LLC Rusagro-Shebekino

Agriculture

-***

100

LLC Rusagro-Volokonovka

Agriculture

-***

100

LLC Rusagro-Zarechie

Agriculture

-***

100

LLC Nezhegol-Agro

Grain elevator

100

100

Operating Environment of the Group
The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market, including relatively high inflation
and high interest rates. Tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations and contributes to
the challenges faced by companies operating in the Russian Federation (Note 28). The future economic direction of
the Russian Federation is largely dependent upon the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures
undertaken by the Government, together with tax, legal, regulatory, and political developments.
The international sovereign debt crisis, stock market volatility and other risks could have a negative effect on the
Russian financial and corporate sectors. Management determined impairment provisions by considering the
economic situation and outlook at the end of the reporting period. Provisions for trade receivables are determined
using the ‘incurred loss’ model required by the applicable accounting standards. These standards require
recognition of impairment losses for receivables that arose from past events and prohibit recognition of
impairment losses that could arise from future events, no matter how likely those future events are.
The future economic development of the Russian Federation is dependent upon external factors and internal
measures undertaken by the government to sustain growth, and to change the tax, legal and regulatory
environment. Management believes it is taking all necessary measures to support the sustainability and
development of the Group’s business in the current business and economic environment.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap.113. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value, financial instruments categorized
as at fair value through profit or loss, revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, biological assets that are
presented at fair value less point-of-sale costs and agricultural produce which is measured at fair value less
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

point-of-sale costs at the point of harvest. The Group entities registered in Russia keep their accounting records in
Russian Roubles in accordance with Russian accounting regulations (RAR). These consolidated financial
statements significantly differ from the financial statements prepared for statutory purposes under RAR in that
they reflect certain adjustments, which are necessary to present the Group’s consolidated financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU.

The consolidated financial statements include the results, assets and liabilities of the entities restructured from the
Owner from the date where these entities were under the control of the Owner. The Group accounted for the
entities restructured under ROS AGRO PLC as business combinations amongst entities under common control
using predecessor method of accounting.
Change in presentation compared to information presented by predecessor group
In 2011 the Group changed the way in which it presents gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce and gain/
loss on revaluation of biological assets. In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the predecessor
group (that is the group under OJSC Rusagro Group) for the year ended 31 December 2010 a net gain/loss on
revaluation of biological assets (livestock) was included in "Other operating income, net" line of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. A gain arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce (harvested crops) at
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs was included as a separate line as part of the gross profit. Unharvested
crops were carried at the accumulated costs incurred, which at year-end approximated the fair value as little biological
transformation had taken place since the initial incurrence of the costs, due to the seasonal nature of the crops.
In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2011 all the gross gains
and losses arising from initial recognition of biological assets and agricultural produce and from changes in
fair-value-less-cost-to-sell of biological assets are included as a separate line "Gain/ (loss) on revaluation of
biological assets and agricultural produce" above the gross profit line. Although IFRS do not specify where, in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, gains or losses arising from initial recognition of biological assets and
agricultural produce and from changes in fair-value-less-cost-to-sell of biological assets should be presented, the
Group management believes that the new presentation enhances the quality, internal consistency and
comparability of the financial statements by providing more relevant information.
The amounts of gains or losses arising from initial recognition and revaluation of crops and livestock are separately
disclosed in Note 10. The effect of this change in presentation on the comparative information is summarised below:
Change in presentation to the comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2010:
Year ended 31 December 2010

Changed
presentation

Change in
presentation

As previously
presented

770,564

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Gain on initial recognition of agriculture produce

-

(770,564)

2,572,854

2,572,854

-

Cost of sales

(24,683,471)

(1,530,050)

(23,153,421)

Gross profit

10,059,574

272,241

9,787,333

Other operating income (loss), net

(204,815)

(272,241)

67,426

Operating profit

5,978,154

-

5,978,154

Gain/ (loss) on revaluation of biological assets and agriculture produce
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As of the date of the authorisation of these consolidated financial statements all International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and effective as at 1 January 2011 have
been adopted by the EU through the endorsement procedure established by the European Commission with the
exception of certain provisions of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” relating to
portfolio hedge accounting.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Change in presentation compared to information presented by predecessor group (continued)
In addition to the above, the inclusion of the Company as the new holding company impacted the statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2010 (Note 12). This impact was immaterial to all the line items affected. In
these circumstances, management considered whether omitting the opening statement of financial position at 1
January 2010 would represent a material omission of information. In management’s opinion, the omission of the
opening statement of financial position, where the changes do not materially affect any statement of financial
position and that fact is disclosed, is not material and is therefore permitted. Management considered that
materiality of an omission is measured against its ability to influence economic decisions of the users of the
financial statements.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognized in the financial statements and the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are
continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes certain
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements, and
estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period include:
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The estimation of the useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment is a matter of judgement based on the
experience with similar assets. The future economic benefits embodied in the assets are consumed principally
through use. However, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wear and tear, often result
in the diminution of the economic benefits embodied in the assets. Management assesses the remaining useful
lives in accordance with the current technical conditions of the assets and estimated period during which the
assets are expected to earn benefits for the Group. The following primary factors are considered: (a) expected
usage of the assets; (b) expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational factors and maintenance
programme; and (c) technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes in market conditions. Were the
estimated useful lives to differ by 10% from management’s estimates, the impact on the depreciation charge for
the year would be to increase it by RR 280,522 (2010: RR 211,003) or decrease it by RR 217,931 (2010: RR
161,300) (Note 2.6).
Fair value of livestock and agricultural produce
Fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of livestock at the end of each reporting period was determined using
the physiological characteristics of the animals, management expectations concerning the potential productivity
and market prices of animals with similar characteristics.
Fair value of the Group’s bearer livestock is determined by using valuation techniques, as there were no
observable market prices near the reporting date for pigs and cows of the same physical conditions, such as
weight and age. The fair value of the bearer livestock was determined based on the expected quantity of
remaining farrows and calves for pigs and cows, respectively, and the market prices of the young animals. The fair
value of mature animals is determined based on the expected cash flow from the sale of the animals at the end of
the production usage. The cash flow was calculated based on the actual prices of sales of culled animals from the
Group’s entities to independent processing enterprises taking place near the reporting date, and the expected
weight of the animals. Future cash flows were discounted to the reporting date at a current market-determined
pre-tax rate. In the fair value calculation of the immature animals of bearer livestock management considered the
expected culling rate.
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2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)
Fair value of livestock and agricultural produce (continued)
The fair value of consumable livestock is determined based on the market prices multiplied by the livestock weight
at the end of each reporting period.

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

10% increase

10% decrease

10% increase

10% decrease

(2,137)

Cows
Length of production usage in calves

2,834

(3,139)

1,791

Culling rates

(1,360)

1,379

(524)

532

Market prices for comparable bearer livestock in the same region

22,065

(22,065)

16,081

(16,081)

7,207

(3,982)

19,445

(19,052)

39,251

(39,251)

36,338

(36,338)

Pigs
Length of production usage in farrows
Market prices for comparable bearer livestock in the same region

The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs for agricultural produce at the time of harvesting was calculated
based on quantities of crops harvested and the prices on deals that took place in the region of location on or about
the moment of harvesting and was adjusted for estimated point-of-sale costs at the time of harvesting.
Impairment test of property, plant and equipment
As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group management determined that there were no indicators that would
necessitate performing an impairment test of property, plant and equipment.
Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates as
further detailed in Note 22.
Deferred income tax asset recognition
The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable
profits and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred income tax assets are recorded to the extent
that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits
that are probable in the future are based on a medium-term business plan prepared by management and
extrapolated results thereafter. The business plan is based on management expectations that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The key assumptions in the business plan are EBITDA margin and pre-tax
discount rate (Notes 22, 23).
Tax legislation
Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations (Note 28).
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Should key assumptions used in determination of fair value of bearer livestock have been 10% higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the fair value of the bearer livestock as at the reporting dates would be higher or
lower by the following amounts:
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Foreign currency and translation methodology
Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Group’s consolidated entities is the Russian Rouble (RR), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. The Russian Rouble has been chosen as the
presentation currency for these consolidated financial statements.
Translation of foreign currency items into functional currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Russian Roubles at the official exchange rate of the Central
Bank of the Russian Federation (CBRF) at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at
that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of the transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 Group accounting
Consolidation
Subsidiaries are those companies and other entities (including special purpose entities) in which the Group,
directly or indirectly, has an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to govern
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are presently exercisable or obtainable from presently convertible instruments are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group (acquisition date) and are deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries other than those
acquired from parties under common control. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any non-controlling interest.
The Group measures non-controlling interest on a transaction by transaction basis, either at: (a) fair value, or (b)
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree.
Goodwill is measured by deducting the net assets of the acquiree from the aggregate of the consideration
transferred for the acquiree, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree and fair value of an interest in
the acquiree held immediately before the acquisition date. Any negative amount (“negative goodwill”) is
recognised in profit or loss, after management reassesses whether it identified all the assets acquired and all
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed and reviews appropriateness of their measurement.
The consideration transferred for the acquiree is measured at the fair value of the assets given up, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed, including fair value of assets or liabilities from contingent
consideration arrangements but excludes acquisition related costs such as advisory, legal, valuation and similar
professional services. Transaction costs incurred for issuing equity instruments are deducted from equity;
transaction costs incurred for issuing debt are deducted from its carrying amount and all other transaction costs
associated with the acquisition are expensed.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be recovered. The Company and all of its
subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies consistent with the Group’s policies.
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2.4 Group accounting (continued)
Consolidation (continued)
Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results and of the equity of a subsidiary attributable to interests
which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. Non-controlling interest forms a separate
component of the Group’s equity.
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Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under common control
Business combinations involving entities under common control (ultimately controlled by the same party, before
and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory) are accounted for using the predecessor
basis of accounting. Under this method the consolidated financial statements of the acquiree are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the earliest period presented or, if later, the date when
common control was established. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary transferred under common control are
accounted for at the predecessor entity’s IFRS carrying amounts using uniform accounting policies on the
assumption that the Group was in existence from the date when common control was established. Any difference
between the carrying amount of net assets, including the predecessor entity's goodwill, and the consideration for
the acquisition is accounted for in these consolidated financial statements as an adjustment to retained earnings
within equity.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, if any.
The Group has applied the fair value as deemed cost exemption to items of property, plant and equipment
acquired before the date of its transition to IFRS, which was determined based on an independent valuation.
Subsequent additions made after date of transition to IFRS, are stated at cost.
Assets under construction are accounted for at purchase cost less provision for impairment, if required.
Costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Cost of replacing a major part or
component of property, plant and equipment items is capitalized and the replaced part is retired.
Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are included in operating profit or loss for the year within other operating income and expenses.

2.6 Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than land and assets under construction is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to the residual values over their estimated useful lives:
Asset category

Useful life, years

Buildings

20-50

Constructions

20-50

Machinery, vehicles and equipment
Other

3-20
4-6

ROS AGRO PLC

Purchases and sales of non-controlling interests
The Group applies economic entity model to account for transactions with owners of non-controlling interest.
Thedifference, if any, between the carrying amount of a non-controlling interest and the purchase consideration
is recorded as capital transaction in the statement of changes in equity. The Group recognises the difference
between sales consideration and carrying amount of non-controlling interest sold as a capital transaction in the
statement of changes in equity.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Depreciation (continued)

Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the month following the date they are ready for use. Land and
assets under construction are not depreciated.
The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the
asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the
end of its useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil if the Group expects to use the asset until the end of its
physical life. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

2.7 Biological assets and agricultural produce
Biological assets of the Group consist of unharvested crops (grain crops, sugar beets and other plant crops) and
livestock (pigs and cows).
Livestock is measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. Fair value at initial recognition is
assumed to be approximated by the purchase price incurred. Point-of-sale costs include all costs that would be
necessary to sell the assets. All the gross gains or loss arising from initial recognition of biological assets and from
changes in fair-value-less-cost-to-sell of biological assets are included as a separate line "Gain/ (loss) on
revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce" above the gross profit line.
At the year-end unharvested crops are carried at the accumulated costs incurred, which approximates the fair
value since little biological transformation has taken place since initial cost incurrence due to the seasonal nature
of the crops. Unharvested crop-growing costs represent costs incurred to plant and maintain seed crops which will
be harvested during the subsequent reporting period. Subsequent to the year-end unharvested crops are
measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. A gain or loss from the changes in the fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs is included as a separate line "Gain/ (loss) on revaluation of biological assets and
agricultural produce" above the gross profit line.
Upon harvest, grain crops, sugar beets and other plant crops are included into inventory for further processing or
for sale and are initially measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at the time of harvesting. A
gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
Bearer livestock is classified as non-current assets; consumable livestock and unharvested crops are classified as
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.8 Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Group tests goodwill for impairment at
least annually and whenever there are indications that goodwill may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to the
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. Such units or groups of units represent the lowest level at which the Group monitors
goodwill and are not larger than an operating segment. Gains or losses on disposal of an operation within a
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated include the carrying amount of goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of, generally measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit which is retained.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

2.9 Impairment of non-current assets

2.10 Financial instruments
Financial instruments – key measurement terms
Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or amortised cost as described
below.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair value is the current bid price for financial assets and current
asking price for financial liabilities which are quoted in an active market. For assets and liabilities with offsetting
market risks, the Group may use mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk
positions and apply the bid or asking price to the net open position as appropriate. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
other institution and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.
Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length transactions or
consideration of financial data of the investees are used to fair value certain financial instruments for which
external market pricing information is not available. Valuation techniques may require assumptions not supported
by observable market data. Disclosures are made in these financial statements if changing any such assumptions
to a reasonably possible alternative would result in significantly different profit, income, total assets or total
liabilities.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling
agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative
or holding costs.
Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any
principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred impairment
losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any
premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and
accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium (including fees
deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of related
items in the statement of financial position.
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The Group’s non-current assets except for deferred tax, biological assets and financial assets are tested for
impairment in accordance with the provisions of IAS 36, Impairment of Assets. The Group makes an assessment
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired at each reporting date, except for goodwill which is
tested at least annually regardless of whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication
exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made. IAS 36 requires an impairment loss to be
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at
the end of its life.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments – key measurement terms (continued)
The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding
future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable
interest instruments to the next interest repricing date except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit
spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such
premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate.
Classification of financial instruments
The Group classified its financial instruments into the following measurement categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables.
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments
A financial instrument is recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are initially recorded at fair value plus, for instruments not
at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best
evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference
between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observable markets.
Subsequently to initial recognition financial instruments are measured as described below.
Derecognition of financial instruments
The Group derecognises financial assets when (i) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the
assets have otherwise expired or (ii) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets or (iii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
but has not retained control. Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or
cancelled.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two subcategories: (i) assets designated as such upon
initial recognition, and (ii) those classified as held for trading.
Trading investments are securities or other financial assets which are either acquired for generating a profit from
short-term fluctuations in price or trader’s margin, or are included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
trading exists. The Group classifies financial assets into trading investments if it has an intention to sell them within
a short period after acquisition, i.e. within 1 to 3 months. Trading investments also include financial derivatives.
Trading investments are not reclassified out of this category even when the Group’s intentions subsequently
change.
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets designated irrevocably, at initial
recognition, into this category. Recognition and measurement of this category of financial assets is consistent with
the above policy for trading investments. Management designates financial assets into this category only if (a)
such classification eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or (b) a group of
financial assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information on that basis is
regularly provided to and reviewed by the Group’s key management personnel.
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2.10 Financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investments within twelve months of the reporting date.
Financial liabilities
All the Group’s financial liabilities fall into the following measurement categories: (a) held for trading which are
represented by financial derivatives and (b) other financial liabilities. Liabilities held for trading are carried at fair
value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss for the year in the period in which they arise. Other
financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.
Presentation of results from sugar trading derivatives
The Group engages in raw sugar derivative trading transactions through an agent on ICE Futures US primarily in
order to manage the raw sugar purchase price risk (Note 27). As such transactions are directly related to core
activity of the Group, their results are presented above gross profit as 'Gains less losses from trading sugar
derivatives' in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Management believes that the presentation
above gross profit line reflects the nature of derivative operations of the Group.
Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”)
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset and which have an impact on the amount or timing
of the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. If the Group determines that no objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. The primary factors that the
Group considers in determining whether a financial asset is impaired are its overdue status and realisability of
related collateral, if any. The following other principal criteria are also used to determine whether there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:
• any portion or instalment is overdue and the late payment cannot be attributed to a delay caused by the
settlement systems;
• the counterparty experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by its financial information that the
Group obtains;
• the counterparty considers bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation.
If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortised cost are renegotiated or otherwise modified because
of financial difficulties of the counterparty, impairment is measured using the original effective interest rate before
the modification of terms.
Impairment losses are always recognised through an allowance account to write down the asset’s carrying
amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments other
than those that the Group intends to sell in the near term. Loans and receivables comprise accounts receivable,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, bank deposits, unquoted promissory notes and loans issued. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account through
profit or loss for the year.
Uncollectible assets are written off against the related impairment loss provision after all the necessary procedures
to recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss for the year.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash held on demand with banks, bank deposits with original
maturity of less than three months, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost plus interest accrued using the effective
interest method.
Bank deposits with original maturities at the reporting date of more than three months and less than twelve
months are classified as short-term investments and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Bank deposits with original maturity at the reporting date of more than twelve months are classified as
long-term and are carried at amortised cost.

2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision made for
impairment of these receivables.

2.13 Prepayments
Prepayments classified as current assets represent advance payments to suppliers for goods and services.
Prepayments for construction or acquisition of property, plant and equipment are classified as non-current assets.
Prepayments are carried at cost less provisions for impairment, if any. If there is an indication that the assets, goods
or services relating to a prepayment will not be received, the carrying value of the prepayment is written down
accordingly and a corresponding impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

2.14 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling expenses.

2.15 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at their fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods,
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method; any difference between the amount at
initial recognition and the redemption amount is recognised as interest expense over the period of the borrowings.
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2.15 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a
substantial time to get ready for intended use or sale (qualifying assets) are capitalised as part of the costs of those
assets.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs that could have been avoided if it had not made capital expenditure on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs capitalised are calculated at the Group’s average funding cost (the weighted
average interest cost is applied to the expenditures on the qualifying assets), except to the extent that funds are
borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Where this occurs, actual borrowing costs
incurred less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings are capitalised.

2.16 Finance lease liabilities
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included as a finance lease liability within borrowings. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and an interest charge. The interest element is charged to the profit or loss using
the effective interest method over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability outstanding. Items of property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
lease are depreciated over shorter of useful life and the lease term.

2.17 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised when the counterparty has performed its obligations under the contract,
and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Value added tax
Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earlier of (a) collection of the
receivables from customers or (b) delivery of the goods or services to customers. Input VAT is generally
recoverable against output VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The tax authorities permit the settlement of VAT
on a net basis. VAT related to purchases where all the specified conditions for recovery have not been met yet is
recognised in the statement of financial position and disclosed separately within other taxes receivable, while
input VAT that has been claimed is netted off with the output VAT payable. Where provision has been made for
impairment of receivables, impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT.

2.19 Other taxes payable
Other taxes payable comprise liabilities for taxes other than on income outstanding at the reporting date, accrued
in accordance with legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues up to the date when the assets are substantially ready for their use or
sale.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Income tax
Income taxes have been provided for in the financial statements in accordance with legislation enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The income tax charge or credit comprises current tax
and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
Current tax
Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
profits or losses for the current and prior periods.
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on tax losses carry forward and
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax balance is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred
income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The Group's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the end of each reporting period. Liabilities
are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by management as more likely than not to result in
additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based
on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and any known court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than
on income are recognised based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligations at the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Employee benefits
Payroll costs and related contributions
Wages, salaries, contributions to the Russian Federation state pension and social insurance funds, paid annual
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year, in which the associated services
are rendered by the employees of the Group.
Pension costs
The Group contributes to the Russian Federation state pension fund on behalf of its employees and has no
obligation beyond the payments made. The contribution was approximately 13.6% (2010: 13.0%) of the
employees’ gross pay and is expensed in the same period as the related salaries and wages.
The Group does not have any other legal or constructive obligation to make pension or other similar benefit
payments to its employees.
Share-based payment transactions
Share-based payment transactions entered during the year with employees of the Group have been accounted
for as disclosed in Note 24.
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2.22 Provisions for liabilities and charges

2.23 Revenue recognition
Revenues and related cost of sales are recognised when goods are shipped and the title and significant risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the customer in accordance with the contractual sales terms. Sales are measured at
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the goods sold and services rendered, net of discounts
and value added taxes, and after eliminating sales between the Group companies.
The amount of revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services is measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the
goods or services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or
services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. Non-cash transactions are
excluded from the cash flow statement.
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.24 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker. Segments whose revenue, result or assets are ten percent or more of all the segments
are reported separately.

2.25 Government grants
Government grants comprise compensation of interest expense under bank loans and government grants relating
to costs and property, plant and equipment.
Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss as other operating income
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Compensation of interest expense under bank loans is credited to profit or loss over the periods of the related
interest expense unless this interest was capitalised into the carrying value of assets in which case it is included in
non-current liabilities as government grants and credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant. The loan is
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
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Provisions for liabilities and charges are recognised where the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Government grants (continued)

benefit of the below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the
loan determined in accordance with IAS 39 and the proceeds received.
Government grants are recognized at their fair value when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

2.26 Dividends
Dividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which they are declared and
approved. Any dividends declared after the reporting period and before the financial statements are authorised
for issue are disclosed in the subsequent events note.

2.27 Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to either settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.28 Operating leases
Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are charged to profit or loss for the year on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has
contracted to lease the asset together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to
lease the asset, with or without further payment, when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the
lessee will exercise the option (Note 29).

2.29 Share capital and share premium
Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dividends are both classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration receivable over the par value of shares issued is
recorded as share premium in equity. Share premium can only be resorted to for limited purposes, which do not
include the distribution of dividends, and is otherwise subject to the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law on
reduction of share capital.

2.30 Treasury shares
Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company’s equity instruments, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, net of income taxes, is deducted from equity attributable to
the Company’s owners until the equity instruments are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s owners.
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2.31 Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations
Certain new standards and interpretations became effective for the Group from 1 January 2011:

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in May 2010 and effective from
1 January 2011).The improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarifications in the following
standards and interpretations: IFRS 1 was amended (i) to allow previous GAAP carrying value to be used as deemed
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset if that item was used in operations subject to
rate regulation, (ii) to allow an event driven revaluation to be used as deemed cost of property, plant and equipment
even if the revaluation occurs during a period covered by the first IFRS financial statements and (iii) to require a
first-time adopter to explain changes in accounting policies or in the IFRS 1 exemptions between its first IFRS interim
report and its first IFRS financial statements; IFRS 3 was amended (i) to require measurement at fair value (unless
another measurement basis is required by other IFRS standards) of non-controlling interests that are not present
ownership interest or do not entitle the holder to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation, (ii) to
provide guidance on the acquiree’s share-based payment arrangements that were not replaced, or were voluntarily
replaced as a result of a business combination and (iii) to clarify that the contingent considerations from business
combinations that occurred before the effective date of revised IFRS 3 (issued in January 2008) will be accounted for
in accordance with the guidance in the previous version of IFRS 3; IFRS 7 was amended to clarify certain disclosure
requirements, in particular (i) by adding an explicit emphasis on the interaction between qualitative and quantitative
disclosures about the nature and extent of financial risks, (ii) by removing the requirement to disclose carrying amount
of renegotiated financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired, (iii) by replacing the requirement to
disclose fair value of collateral by a more general requirement to disclose its financial effect, and (iv) by clarifying that
an entity should disclose the amount of foreclosed collateral held at the reporting date, and not the amount obtained
during the reporting period; IAS 1 was amended to clarify the requirements for the presentation and content of the
statement of changes in equity; IAS 27 was amended by clarifying the transition rules for amendments to IAS 21, 28
and 31 made by the revised IAS 27 (as amended in January 2008); IAS 34 was amended to add additional examples of
significant events and transactions requiring disclosure in a condensed interim financial report, including transfers
between the levels of fair value hierarchy, changes in classification of financial assets or changes in business or
economic environment that affect the fair values of the entity’s financial instruments; and IFRIC 13 was amended to
clarify measurement of fair value of award credits. The above amendments resulted in additional or revised
disclosures, but had no material impact on measurement or recognition of transactions and balances reported in these
financial statements. The financial effect of collateral required to be disclosed by the amendments to IFRS 7 is
presented in these financial statements by disclosing collateral values separately for (i) those financial assets where
collateral and other credit enhancements are equal to, or exceed, carrying value of the asset (“over-collateralised
assets”) and (ii) those financial assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are less than the carrying value
of the asset (“under-collateralised assets”)
Unless otherwise stated above, the amendments and interpretations did not have any significant effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Amendment to IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures(issued in November 2009 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011). IAS 24 was revised in 2009 by: (a) simplifying the definition of a related
party, clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating inconsistencies; and by (b) providing a partial exemption
from the disclosure requirements for government-related entities. As a result of the revised standard, the Group
now also discloses contractual commitments to purchase and sell goods or services to its related parties
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.32 New accounting pronouncements
Certain new standards and interpretations have been published that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 or later periods and which the Group has not early adopted:
Adopted by the European Union
Disclosures—Transfers of Financial Assets – Amendments to IFRS 7 (issued in October 2010 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011). The amendment requires additional disclosures in
respect of risk exposures arising from transferred financial assets. The amendment includes a requirement to
disclose by class of asset the nature, carrying amount and a description of the risks and rewards of financial assets
that have been transferred to another party, yet remain on the entity's balance sheet. Disclosures are also required
to enable a user to understand the amount of any associated liabilities, and the relationship between the financial
assets and associated liabilities. Where financial assets have been derecognised, but the entity is still exposed to
certain risks and rewards associated with the transferred asset, additional disclosure is required to enable the
effects of those risks to be understood.The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on
disclosures in its financial statements. The amendment does not expect to have any impact on the Group's
financial statements.
Not yet adopted by the European Union
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement. IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, replaces
those parts of IAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was further
amended in October 2010 to address the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and in December
2011 to (i) change its effective date to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 and (ii) add transition
disclosures. Key features of the standard are as follows:
• Financial assets are required to be classified into two measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.
• An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a debt instrument and both (i) the
objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and (ii) the
asset’s contractual cash flows represent payments of principal and interest only (that is, it has only “basic loan
features”). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
• All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments that are held for
trading will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable
election can be made at initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
through other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to
be presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.
• Most of the requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried
forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to present the effects of
changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in other
comprehensive income.
While adoption of IFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2015, earlier adoption is permitted subject to EU
endorsement. The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the impact on the Group and the timing
of its adoption by the Group.
IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013), replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in IAS 27
“Consolidated and separate financial statements” and SIC-12 “Consolidation – special purpose entities”. IFRS 10
changes the definition of control so that the same criteria are applied to all entities to determine control. This
definition is supported by extensive application guidance. The Group does not expect the amendments to have
any material effect on its financial statements.
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2.32 New accounting pronouncements (continued)
Not yet adopted by the European Union (continued)

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement, (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013), aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a revised definition of
fair value, and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The
Group does not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its financial statements.
IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements,(revised in May 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013), was changed and its objective is now to prescribe the accounting and disclosure
requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate
financial statements. The guidance on control and consolidated financial statements was replaced by IFRS 10,
Consolidated Financial Statements.The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its
financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (issued June 2011, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012), changes the disclosure of items presented in other comprehensive income.
The amendments require entities to separate items presented in other comprehensive income into two groups,
based on whether or not they may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future. The suggested title used by IAS 1
has changed to ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’. The Group expects the amended
standard to change presentation of its financial statements, but have no impact on measurement of transactions
and balances.
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Amendments to IAS 32 (issued in December 2011 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendment added application
guidance to IAS 32 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria. This includes
clarifying the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and that some gross settlement
systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The Group is considering the implications of the
amendment, the impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.
Disclosures—Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Amendments to IFRS 7 (issued in
December 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). The amendment
requires disclosures that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off. The amendment will have an impact on disclosures but
will have no effect on measurement and recognition of financial instruments.
Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to significantly affect
the Group’s financial statements.
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IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013), applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint
arrangement, an associate or an unconsolidated structured entity. It replaces the disclosure requirements
currently found in IAS 28 “Investments in associates”. IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that helps
financial statement readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To meet these objectives,
the new standard requires disclosures in a number of areas, including significant judgments and assumptions
made in determining whether an entity controls, jointly controls, or significantly influences its interests in other
entities, extended disclosures on share of non-controlling interests in group activities and cash flows, summarised
financial information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests, and detailed disclosures of interests in
unconsolidated structured entities. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its
financial statements.
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3. Cash and cash equivalents
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Bank balances receivable on demand
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Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Interest receivable on bank deposits within cash equivalents
Cash in hand

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

150,496

755,824

5,284,584

4,359,500

22,152

4,550

335

334

5,457,567

5,120,208

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

5,365,940

5,062,739

US Dollars

72,876

57,469

Euro

18,751

-

5,457,567

5,120,208

Total

The Group had the following currency positions:
Russian Roubles

Total

The weighted average interest rate on cash at bank balances presented within cash and cash equivalents was
6.85% at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: 3.27%).
As at 31 December 2011 the cash amounts of RR 101,432 (2010: none) were restricted under irrevocable bills of
credit issued for purchases of property, plant and equipment and biological assets, which were included in
“Restricted cash” line within non-current assets in the statement of financial position.
As at 31 December 2011 the cash amounts of RR 29,618 (2010: none) obtained by OJSC Belgorodsky Bacon
under the government program for prevention of contamination and dispersion of African swine fever virus in
Belgorod region, were included in “Restricted cash” line within current assets in the statement of financial
position. This money is intended for compensation small local farmers their losses from the reduction of the
personal pigs’ livestock.
As at 31 December 2010 the cash amounts of RR 305,276 were restricted under irrevocable bills of credit issued
for purchases of raw sugar, operating lease rent payments in 2011 for land plots and purchases of unharvested
crops on those land plots, which were included in “Restricted cash” line within current assets in the statement of
financial position.

4. Short-term investments
Promissory notes
Interest receivable on promissory notes
Loans issued to third parties
Interest receivable on loans issued to third parties
Bank deposits
Interest receivable on bank deposits within financial assets
Total

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

1,057,595

600,182

7,710

4,142

107,610

426,355

26,982

22,857

13,193,732

4,980,800

277,038

131,235

14,670,667

6,165,571

Loans issued to third parties are denominated in Russian Roubles with interest rate varying between 0% and 12%
(31 December 2010: 0%-12%). The weighted average interest rate on the loans issued to third parties equals
9.09% (31 December 2010: 8.5%).

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

Promissory notes are denominated in Russian Roubles and are mainly represented by promissory notes of Russian
banks (Note 27). At 31 December 2011 promissory notes in the amount of RR 1,028,000 (31 December 2010: RR
600,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s obligations (Note 13).

In 2010 bank deposits in the amount of RR 980,800 placed in Alfa Bank were pledged as collateral for the
obligations of LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka to Alfa Bank. The Group’s deposits were provided as collateral
with a view of planned acquisition of ownership interest in LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka (Note 22).
The short-term investments within bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:
Russian Roubles

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

12,335,384

4,980,800

858,348

-

13,193,732

4,980,800

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

1,153,129

955,612

US dollars
Total

5. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables for government grants

141,263

-

Receivables under agent agreement for financial derivatives (Note 27)

955,138

1,247,336

Other
Less: provision for impairment (Note 27)
Total financial assets within trade and other receivables
Deferred charges
TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

65,626

71,815

(46,767)

(38,043)

2,268,389

2,236,720

47,086

748

2,315,475

2,237,468

The above financial assets within trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December 2011
Russian Roubles

31 December 2010

2,050,239

915,380

217,156

1,321,340

994

-

2,268,389

2,236,720

Trade receivables

Other receivables

US dollars
Euro
Total

Reconciliation of movements in the trade and other receivables impairment provision
As at 1 January 2010 (Note 27)

70,307

19,958

(Reversed)/ Accrued

(32,783)

22,664

Utilised

(15,982)

(26,121)

21,542

16,501

As at 31 December 2010 (Note 27)
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Bank deposits, include deposits placed in Alfa Bank in the amount of RR 6,326,399 (31 December 2010: none)
and in LOCKO-Bank in the amount of RR 400,000 (31 December 2010: none) pledged as collateral for the
Group’s obligations (Note 13).
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4. Short-term investments (continued)

Accrued

18,382

9,353

Utilised

(9,217)

(9,794)

As at 31 December 2011 (Note 27)

30,707

16,060
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6. Prepayments
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

158,408

75,259

Prepayments for fuel and energy

73,275

50,325

Prepayments for fertilizers

68,579

-

Prepayments to customs

23,782

17,707

Prepayments for transportation services

Prepayments for advertising expenses

7,842

33,386

-

607,207

Other prepayments

195,534

131,383

Less: provision for impairment

(20,411)

(8,823)

Total

507,009

906,444

Prepayments for raw sugar

Reconciliation of movements in the prepayments impairment provision
As at 1 January
Accrued
Utilised
As at 31 December

2011

2010

8,823

9,960

11,787

9,232

(199)

(10,369)

20,411

8,823

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

1,475,315

708,454

7. Other taxes receivable
Value added tax receivable
Other taxes receivable
Total

5,124

16,868

1,480,439

725,322

8. Inventories
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Raw materials

4,223,040

4,578,838

Finished goods

4,896,204

1,558,055

Work in progress

1,411,280

1,170,499

Less: provision for net realisable value

(128,075)

(8,670)

10,402,449

7,298,722

Total

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)
Annual Report 2011

9. Property, plant and equipment
Land and
buildings

Machinery, Constructions
vehicles and
equipment

Assets under
construction

Other

Total

As at 1 January 2010

7,683,547

8,522,068

588,733

377,958

144,478

17,316,784

Additions

17,194

1,680,464

4,102

1,147,436

17,931

2,867,127

Transfers

78,256

982,339

65,757

(1,134,651)

8,299

-

Disposals

(40,755)

(136,014)

(8,691)

(6,006)

(2,112)

(193,578)

Disposal through disposal
of subsidiaries

-

(32)

-

9

-

(23)

As at 31 December 2010

7,738,242

11,048,825

649,901

384,746

168,596

19,990,310

(1,244,409)

(3,066,456)

(119,015)

-

(56,925)

(4,486,805)

(437,732)

(1,355,732)

(90,303)

-

(19,672)

(1,903,439)

22,707

88,953

8,141

-

1,130

120,931

Disposal through disposal
of subsidiaries

-

5

-

-

-

5

As at 31 December 2010

(1,659,434)

(4,333,230)

(201,177)

-

(75,467)

(6,269,308)

6,078,808

6,715,595

448,724

384,746

93,129

13,721,002

As at 1 January 2011

7,738,242

11,048,825

649,901

384,746

168,596

19,990,310

Additions

2,437,039

1,604,863

12,319

5,020,721

19,580

9,094,522

221,356

588,268

340,941

7,591

-

1,158,156

Transfers

339,783

1,047,022

235,262

(1,615,694)

(6,373)

-

Disposals

(22,315)

(104,301)

(9,874)

(3,864)

(2,929)

(143,283)

10,714,105

14,184,677

1,228,549

3,793,500

178,874

30,099,705

(1,659,434)

(4,333,230)

(201,177)

-

(75,467)

(6,269,308)

(441,131)

(1,809,421)

(108,013)

-

(24,412)

(2,382,977)

5,686

80,159

2,495

-

1,367

89,707

(2,094,879)

(6,062,492)

(306,695)

-

(98,512)

(8,562,578)

8,619,226

8,122,185

921,854

3,793,500

80,362

21,537,127

Accumulated depreciation (Note 2.6)
As at 1 January 2010
Charge for the year
Disposals

Net book value as at 31
December 2010
Cost (Note 2.5)

Acquisitions through
business combinations
(Note 22)

As at 31 December 2011

Accumulated depreciation (Note 2.6)
As at 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals
As at 31 December 2011
Net book value as
at 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2011, property, plant and equipment with a net book value of RR 3,799,991 (31 December
2010: RR 6,326,643) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 13).
At 31 December 2010, the net carrying amount of leased assets included in machinery and equipment was RR
28,209. These leased assets were acquired under finance lease agreements from third party leasing companies
and were effectively pledged for finance lease liabilities as the risks and rewards for the leased assets revert to the
lessor in the event of default. In 2011 the Group made advanced repayment of finance lease liabilities and title for
the respective assets passed to the Group. As at 31 December 2011 there were no finance lease liabilities.
During the reporting period the Group capitalised in the assets under construction interest expenses of RR
148,433 (2010: RR 3,342). The average capitalisation rate was 9.51% (2010: 10.75%).

ROS AGRO PLC

Cost (Note 2.5)
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10. Biological assets
The reconciliation of changes in the carrying amount of biological assets between the beginning and the end of
the year can be presented as follows:

Short-term biological assets
Consumable
livestock, pigs
As at 31 December 2009
Increase due to purchases and gain arising from cost inputs
Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce
Decrease due to harvest and sales of the assets
Lost harvest write-off (Note 21)
Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
As at 31 December 2010

Unharvested
crops

Total

494,408

253,766

748,174

2,561,325

2,924,387

5,485,712

-

770,564

770,564

(4,196,550)

(3,500,957)

(7,697,507)

-

(191,425)

(191,425)

1,739,551

–

1,739,551

598,734

256,335

855,069

2,994,397

4,916,760

7,911,157

Acquisitions through business combinations (Note 22)

-

12,097

12,097

Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce

-

1,513,103

1,513,103

Lost harvest write-off (Note 21)

-

(16,673)

(16,673)

(4,682,230)

(6,271,564)

(10,953,794)

Increase due to purchases and gain arising from cost inputs

Decrease due to harvest and sales of the assets
Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
As at 31 December 2011

1,824,603

–

1,824,603

735,504

410,058

1,145,562

Lost harvest write-off in the year ended 31 December 2010 is represented by damage of crops due to unusual
severe weather conditions in 2010. RR 91,961 of this write-off was compensated to the Group through
government grants (Note 21).

Long-term biological assets
Bearer livestock

As at 31 December 2009
Increases due to purchases and breeding costs of growing stock
Decreases due to sales
Gain/ (loss) arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
As at 31 December 2010
Increases due to purchases and breeding costs of growing stock

Pigs

Cows

Total

493,960

229,479

723,439

125,215

79,999

205,214

(171,505)

(116,211)

(287,716)

95,075

(32,336)

62,739

542,745

160,931

703,676

355,306

140,832

496,138

(236,174)

(66,825)

(302,999)

Gain/ (loss) arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs

(48,570)

31,803

(16,767)

As at 31 December 2011

613,307

266,741

880,048

Decreases due to sales

In 2011 the aggregate gain on initial recognition of biological assets and agricultural produce and from the change in
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets amounted to RR 3,320,938 (2010: RR 2,572,854).
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10. Biological assets (continued)
Long-term biological assets (continued)

Arable land under plantation and livestock population were as follows:
Crops (ha)
Cows (heads)
Pigs within consumable livestock (tn)

31 December 2010

370,795

341,451

7,163

8,216

37,532

28,702

9,632

8,452

Cows are cultivated for the purpose of production of milk. In 2011 the milk produced amounted to 13,939 tonnes
(2010: 11,084 tonnes).
The main crops of the Group’s agricultural production and output were as follows (in thousands of tonnes):
2011

2010

2,300

917

Winter wheat

267

49

Barley

174

88

Sunflower

72

49

Pea

56

34

Corn

28

-

Sugar beet

Biological assets with a carrying value of RR 611,149 (31 December 2010: RR 631,889) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 13).
The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in milk, meat and crops prices. The Group does not
anticipate that milk or crops prices will decline significantly in the foreseeable future except some seasonal
fluctuations and, therefore, has not entered into derivative or other contracts to manage the risk of a decline in
respective prices. Russia entering World Trade Organisation in 2012 may cause decline in meat prices.
Management is not able to predict the time and scale of this decline. The Group reviews its outlook for milk, meat
and crops prices regularly in considering the need for active financial risk management.

11. Long-term investments
Bank deposits

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

403,021

99,390

Loan issued to third party (interest rate 8%)

15,400

-

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

37,904

42,799

Available-for-sale financial assets

26,703

7,677

3,671

3,084

982

-

487,681

152,950

Other long-term investments
Interest receivable on long-term bank deposits
Total

The above long-term investments are denominated in Russian Roubles.
As at 31 December 2011 bank deposits placed in Alfa Bank in the amount of RR 403,021 (31 December 2010:
none) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s obligations (Note 13).
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Pigs within bearer livestock (heads)
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12. Share capital and share premium
Share capital and share premium
Number of
shares issued

Nominal
value

Share Capital

At 31 December 2010

200,000

0.01 EUR

85

At 31 December 2011

24,000,000

0.01 EUR

9,734

At 31 December 2011 the authorised share capital of the Company amounted to EUR 600,000 divided into
60,000,000 shares of nominal value of EUR 0.01 each.
On 22 March 2010, 500 ordinary shares with par value of EUR 1 were issued. The Owner contributed 14.3% of
the shares of OJSC Rusagro Group in order to perform procurance of these shares resulting in an increase of share
capital and share premium by RR 20 and RR 341,317 respectively.
On 31 December 2010, as a result of the share split the number of issued shares increased to 200,000 shares with
the respective decrease in par value to EUR 0.01 per share.
On 25 January 2011 19,800,000 ordinary shares with par value of EUR 0.01 were issued. The whole issue was
allotted to the shareholders of the Company at the time. 2,565,000 shares of this share issue were paid by cash at par
value. 17,235,000 shares of this share issue were paid through the contribution of 85.7% shares of OJSC Rusagro
Group resulting in an increase of share capital and share premium by RR 8,031 and RR 2,042,425 respectively.
As mentioned in Note 1 on 12 April 2011 the Company successfully completed an IPO of GDRs. The IPO included
an offering by the Company of 20,000,000 GDRs with every five GDRs representing an interest in one ordinary
share of the Company. The offering price was USD 15 per GDR (the equivalent of USD 75 per ordinary share).
As a result of the IPO, the Company issued 4,000,000 ordinary shares of par value EUR 0.01 each at the price of
USD 75 per share. These shares were fully paid in the amount of USD 300 million resulting in an increase of share
capital and share premium by RR 1,618 and RR 8,173,831 net of an amount of RR 217,291 out of the total
expenses directly attributable to the new shares issued.
Treasury shares
In the second half of 2011 the Company acquired 1,290,999 of its own GDRs (that is equivalent of approximately
258,200 shares) through purchases on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. The total amount paid to
acquire the shares was RR 303,750. The shares are held as ‘treasury shares’.
Restructuring
ROS AGRO PLC was established by the Owner in December 2009. In January 2011 ROS AGRO PLC became the
holding company of OJSC Rusagro Group as result of the Owner contributing 85.7% of ordinary shares of OJSC
Rusagro Group into the charter capital of ROS AGRO PLC. The remaining 14.3% of ordinary shares of OJSC
Rusagro Group had been contributed by the Owner to the charter capital of ROS AGRO PLC previously, in March
2010. This restructuring was accounted for as a transaction under common control using the predecessor method
of accounting applied retrospectively. Under this method the consolidated financial statements of the Company
were presented as if ROS AGRO PLC has always been the holding company of the predecessor group. The
consolidated assets and liabilities of OJSC Rusagro Group transferred under common control were accounted for
at the predecessor entity’s carrying amounts from the beginning of the earliest period presented (i.e. 1 January
2010). The difference between the share capital of OJSC Rusagro Group and the share capital of ROS AGRO PLC
as at 1 January 2010 in the amount of RR 1,699,952 was included in the opening balance of retained earnings as
at 1 January 2010. The difference between the share capital issued in 2010 and 2011 to acquire 100% of OJSC
Rusagro Group and the share capital obtained has been adjusted in equity in retained earnings for 2010 and
2011. The adjustments were RR 341,317 and RR 2,042,425 for 2010 and 2011 respectively.
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12. Share capital and share premium (continued)

Purchases of non-controlling interests
In 2011 the Group increased its share in OJSC Sugar Plant Nikiforovsky to 100%. The consideration paid was RR
104,983. The difference between the carrying amount of a non-controlling interest and the purchase consideration in
the amount of RR 203,553 was recorded as a capital transaction in the statement of changes in equity.
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In 2010 the Group acquired shares of several subsidiaries from minority shareholders for a total consideration of
RR 46,498, which resulted in an excess of the Group’s share of identifiable net assets acquired over the
consideration paid of RR 38,372.

13. Borrowings
Short-term borrowings
31 December 2011

Sberbank RF
Alfa bank
Other bank loans
Loans received from third parties

Carrying
amount

Interest rate

Carrying
amount

2.0-9.5%

9,324,639

2.3-9.0%

9,694,052

8.25%

6,506,695

-

-

7.86-8.25%

806,109

7.5-8.3%

1,422,146

0.0-11%

5,913

0.0-0.1%

4,242

52

-

-

-

21.3-47.3%

9,362

Loans received from related parties (Note 24)
Finance leases

31 December 2010

Interest rate

-

Interest accrued on borrowings from third parties

69,341

Interest accrued on borrowings from related parties (Note 24)

31,031

5,901

385,350

22,163

17,129,130

11,209,711

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Total

51,845

The above borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

17,078,376

11,171,204

50,754

38,507

17,129,130

11,209,711

Russian Roubles
US Dollars
Total

Long-term borrowings
31 December 2011

Sberbank RF

Interest rate

Carrying
amount

31 December 2010
Interest rate

Carrying
amount

9.5-13%

11,611,642

9.5-13.0%

6,978,172

9.5-10.75%

2,691,935

10.8-11.0%

1,062,990

Other bank loans

10.0-10.35%

575,407

State budget loans

¼ of the CBRF
rate*

Alfa Bank

Promissory notes issued
Loans received from related parties (Note 24)

-

224,512

¼ of the CBRF
rate*

208,076

0.0-16.0%

44,584

0.0%

29,724

10.0%

80,230

-

-

ROS AGRO PLC

In 2011 the Group acquired shares in several other subsidiaries from minority shareholders for a total
consideration of RR 11,830. The net excess of consideration paid over the Group’s share of identifiable net assets
acquired amounted to RR 6,224.
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13. Borrowings (continued)
Long-term borrowings (continued)

31 December 2011

88

31 December 2010

Interest rate

Carrying
amount

Interest rate

Carrying
amount

-

-

36.9-47.3%

5,302

9.5-11.5%

(64,865)

11.0-13.0%

(22,163)

9,5%

(240,255)

-

-

10.0%

(80,230)

-

-

Finance leases

ROS AGRO PLC

Less current portion of long-term borrowings from:
*The above loans
were initially
measured at an
effective rate of
12%

Sberbank RF
Alfa Bank
Loans received from related parties (Note 24)
Total

14,842,960

8,262,101

The above borrowings are denominated in Russian Roubles.
Maturity of long-term borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities):
Fixed interest rate borrowings:

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

2 years

2,509,093

263,770

3-5 years

9,086,581

6,846,278

More than 5 years
Total
Floating interest rate borrowings:

3,022,774

938,675

14,618,448

8,048,723

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

3-5 years

224,512

208,076

Total

224,512

208,076

For details of property, plant and equipment and biological assets pledged as collateral for the above borrowings
see Note 9 and Note 10 respectively. For details of promissory notes and bank deposits pledged as collateral for
the above borrowings refer to Notes 4 and 11.
Shares of several companies of the Group are pledged as collateral for the bank borrowings, as follows:
Pledged shares, %
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

LLC Rusagro Group

50.00

50.00

LLC Rusagro-Invest

100.00

-

74.90

-

LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka
LLC Tambovsky Bacon

100.00

-

OJSC Belgorodsky Bacon

100.00

100.00

OJSC Nika Corp.

98.27

98.27

OJSC Rzhevsky Sakharnik

99.73

99.73

OJSC Valuikisakhar

99.23

99.23

OJSC Sugar Plant Znamensky

91.68

91.68

OJSC Sugar Plant Zherdevsky

-

99.92

LLC Kalininskoye

-

100.00

LLC Zveriaevskoye

-

100.00

LLC Ivanovskoe

-

80.12

LLC Agrotekhnology

-

100.00

LLC Poletaevskoye

-

50.00

OJSC Sugar Plant Nikiforovsky

-

70.26
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13. Borrowings (continued)
Long-term borrowings (continued)

Net Debt
As part of liquidity risk management the Group Treasury analyses its net debt position. The Group’s management
determines the net debt of the Group as outstanding bank loans and state budget loans less cash in hand, bank
balances receivable on demand, all bank deposits and promissory notes of Sberbank (Notes 3, 4, 11). The Group’s
management compares net debt figure with adjusted EBITDA (Note 26) and considers the normal level of net
debt/adjusted EBITDA ratio to be not more than 3.
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As at 31 December 2011 the net debt of the Group was as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Long-term borrowings

14,842,960

8,262,102

Short-term borrowings

17,129,130

11,209,711

Cash and cash equivalents

(5,457,567)

(5,120,208)

Banks’ promissory notes (Note 27)

(1,040,395)

(600,000)

(13,193,732)

(4,980,800)

Bank deposits within sort-term investments (Note 3)
Bank deposits within long-term investments (Note 11)
Net debt
Adjusted EBITDA* (Note 26)
Net debt/ Adjusted EBITDA

(403,021)

(99,390)

11,877,375

8,671,415

5,154,129

7,879,528

2.30

1.10

Finance lease liabilities
The ranges and the weighted average effective annual interest rates at the reporting dates were as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Range

Weighted average

Range

Weighted average

-

-

21.3-47.3%

36.5%

Due in 1 year

Due in between
1 and 5 years

Total

Minimum lease payments at 31 December 2010

12,638

6,109

18,747

Less: future finance charges

(3,276)

(807)

(4,083)

9,362

5,302

14,664

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

940,864

1,501,266

8,598

19,880

Russian Roubles

The maturity of finance leases and the minimum lease payments were as follows:

Present value of minimum lease payments at 31 December 2010

14. Trade and other payables
Trade accounts payable
Payables for land rent
Liabilities under the government programme (Note 3)

29,618

-

Other payables

43,527

53,705

1,022,607

1,574,851

Payables to employees

535,515

289,166

Advances received

331,021

70,424

1,889,143

1,934,441

Total financial liabilities within trade and other payables

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Financial liabilities within trade and other payables of RR 25,167 (31 December 2010: RR 1,039,545) are
denominated in USD, financial liabilities within trade and other payables of RR 37,528 are denominated in EUR
(31 December 2010: RR 5,637).

*not an IFRS
measure.
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15. Other taxes payable
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Value added tax

336,001

337,487

Unified social tax

33,338

25,117

Property tax

76,770

67,520

Personal income tax

21,908

17,544

Transport tax

3,051

3,240

Other

28,847

24,951

Total

499,915

475,859

16. Government grants
In 2005-2011 the Group received government grants from Tambov and Belgorod regional governments to
acquire equipment for agricultural business and sugar processing. These grants are deferred and amortised on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets. Additionally, in 2011 the government grants for
reimbursement of interest expenses on bank loans received for construction of the pig-breeding farms in Belgorod
and Tambov, particularly the government grants related to interest expenses capitalised into the carrying value of
assets, were similarly deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
Refunded interest recognised as government grants in 2011 amounted to RR 30,556 (2010: none). The
movements in deferred government grants in the statement of financial position were as follows:
As at 1 January
Government grants received

2011

2010

577,134

578,679

30,556

82,967

Amortization of deferred income to match related depreciation (Note 21)

(94,692)

(84,512)

As at 31 December

512,998

577,134

Additionally, other bank loan interests which had been refunded by the state were credited to the income statement.
Interest expense
Reimbursement of interest expense (government grants)
Net interest expense

2011

2010

1,999,337

1,688,503

(1,279,074)

(898,949)

720,263

789,554

Other government grants received are included in Note 21.

17. Sales
Sales of goods
Sales of services
Total

2011

2010

39,525,763

30,647,422

189,352

308,108

39,715,115

30,955,530

Sales in 2011 include revenue arising from exchange of goods amounting to RR 115,208(2010: RR 92,944) and
exchange of services amounting to RR 166,680 (2010: RR 239,797).

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)
Annual Report 2011

18. Cost of sales
2010
20,495,634

Payroll

1,746,013

1,432,753

Depreciation

1,991,897

1,748,035

Services

1,404,769

948,789

Other
Provision / (reversal of provision) for net realisable value
Total

57,988

81,852

121,632

(23,592)

34,377,027

24,683,471

Raw materials and consumables used above include the expensing of the gain recorded on initial recognition of
agricultural produce attributable to the realised agricultural produce (both of current and previous year harvest) in
the amount of RR 852,199 (31 December 2010: RR 689,836), and of the result of revaluation of biological assets
(cows and pigs) attributable to the realised biological assets, in the amount of RR 1,761,422 (31 December 2010:
RR 1,530,050).
Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions amounting of RR 283,198 (2010: RR 206,005).

19. Distribution and selling expenses
2011

2010

1,441,310

924,348

Payroll

473,922

355,933

Advertising

152,919

157,319

Materials

89,766

64,944

Fuel and energy

28,006

21,538

Depreciation

51,692

23,172

Provision / (reversal of provision) for impairment of receivables (Notes 5, 6, 7)

39,522

(888)

Other

177,641

95,234

Total

2,454,778

1,641,600

Transportation and loading services

Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions amounting to RR 59,314 (2010: RR 39,950).

20. General and administrative expenses
Payroll
Taxes, excluding income tax

2011

2010

1,368,376

1,172,930

338,255

322,075

Bank services

89,921

95,289

Depreciation

88,522

86,971

Services of professional organisations

85,384

139,380

Rent

79,003

65,984

Security

68,590

54,377

Fuel and energy

64,921

54,888

Materials

52,555

57,003

Insurance

26,363

5,955
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2011
29,054,728

Raw materials and consumables used
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20. General and administrative expenses (continued)

2011

2010

Communication

24,892

22,077

Repair and maintenance

23,557

24,093

Travelling expenses

19,544

14,156

Statutory audit fees

1,615

-

Other

100,198

119,826

Total

2,431,696

2,235,004

Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions amounting of RR 147,485 (2010: RR 91,312).
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2011, included in “Services of professional organisations” were fees of
RR 330 (2010: none) for other assurance services charged by the Company’s statutory auditor.

21. Other operating expenses, net
Reimbursement of fuel and fertilizers and feed costs (government grants)
Reimbursement lost harvest (government grants)
Lost harvest write-off (Note 10)
Other government grants

2011

2010

148,416

137,783

-

91,961

(16,673)

(191,425)

396

17,034

94,692

84,512

Rental income

-

12,235

Excess of the Group’s share of identifiable net assets acquired over consideration paid

-

10,210

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net

-

204

(9,369)

(9,171)

Amortization of deferred income to match related depreciation (Note 16)

Loss on other investments
Gain on disposal of inventory
Write-off of trade and other receivables
(Loss) / gain from investments at fair value through profit or loss

1,240

9,280

(20,709)

(75,959)

(4,896)

2,074

Charitable donations and social costs

(127,860)

(225,872)

Provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and equipment

(329,088)

-

19,272

(35,379)

(20,762)

(13,499)

19,386

(18,803)

(245,955)

(204,815)

Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Write-off of inventory
Other income / (expenses)
Net other operating expenses

22. Goodwill
Carrying amount at 1 January
Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Carrying amount at 31 December

2011

2010

474,899

474,899

700,679

-

1,175,578

474,899

2011

2010

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs:
Oil Samara CGU

651,075

-

Other agriculture CGU

178,133

128,529

Sugar CGU

346,370

346,370

1,175,578

474,899

Carrying amount at 31 December

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka
In March 2011 the Group acquired 74.9% ownership interest in LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka, oil extraction
plant in Samara region. The purpose of acquisition was to obtain control over the source of the vegetable oil
required by the Group’s oil and fat production plant.

The purchase consideration in amount of RR 269,058 is represented by the fair value of 10.5% ownership interest
in OJSC Fats and Oil Integrated Works, the Group’s subsidiary. The ownership interest was transferred to the
seller through the issuance of additional shares which took place in September 2011. The fair value of the
consideration has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections of OJSC Fats
and Oil Integrated Works based on financial budgets approved by the Group’s management.
According to the sale-purchase agreement the Group has a call option to purchase back the shares in OJSC Fats
and Oil Integrated Works at the pre-agreed price if certain specific performance conditions were not met by
LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka in 2011. The value of the call option at the date of acquisition was zero since
Management expected that LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka would meet its performance conditions. The call
option was not revaluated at 31 December 2011 and was exercised in March 2012 (Note 30).
As a result the Group recognised a non-controlling interest related to 10.5% ownership interestin OJSC Fats and
Oil Integrated Works in the amount of RR 321,001 in September 2011.
LLC Olkhi
In April 2011 the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in LLC Olkhi, an agricultural enterprise in Tambov
region, for a total consideration of RR 4,393.
The goodwill arising on acquisition is primarily attributable to the expected profitability of the acquired business
due to the significant expected combined costs savings.
Fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired in 2011 were determined using
discounted cash flow models. The valuation of property, plant and equipment was performed by an independent
professional appraiser.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Share in
capital
acquired

Total
assets

Total
liabilities

Purchase
consideration

Noncontrolling
interest

Goodwill

Recognised
in profit or
loss

74.90%

2,916,556

(3,426,592)

269,058

(128,019)

651,075

-

100.00%

61,878

(107,090)

4,393

-

49,604

-

2,978,434

(3,533,682)

273,451

(128,019)

700,679

-

2011
LLC
Samaraagroprompererabotka
LLC Olkhi
TOTAL
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The goodwill arising on acquisition was allocated on to Oil Samara CGU and primarily attributable to the expected
profitability of the acquired business due to the significant expected combined costs savings.
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22. Goodwill (continued)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (continued)

The aggregate fair value of assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions in 2011 was as follows:
LLC
Samaraagroprompererabotka

ROS AGRO PLC
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Cash
Loans issued
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Tax receivables
Deferred income tax assets
Inventories
Unharvested crops
Property, plant and equipment
Total assets
Trade and other payables
Tax payables
Deferred income tax liability
Borrowings
Total liabilities

LLC Olkhi

IFRS carrying
amount
immediately
before
business
combination

Attributed fair
value

IFRS carrying
amount
immediately
before
business
combination

Attributed
fair value

1,936

1,936

494

494

783

783

-

-

73,687

73,687

3,555

3,555

39,364

39,364

93

93

246,359

246,359

142

142

148,196

189,049

-

-

1,249,827

1,249,827

2,891

2,891

-

-

12,097

12,097

798,536

1,115,551

44,460

42,606

2,558,688

2,916,556

63,732

61,878

(29,321)

(29,321)

(940)

(940)

(6,351)

(6,351)

(182)

(182)

-

(63,403)

-

-

(3,327,517)

(3,327,517)

(105,968)

(105,968)

(3,363,189)

(3,426,592)

(107,090)

(107,090)

Altogether the businesses acquired in 2011 contributed to the Group: revenue of RR 1,702,256 and net loss of RR
69,561 for the period from the dates of the respective acquisitions to the reporting dates. If the acquisitions had
occurred on 1 January 2011 of the respective year of acquisition, the contributed revenue and net loss for the year
ended 31 December 2011 would have been RR 1,706,318 and RR 146,133 respectively.
The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was tested for impairment. The recoverable
amount of the Group’s cash-generating units has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Group’s management covering a five-year periods
and the expected market prices for the Group’s key products for the same period according to the leading industry
publications. As a result of the testing, no impairment losses were recognised.
* EBITDA margin
is calculated as the
sum of operating
cash flows before
income tax and
changes in working
capital divided by
the amount of cash
flow received from
trade customers.

Assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to which the recoverable amount is most sensitive were:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Oil Samara
CGU

Other
agriculture
CGU

Sugar CGU

Other
agriculture
CGU

Sugar CGU

EBITDA margin

12.1%

25.9%

18.6%

42.8%

13.7%

Pre-tax discount rate

13.8%

13.6%

14.1%

13.8%

14.3%

A reasonably possible shift in key assumptions underlying the value-in-use calculations would not lead to
impairment of goodwill as of 31 December 2011 and as of 31 December 2010.2
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23. Income tax
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax (credit) / charge

2010
493,547

(205,143)

17,880

207,565

511,427

The Group companies domiciled in Russia were subject to an income tax rate of 20% (2010: 20%) of taxable
profits, except for profit on sales of agricultural produce, which is not subject to income tax until 2012. Then,
unless agricultural enterprises become subject to a special taxation regime, the applicable income tax rate will be
18% in 2013-2015 and 20% starting from 2016. Tax rates for agricultural enterprises were enacted in December
2008. Group entities operating in other tax jurisdictions were taxed at 0% and 10%.
The current income tax charge represents a tax accrual based on statutory taxable profits. A reconciliation
between the expected and the actual taxation charge is as follows:
2011

2010

Profit before tax:

2,627,411

5,626,565

taxable at 0%

2,845,414

3,382,233

taxable at 10%

148,650

(43,099)

taxable at 20%

(366,653)

2,287,431

(58,466)

453,176

non-taxable income

(3,896)

(24,182)

non-deductible expenses

91,193

74,608

594

1,362

Theoretical tax charge calculated at the applicable tax rate of 20% and 10%
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation purposes:

penalties
share based remuneration
other
Income tax expense

134,449

-

43,691

6,463

207,565

511,427

Differences between IFRS as adopted by the EU and local statutory taxation regulations give rise to certain
temporary differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred taxes are attributable to the following:
1 January 2011

Deferred tax
assets (liabilities)
of the acquired
subsidiaries

Deferred tax
credited/
(charged) to
profit or loss

31 December 2011

Tax effects of deductible/ (taxable) temporary
differences:
Property, plant and equipment

(416,749)

(63,504)

3,280

(476,973)

Impairment of receivables

22,268

40,692

46,364

109,324

Payables

25,552

-

32,118

57,670

Financial assets

(577)

31,364

(6,579)

24,208

Inventory

7,732

(269)

146,329

153,792

Loss carried forward

77,167

117,264

5,245

199,676

Other

51,945

99

(21,615)

30,429

(232,662)

125,646

205,142

98,126

Net deferred tax (liability) / assets
Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

153,965

474,577

(386,627)

(376,451)
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Income tax expense

2011
412,708
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23. Income tax (continued)

1 January 2010

Deferred tax
assets/
(liabilities) of
the acquired
subsidiaries

Deferred tax
assets/
(liabilities) of
the disposed
subsidiaries

Deferred tax
credited/
(charged) to
profit or loss

31 December
2010

ROS AGRO PLC
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Tax effects of deductible/ (taxable)
temporary differences:
Property, plant and equipment

(347,717)

-

-

(69,032)

(416,749)

Impairment of receivables

31,041

-

-

(8,773)

22,268

Payables

13,183

-

-

12,369

25,552

Financial assets

15,679

-

-

(16,257)

(578)

Inventory

30,620

-

-

(22,887)

7,733

Loss carried forward

21,677

11,124

-

44,366

77,167

9,492

-

119

42,334

51,945

(226,025)

11,124

119

(17,880)

(232,662)

Other
Net deferred tax liability
Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

140,698

153,965

(366,723)

(386,627)

In the context of the Group’s current structure tax losses and current tax assets of different companies may not be
set off against taxable profits and current tax liabilities of other companies and, accordingly, taxes may accrue
even where there is a net consolidated tax loss. Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when
they relate to the same taxable entity.
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months

150,112

79,943

Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months

324,465

74,022

474,577

153,965

(332,837)

(297,447)

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months
Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months

TOTAL NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITY)

(43,614)

(89,180)

(376,451)

(386,627)

98,126

(232,662)

The Group has not recognised a deferred tax liability of RR 3,262,480 (2010: RR 2,578,763) in respect of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of reversal of those temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse them in the
foreseeable future. It does not intend to reduce the subsidiaries’ equity, and future dividends, if any, will be paid
out of future earnings.
Refer to Note 28 “Contingencies” for description of tax risks and uncertainties.

24. Related party transactions
Parties are generally considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party, is under
common control or can exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
decisions as defined by IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”. In considering each possible related party relationship
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship not merely the legal form. Related parties may enter into
transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between related parties may not be effected on
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the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated parties. Related parties of the Group
fall into the following categories:
1. The Owner;
2. Entities controlled by the Owner;
3. Members of the Board of Directors and other key management personnel.

In April 2010 the Owner transferred a 15.8% share in OJSC Rusagro Group to the Company in the form of a loan
under a securities lending deed agreement. The agreement provided a 4% annual interest rate. In June 2010, the
Company returned a 8.7% share to the Owner, and the remaining shares under this agreement, in December
2010. For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements the principal amount of this loan was not
accounted for as the consolidated financial statements of OJSC Rusagro Group are included in these consolidated
financial statements.
The amount of interest accrued on this loan and included in these consolidated financial statements is as follows:
Transactions

Year ended 31
December 2011

Year ended 31
December 2010

Interest expense

-

5,901

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

-

5,901

Transactions

Year ended
31 December 2011

Year ended
31 December 2010

Interest income

-

836

Loans received

-

1,999

Interest expense

-

2,275

Balances
Interest payable (Note 13)

Entities controlled by the Owner
Transactions with entities controlled by the Ownerwere as follows:

Loans received from entities controlled by the Owner as at 31 December 2010 were denominated in Russian
Roubles with an interest rate of 11%.
Key management personnel
Share-purchase agreements
In March 2011 a company controlled by Mr. Maxim Basov, a Director of ROS AGRO PLC and the CEO of OJSC
Rusagro Group, purchased 5% shares of ROS AGRO PLC from a company controlled by the Owner through two
separate agreements.
Under the first agreement 3.5% of ordinary shares of ROS AGRO PLC were purchased for USD 3.5 for all shares.
The terms of the agreement provide that the shares remain effectively under control of the seller and are actually
transferred to the buyer gradually until July 2014 provided that Mr. Basov remains in the position of the CEO of
OJSC Rusagro Group. For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements this transaction was treated as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, under which Mr. Maxim Basov, as an employee, is granted
shares of the Company as part of his compensation for the services rendered to the Group. The fair value of shares
granted, determined at the grant date, less cash paid for them by the buyer, is expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income in accordance with the graded vesting schedule with corresponding increase in equity.
Expenses recognized under this agreement for the year ended 31 December 2011 in the amount of RR 586,352

97
ROS AGRO PLC

The Owner
On 22 March 2010 the Owner contributed 14.3% of the shares in OJSC Rusagro Group to the share capital of the
Company as consideration for a new share issue (Note 12). In January 2011, the Owner contributed further
85.7% of the shares in OJSC Rusagro Group as disclosed in Note 12.
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24. Related party transactions (continued)
Key management personnel (continued)

(2010: nil) are presented under the heading “Share-based remuneration” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
Under the second agreement 1.5% of ordinary shares of ROS AGRO PLC were purchased for USD 15,000,000.
The shares were transferred to the buyer immediately. For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements
this transaction was treated as equity-settled share-based payment transaction that vested immediately. The
difference between the fair value of shares granted and cash paid for them by the buyer in the amount of RR
85,895 was expensed and presented under the heading “Share-based remuneration” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with corresponding increase in equity.
During 2010 Mr. Maxim Basov in his capacity as the CEO of OJSC Rusagro Group was granted a share option for a
5% share in OJSC Rusagro Group by ROS AGRO PLC in a form of compound share-based payment award. The
exercise price of the granted option was equal to USD 5. The option was exercisable starting 1 year from the grant
date. The share option was based on two types of vesting conditions: a service condition and a non-market
performance condition. Failure to comply with the non-market performance condition resulted in a forfeiture of
the share-based payment award in December 2010. Accordingly, the share based transaction had no impact on
these consolidated financial statements.
Share-based payment arrangements in 2011 do not represent a modification to the share option granted in 2010.
The fair value of shares granted was determined by using discounted cash flow analysis. These calculations used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Group’s management covering a five-year
period. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business sector of the
economy in which the Group operates. The future cash flows were discounted using discount rate of 12% and
long-term growth rate of 4%. The discount rate was derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of
capital.
Other remuneration to key management personnel
Remuneration to 13(2010: 8) representatives of key management personnel, included in payroll costs, comprised
short-term remuneration such as salaries, discretionary bonuses and other short-term benefits totalling RR
216,956 including RR 1,250 payable to the State Pension Fund (2010: RR 184,362 and RR 832 respectively).
Directors’ remuneration
Included in the share-based compensation and other remuneration to key management personnel disclosed
above, are directors' fees, salaries and other short-term benefits totalling RR 783,776 in respect of the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: none).
Acquisition of subsidiaries
In April 2011 the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in LLC Olkhi, agricultural enterprise in Tambov
region, from Mr. Maxim Basov for a total consideration of RR 4,393 (Note 22). A number of transactions between
Mr. Maxim Basov and LLC Olkhi resulted in the following balances and classes of transactions, included in these
consolidated financial statements:
Transactions
Loans issued

Year ended
31 December 2011

Year ended
31 December 2010

7,700

-

Interest income

103

-

Loans received

405

-

Interest expense

8,375

-

Cession of rights

4,650

-
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Key management personnel (continued)

Balances

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Borrowings (Note 13)

80,282

-

Interest payable (Note 13)

31,031

-

100

-

4,650

-

Other payables
Other receivables

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year outstanding after the restructuring finalized
on 25 January 2011 (note 12) excluding ordinary shares purchased by the company and held as treasury shares.
While calculating EPS in these consolidated financial statements the Group has assumed that the share capital
issued by the Company by the end of January 2011 and related to the Group restructuring had been in place
during the whole periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. Such assumptions have been
made with the aim to present comparable and consistent historical EPS ratios for the periods presented. The
Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted earnings per share equals the basic
earnings per share.
Note

Year ended 31
December2011
2,364,732

5,078,430

12

22,832,843

20,000,000

103.57

253.92

Profit for the year attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RR per share)

Year ended 31
December 2010

26. Segment information
Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or incur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM) and for which
discrete financial information is available. The CODM is the person who allocates resources and assesses the
performance of the Group. The functions of CODM are performed by the Board of Directors of ROS AGRO PLC.
Description of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenue
The Group is organised on the basis of four main business segments:
• Sugar – represents production and trading operation with white sugar;
• Meat – represents cultivation of pigs and selling of consumable livestock to third parties;
• Other agriculture – represents cultivation of plant crops (sugar beet, grain crops and other plant crops) and
dairy cattle livestock;
• Oil – represents vegetable oil extraction, production and sales of mayonnaise, consumer margarine, and
bottled vegetable oil.
Certain Group's businesses are not included within the reportable operating segments, as they are not included in
the reports provided to the CODM. The results of these operations are included in "Other" caption. The Company
that represents the Group's head office function and earns revenue considered incidental to the Group's activities
is included in "Other" caption.
Factors that management used to identify the reportable segments
The Group’s segments are strategic business units that focus on different customers. They are managed
separately because of the differences in the production processes, the nature of products produced and required
marketing strategies.
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26. Segment information (continued)
Factors that management used to identify the reportable segments (continued)

Segment financial information reviewed by the CODM includes:
• Quarterly report containing information about financial position, income and expenses by business units
(segments) based on statutory accounting numbers. Information presented to the CODM is prepared on the
basis of individual RAR financial statements (Note 2.1) of the Group companies, but reviewed and assessed at
the business unit level;
• Quarterly cash flow statements for each business unit with budget-vs-actual analysis;
• In addition to main financial indicators, production data (such as yield, production volumes, cost per unit, staff
costs) and revenue data (volumes per type of product, market share) are also reviewed by the CODM on a
quarterly basis.

ROS AGRO PLC
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Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Profit or loss report provided to the CODM is based on the RAR specified layout of income statement which
includes four profit measures: gross profit, operating profit, profit before tax and net profit for the period. The
CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on the net profit for the period. Mainly, the
use of net profit was predefined by the participant's needs of maximising profitability of the Group.
Transactions between operating segments are accounted for based on financial information of individual
segments that represent separate legal entities.
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities prepared under
RAR
Segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:
2011

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

25,659,809

5,345,484

1,976,006

6,907,234

46,756

2,413

4,751,985

1,292

Total sales

25,706,565

5,347,897

6,727,991

6,908,526

Net profit

216,751

1,540,811

1,059,591

(21,717)

Sales – external
Sales to other segments

Interest income

Other

Eliminations

Total

2,022

-

39,890,555

345,574

(5,148,020)

-

347,596

(5,148,020)

39,890,555

2,555,366

(1,626,435)

3,724,367

335,135

112,355

15,663

88,706

752,783

(412,444)

892,198

Interest expense

(729,652)

(733,939)

(369,547)

(224,430)

(230,855)

412,444

(1,875,979)

Depreciation

(561,718)

(774,014)

(518,716)

(136,633)

(4,662)

-

(1,995,743)

Income tax expense

(208,303)

(13,710)

(3,725)

(19,030)

(54,013)

-

(298,781)

25,031,564

13,149,685

13,159,050

6,664,340

39,814,180

(35,353,564)

62,465,255

(17,113,355)

(10,644,052)

(8,687,428)

(3,751,084)

(7,077,115)

12,122,860

(35,150,174)

1,827,056

4,597,705

5,063,635

1,057,440

22,672

(196,240)

12,372,268

Assets
Liabilities
Additions to non-current assets

Additions to non-current assets exclude additions to financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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26. Segment information (continued)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities prepared under RAR
(continued)
Segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:
2010
Sales – external
Sales to other segments

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

20,232,815

4,572,238

1,550,746

4,763,290

-

-

31,119,089

13

2,727,125

-

279,657

(3,132,341)

-

20,358,361

4,572,251

4,277,871

4,763,290

279,657

(3,132,341)

31,119,089

Net profit

3,353,109

979,433

260,276

443,799

(40,183)

-

4,996,434

Interest income

185,226

65,901

53,190

145,917

302,523

(318,464)

434,293

Interest expense

(637,032)

(697,691)

(336,867)

(57,419)

(180,440)

318,464

(1,590,985)

Depreciation

(389,375)

(663,436)

(482,710)

(107,861)

(2,842)

(23,215)

(1,669,439)

Income tax expense

(414,941)

14,904

496

(126,718)

(12,542)

-

(538,801)

20,601,170

9,542,172

7,246,585

3,289,859

9,686,509

(12,442,202)

37,924,093

(12,967,538)

(7,189,861)

(3,962,714)

(293,862)

(4,192,208)

7,027,975

(21,578,208)

1,449,056

323,444

1,308,169

111,221

4,438

-

3,196,328

Assets
Liabilities
Additions to non-current assets

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Total sales for reportable segments under RAR
Reclassification to other operating income (a)
Reclassification from other operating income (b)
Bonuses to customers (c)
Other adjustments
Total consolidated sales under IFRS

2011

2010

39,890,555

31,119,089

(51,574)

(16,961)

67,312

-

(190,951)

(146,953)

(227)

355

39,715,115

30,955,530

The items in sales reconciliation are attributable to the following:
a. Reclassification to other operating income. Reclassification adjustments to RAR revenue represent the
reclassification of revenues from non-core activities of the Group to other operating income.
b. Reclassification from other operating income. Reclassification adjustments to RAR revenue represent the
reclassification of revenues from sale of grain and other products and services from Group’s core activities from
other operating income.
c. Bonuses to customers. This adjustment represents an accrual of additional bonuses which were not included in
the statutory accounting financial statements due to the timing difference and the reclassification of bonuses
accrued in the statutory accounting financial statements from other operating expenses to revenue.
Total reportable segment net profit under RAR
Goodwill valuation (d)
Net effect of the measurement of agricultural produce at the time of harvest at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs (e)

2011

2010

3,724,367

4,996,434

(373,603)

-

216,374

3,570

(Accrual)/reversal of provision for impairment of inventories (f)

(123,743)

35,506

Additional depreciation, excluding depreciation of leased assets (g)

(354,589)

(223,848)

(6,128)

(20,941)

Adjustments to financial result of disposal of property plant and equipment (g)
Write-off and impairment of receivables and financial assets (h)
Cut-off adjustments (i)
Elimination of unrealized gain, net of reversal (j)
Expenses classification (k)
Deferred tax adjustment (t)

(320,060)

125,240

(835)

(131,209)

(265,845)

35,659

-

43,599

91,217

27,374

ROS AGRO PLC

125,546

Total sales

101

Annual Report 2011

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Russian roubles, unless noted otherwise)

102

26. Segment information (continued)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Net effect of biological assets revaluation (m)
Accruals (n)
Write-off of prepaid expenses (o)

ROS AGRO PLC

Share-based remuneration (Note 24)
Fair value adjustment of inventories as at the date of business combination (Note 22)
Other adjustments
Consolidated net profit under IFRS

2011

2010

143,574

306,216

-

(43,046)

83,837

(63,328)

(672,247)

-

204,262

-

73,265

23,912

2,419,846

5,115,138

The items in the net profit reconciliation are attributable to the following:
d. Goodwill valuation. The goodwill in RAR statutory consolidated financial statements is calculated based on the
statutory accounting value of the acquired company’s net assets as at the acquisition date. In these
consolidated financial statements the goodwill valuation was adjusted in accordance with IFRS 3 that requires
fair value measurement of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in the business combination.
e. Net effect of the measurement of agricultural produce at the time of harvest at fair value less estimated point-ofsale costs. In the statutory financial statements agricultural produce is measured at cost. In these consolidated
financial statements the agricultural produce was initially measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs at the time of harvest as required by IAS 41. The net effect of the adjustment on the net profit represents
the gain on revaluation of the current year’s harvest less the gain attributable to the realised agricultural
produce.
f. Reversal/(accrual) of provision for impairment of inventories. The adjustment relates to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable value in accordance with IAS 2.
g. Additional depreciation, excluding depreciation of leased assets. Adjustments to financial result of disposal of
property, plant and equipment. These adjustments were stipulated by the differences in the statutory
accounting and IFRS carrying value of the property, plant and equipment which originated due to the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition to IFRS (see Note 2.5) and revaluation of
the assets acquired in business combinations in accordance with IFRS 3 (Note 22).
h. Write-off and impairment of receivables and financial assets adjustments represent (accruals)/ reversals of
provision for doubtful debts and bad debts write-off.
i. Cut-off adjustments. In preparing these consolidated financial statements all income and expenses were
included in profit or loss of the period in which the respective business operation took place. This heading
summarises adjustments which were not included in statutory financial statements such as accruals of bonuses
payable to employees on the basis of results of each financial year, bonuses payable to customers for deliveries
in the reporting periods, provisions for unused earned vacations and other similar adjustments.
j. Elimination of unrealised gain, net of reversal. In these consolidated financial statements the unrealised gain on
intra-group sales that was not excluded in the statutory consolidated financial statements, was eliminated.
k. Expenses classification. In the RAR statutory financial statements some expenses, such as bonuses to employees
from net profit, are not included in determination of the profit or loss for the period but charged directly to
retained earnings. In these consolidated financial statements these expenses were included in profit or loss for
the respective period.
l. Adjustments to the net assets of the disposed subsidiaries. The adjustment is represented by the differences
between the statutory accounting and IFRS carrying value of the assets and liabilities disposed through the
disposal of subsidiaries.
m. Net effect of biological assets revaluation. In the RAR statutory financial statements mature animals of bearer
livestock are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation; immature animals of bearer livestock and animals
of consumable livestock are measured at cost. In accordance with IAS 41 and the Group’s accounting policy
(Note 2.7), in these consolidated financial statements the livestock is revalued to the fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs as at the year-end. The net effect of the adjustment includes the reversal of the statutory
accounting depreciation, revaluation to the fair value at the year-end and adjustments to the profit or loss
related to the disposed livestock.
n. Accruals. The Group recognised accruals in these consolidated financial statements that were not made in the
statutory financial statements.
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Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

o. Write-off of prepaid expenses. In the statutory financial statements the recognition of some expenses, for
example repairs and maintenance of production facilities in downtime periods, are deferred to match them with
the related income. Some of these expenses that do not conform to the definition of assets in accordance with
IFRS, were expensed in these consolidated financial statements in the period of the respective transactions.

Interest on bad debt loans (p)
Other adjustments
Consolidated interest income under IFRS

2010

892,198

434,293

(9,799)

-

(23)

(1,071)

882,376

433,222

The reconciling items in interest income are attributable to the following:
p. Interest on bad debt loans accrued for the period in the statutory financial statementswas cancelled in these
consolidated financial statements.
Total reportable segment interest expenses under RAR
Offsetting of government grants against interest paid (Note 16)
Interest on finance lease liabilities (q)
Unwinding of discounting on low-cost borrowings (r)
Cut-off adjustments (see i above)
Reclassification from other operating expenses (s)
Consolidated interest expenses under IFRS

2011

2010

(1,875,979)

(1,590,985)

1,279,074

898,950

(1,768)

(19,858)

(22,403)

(15,720)

38,507

(38,793)

(137,695)

(23,148)

(720,264)

(789,554)

The reconciling items in interest expenses are attributable to the following:
q. Interest on finance lease liabilities. Depreciation of leased assets. In the statutory financial statements there is
no distinction between finance and operating leases and leasing expenses are charged to the income statement
as incurred, while in accordance with IFRS recognition of finance lease as an asset and a liability in the statement
of financial position of the lessee is required. Consequently the depreciation of the leased assets and the interest
on the finance lease liabilities are included in profit or loss.
r. Unwinding of discounting on low-cost borrowings. In the RAR statutory financial statements borrowings
including low-cost borrowings are measured at principal amount. In these consolidated financial statements the
low-cost borrowings were discounted to their fair value at the initial recognition using the effective interest
method (Note 2.15). During the life of the respective borrowings the unwinding of the discounting is made and
included in the interest expense.
s. Reclassification from other operating expenses. In the statutory financial statements the foreign banks
commission for financing the irrevocable covered letter of credits was presented within other operating
income/expenses. In these consolidated financial statements this expenses are presented within interest
expense.
Total reportable segment depreciation expenses under RAR
Additional depreciation related to differences in the carrying amount and depreciation terms
(see g above)

2011

2010

(1,995,743)

(1,669,439)

(354,589)

(223,848)

Reversal of depreciation on biological assets (see m above)

214,097

105,635

Depreciation of leased assets (see q above)

(24,032)

(38,465)

28,157

(32,061)

(2,132,110)

(1,858,178)

Other adjustments
Consolidated depreciation expenses under IFRS
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26. Segment information (continued)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Total reportable segment income tax expenses under RAR
Deferred tax adjustment (t)

ROS AGRO PLC

Consolidated income tax expenses under IFRS

2011

2010

(298,782)

(538,801)

91,217

27,374

(207,565)

(511,427)

t. Deferred tax adjustment. In the RAR statutory financial statements the deferred taxes were calculated using
income statement liability method, which focuses on timing differences. Timing differences are differences
between taxable profit and accounting profit that originate in one period and reverse in one or more
subsequent periods. Conversely, IAS 12 “Income Taxes” requires balance sheet liability method, which focuses
on temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between the tax bases of assets or liabilities
and their carrying amount in the statement of financial position (Note 2.20).
2011

2010

62,465,254

37,924,093

885,930

1,068,055

Adjustments to inventories valuation (u)

(379,204)

(301,099)

Goodwill valuation (see d above)

(225,458)

(493,372)

Biological assets valuation (see m above)

538,333

44,053

Deferred tax assets valuation (see t above)

150,705

21,085

(858,107)

(98,110)

-

1,023,146

Total reportable segment assets under RAR
Adjustments to property, plant and equipment (see g above)

Write-off and impairment of receivables and financial assets (see h above)
Recognition of raw sugar purchases in the respective period (v)
Cut-off adjustments (see i above)
Other adjustments
Total consolidated assets under IFRS

9,942

-

(78,064)

(136,486)

62,509,331

39,051,365

u. Adjustments to inventories valuation. Several adjustments are made to inventory per the statutory financial
statements to arrive at the inventory valuation in accordance with IFRS, including net realisable value
adjustment (see f above), elimination of unrealised gain (see j above), effect of the measurement of agricultural
produce at the time of harvest at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs included in inventory (see e
above), etc.
v. Recognition of raw sugar purchases in the respective period. At 31 December 2010, risks and rewards for some
raw sugar purchases transferred to the Group and the purchased raw sugar and related trade accounts payable
were recognized in these consolidated financial statements. In the statutory financial statements these purchases
were not recognized as the transfer of ownership title has not happened as at the reporting date.
Total reportable segment liabilities under RAR
Deferred tax liabilities valuation (see t above)

2011

2010

(35,150,174)

(21,578,208)

(161,194)

(198,955)

-

(1,023,146)

(293,822)

(219,469)

105,592

127,995

Adjustments to finance lease liabilities (see q above)

-

-

Offsetting (Note 2.27)

-

-

122,293

(23,775)

(35,377,305)

(22,915,558)

Recognition of raw sugar purchases in the respective period (see v above)
Cut-off adjustments (see i above)
Discount on low-cost borrowings (see r above)

Other adjustments
Total consolidated liabilities under IFRS
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Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Total reportable segment additions to non-current assets under RAR
Reversal of statutory accounting transaction of transfer of biological assets to fixed assets
Elimination of intercompany capital expenditure

Difference between the RAR carrying amount of the non-current assets of the acquired
companies and the purchase cost for the Group (w)
Increase in non-current biological assets in accordance with IFRS (Note 10)
Provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and equipment (see h above)
Other
Total additions in non-current assets under IFRS

2010

12,372,268

3,196,328

(225,521)

(194,683)

-

(7,572)

315,161

-

(259,759)

-

496,138

222,725

(324,188)

-

37,061

(83,297)

12,411,160

3,133,501

w. Difference between the RAR carrying amount of the non-current assets of the acquired companies and the
purchase cost for the Group. In these consolidated financial statements the transactions that do not constitute a
business combination in accordance with IFRS 3 were accounted for as purchases of separate assets and
liabilities or groups of assets and liabilities. The cost of such purchases was allocated to the individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. So in these consolidated
financial statements no goodwill was recognised as result of these transactions. In the statutory financial
statements these transactions were accounted for as described in d above.
Analysis of revenues by products and services
Each business segment except for “Other agricultural” segment is engaged in production and sales of similar or
related products (see above in this note). The “Other agricultural” segment in addition to its main activity of
growing and harvesting agricultural crops, is engaged in cultivation of dairy cattle livestock. Related revenue from
sales of milk and other livestock products was RR 254,669 (2010: RR 142,078).
For the amount of revenue from services, which comprise mainly processing of sugar beet for third party
agricultural enterprises, see Note 17.
Geographical areas of operations
All the Group’s assets are located in the Russian Federation. Distribution of the Group’s sales between countries
on the basis of the customers’ country of domicile, was as follows:

Russian Federation
Foreign countries
Total

Year ended
31 December 2011

Year ended
31 December 2010

36,779,091

29,415,076

2,936,025

1,540,454

39,715,116

30,955,530

Major customers
The Group has no customer or group of customers under common control who would account for more than
10% of the Group’s consolidated revenue.
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26. Segment information (continued)

Additional information
The Group adopted IFRS 8 “Operating segments” according to which operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group's CODM.
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To provide a further insight into the earnings of the Group, additional information on sales, cost of sales, gross
profit, distribution and selling, general and administrative expenses, other operating income, operating profit and
depreciation expense for each operating segment is presented below in accordance with recognition and
measurement policies, adopted by the Group for the preparation of its annual IFRS consolidated financial
statements. This information is not required by IFRS 8 and is provided on a voluntary basis for comparison with
similar businesses only.
2011
Sales (Note 17)

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

25,634,013

5,410,493

6,719,579

6,751,679

347,371

(5,148,020)

39,715,115

-

1,776,032

1,544,906

-

-

-

3,320,938

Gain on revaluation of
biological assets and agriculture
produce (Note 10)
Cost of sales (Note 18)

(22,501,030)

(5,260,286)

(5,447,263)

(5,256,300)

-

4,087,852

(34,377,027)

incl. Depreciation

(661,365)

(563,496)

(547,589)

(215,080)

-

(4,367)

(1,991,897)

Gains less losses from trading
sugar derivatives

(313,264)

-

-

-

-

-

(313,264)

Gross profit

2,819,719

1,926,239

2,817,222

1,495,379

347,371

(1,060,168)

8,345,762

(2,153,421)

(343,022)

(1,355,876)

(1,163,620)

(398,733)

528,198

(4,886,474)

(27,692)

(19,500)

(62,622)

(30,104)

(4,662)

4,367

(140,213)

-

-

-

-

(672,247)

-

(672,247)

72,724

(217,631)

16,361

(13,269)

2,094,695

(2,198,835)

(245,955)

-

102,570

45,847

-

-

-

148,417

739,022

1,365,586

1,477,707

318,490

1,371,086

(2,730,805)

2,541,086

Depreciation included in
Operating Profit

689,056

582,995

610,211

245,185

4,662

-

2,132,109

Other operating (income) /
expenses, net

(72,724)

217,631

(16,361)

13,269

(2,094,695)

2,198,835

245,955

Share-based remuneration

-

-

-

-

672,247

-

672,247

Reimbursement of fuel and
fertilisers and feed costs
(government grants)

-

102,570

45,847

-

-

-

148,417

Gain on revaluation of
biological assets and agriculture
produce

-

(1,776,032)

(1,544,906)

-

-

-

(3,320,938)

Gain on initial recognition of
agricultural produce
attributable to realised
agricultural produce

-

-

1,328,532

-

-

(476,333)

852,199

Revaluation of biological assets
attributable to realised
biological assets and included
in cost of sales

-

1,783,109

(21,687)

-

-

-

1,761,422

86,641

33,549

1,442

-

-

-

121,632

1,441,995

2,309,408

1,880,785

576,944

(46,700)

(1,008,303)

5,154,129

Distribution and Selling,
General and administrative
expenses (Notes 19 20)
incl. Depreciation
Share-based remuneration
Other operating income/
(expenses), net (Note 21)
incl. Reimbursement of fuel and
fertilisers and feed costs
(government grants)
Operating profit
Adjustments:

Provision/ (Reversal) for net
realizable value
Adjusted EBITDA*

* Non-IFRS measure
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26. Segment information (continued)
Additional information (continued)

Reconciliation of sales for reportable segments under RAR to sales under IFRS:
2011

Reclassification to other
operating income (a)
Reclassification from other
operating income (b)
Bonuses to customers (c)
Other adjustments
Sales for reportable segments
under IFRS

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

25,706,565

5,347,897

6,727,991

6,908,526

347,596

(5,148,020)

39,890,555

(42,747)

(173)

(8,410)

(244)

-

-

(51,574)

-

62,768

-

4,544

-

-

67,312

(29,804)

-

-

(161,146)

-

-

(190,950)

-

-

(1)

-

(226)

-

(227)

25,634,014

5,410,492

6,719,580

6,751,680

347,370

(5,148,020)

39,715,116

Reconciliation of depreciation for reportable segments under RAR to depreciation under IFRS:
2011

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

Depreciation for reportable
segments under RAR

(561,718)

(774,014)

(518,716)

(136,633)

(4,662)

-

(1,995,743)

Additional depreciation related
to differences in the carrying
amount and depreciation terms
(g)

(146,437)

8,031

(108,221)

(107,962)

-

-

(354,589)

Reversal of depreciation on
biological assets (m)

-

195,887

18,210

-

-

-

214,097

Depreciation of leased assets
(q)

-

(12,899)

(11,133)

-

-

-

(24,032)

19,098

-

9,649

(590)

-

-

28,157

(689,057)

(582,995)

(610,211)

(245,185)

(4,662)

-

(2,132,110)

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

20,321,494

4,572,251

4,279,287

4,635,181

279,657

(3,132,340)

30,955,530

-

1,834,626

738,229

-

-

-

2,572,855

Other adjustments
Depreciation for reportable
segments under IFRS
2010
Sales (Note 17)
Gain/ (loss) on revaluation of
biological assets and agriculture
produce (Note 10)
Cost of sales (Note 18)

(15,970,621)

(4,498,618)

(3,749,020)

(3,310,943)

-

2,845,731

(24,683,471)

incl. Depreciation

(530,605)

(572,503)

(491,042)

(127,849)

-

(26,036)

(1,748,035)

Gains less losses from trading
sugar derivatives

1,214,660

-

-

-

-

-

1,214,660

Gross profit

5,565,533

1,908,259

1,268,496

1,324,238

279,657

(286,609)

10,059,574

(1,638,959)

(256,670)

(832,618)

(828,879)

(462,426)

142,948

(3,876,604)

(19,047)

(17,952)

(45,015)

(28,107)

(2,843)

2,821

(110,143)

9,175

(95,445)

(117,100)

31,764

(14,710)

(18,500)

(204,816)

-

-

137,783

-

-

-

137,783

3,935,749

1,556,144

318,778

527,123

(197,479)

(162,161)

5,978,154

Distribution and Selling,
General and administrative
expenses (Notes 19 20)
incl. Depreciation
Other operating income/
(expenses), net (Note 21)
incl. Reimbursement of fuel and
fertilisers (government grants)
Operating profit
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Sales for reportable segments
under RAR

Sugar
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26. Segment information (continued)
Additional information (continued)

2010

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

549,652

590,455

536,057

155,956

2,843

23,215

1,858,178

(9,175)

95,445

117,100

(31,764)

14,710

18,500

204,816

Reimbursement of fuel and
fertilisers (government grants)

-

-

137,783

-

-

-

137,783

Gain on revaluation of
biological assets and agriculture
produce

-

(1,834,626)

(738,229)

-

-

-

(2,572,855)

Gain on initial recognition of
agricultural produce
attributable to realised
agricultural produce

-

-

766,994

-

-

-

766,994

Revaluation of biological assets
attributable to realised
biological assets and included
in cost of sales

-

1,530,050

-

-

-

-

1,530,050

Provision/ (Reversal) for net
realizable value

-

-

(23,592)

-

-

-

(23,592)

4,476,226

1,937,468

1,114,891

651,315

(179,926)

(120,446)

7,879,528

Adjustments:
Depreciation included in
Operating Profit
Other operating (income)/
expenses, net

Adjusted EBITDA*

* Non-IFRS measure

Reconciliation of sales for reportable segments under RAR to sales under IFRS:
2010

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

20,358,361

4,572,251

4,277,871

4,763,290

279,657

(3,132,341)

31,119,089

Reclassification to other
operating income (a)

(15,860)

-

(1,101)

-

-

-

(16,961)

Bonuses to customers (c)

(19,439)

-

-

(127,514)

-

-

(146,953)

(1,568)

-

2,518

(595)

-

-

355

20,321,494

4,572,251

4,279,288

4,635,181

279,657

(3,132,341)

30,955,530

Sales for reportable segments
under RAR

Other adjustments
Sales for reportable segments
under IFRS

Reconciliation of depreciation for reportable segments under RAR to depreciation under IFRS:
2010

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

Depreciation for reportable
segments under RAR

(389,374)

(663,436)

(482,711)

(107,860)

(2,843)

(23,215)

(1,669,439)

Additional depreciation related
to differences in the carrying
amount and depreciation terms
(g)

(138,932)

626

(46,290)

(39,252)

-

-

(223,848)

-

86,136

19,499

-

-

-

105,635

Reversal of depreciation on
biological assets (m)
Depreciation of leased assets (q)
Other adjustments
Depreciation for reportable
segments under IFRS

4,595

(13,781)

(29,279)

-

-

-

(38,465)

(25,941)

-

2,724

(8,844)

-

-

(32,061)

(549,652)

(590,455)

(536,057)

(155,956)

(2,843)

(23,215)

(1,858,178)
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27. Financial risk management

Operating risk management is carried out on the level of the finance function of the Group’s business segments
with overall monitoring and control by management of the Group. The management is implementing principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate
risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative financial instruments, and investing excess liquidity.
Credit risk
The credit risk represents the risk of losses for the Group owing to default of counterparties on obligations to
transfer to the Group cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.
Activities of the Group that give rise to credit risk include granting loans, making sales to customers on credit
terms, placing deposits with banks and performing other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial
assets.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking account of any collateral held is
as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Long-term financial assets
Loans issued (Note 11)

15,400

-

Bank deposits (Note 11)

403,021

99,390

Securities at fair value through profit and loss (Note 11)

37,904

42,799

Available-for-sale investments (Note 11)

26,703

7,677

Other long-term investments (Note 11)

4,654

3,084

Restricted cash

101,432

-

Total long-term financial assets

589,114

152,950

Financial assets within trade and other receivables (Note 5)

2,268,388

2,236,720

Promissory notes (Note 4)

1,057,595

600,182

13,193,732

4,980,800

Loans issued (Note 4)

107,610

426,355

Interest receivable (Note 4)

311,730

158,234

5,457,567

5,120,208

29,618

305,276

Total short-term financial assets

22,426,240

13,827,775

TOTAL

23,015,354

13,980,725

Short-term financial assets

Bank deposits (Note 4)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Restricted cash

The Group has no collateral held as security for its financial assets. The Group has geographical concentration of
credit risk in the domestic market since the majority of the Group’s customers conduct their business in Russian
Federation.
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Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including commodity price risk, foreign
exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its risk exposures except for raw sugar commodity price risk management as described
below.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Securities at fair value through profit and loss represent investments in securities of OJSC Gazprom (rating BBB,
Fitch Ratings).
For minimisation of credit risk related to cash in bank, bank deposits and restricted cash the Group places cash in
financial institutions which at the moment of transaction have the minimum risk of a default. Starting 2010 the
Group’s Treasury as additional measure of minimising credit risk places cash in the same banks from which the
Group obtains loans thus actually eliminating the risk of loss due to bank failure. The table below shows the rating
and balances with major banks at the reporting dates:
31 December 2011
Alfa Bank
Locko Bank

31 December 2010

Rating agency

Rating

Balance

Rating

Balance

Standard & Poor’s

BB

10,630,409

B+

4,202,240

Moody's

B2

403,979

В2

2,909,679

Fitch Ratings

ВВВ

5,730,407

ВВВ

2,058,481

Moody's

Вaa3

1,154,975

Вaa3

1,365,776

Credit Evropa Bank

Fitch Ratings

ВВ-

675,812

BB-

99,456

Rosselkhozbank

Fitch Ratings

BBB

851,963

-

Marfin Popular Bank

Fitch Ratings

BB+

12,609

-

Renaissance

Fitch Ratings

B

2,515

Sberbank RF
Gazprombank

Sobinbank
UniCredit Bank

RusRating

-

ВВ-

158

Fitch Ratings

-

ВВВ+

323

Other
Total cash at bank, bank deposits
and restricted cash (Note 3, 4, 11)

386

462

19,463,055

10,636,575

The table below shows the rating and balances of promissory notes with banks and other counterparties at the
reporting dates:
31 December 2011
Sberbank RF
Alfa Bank
Gazprombank
Other short-term promissory notes
Total short-term
promissory notes

31 December 2010

Rating agency

Rating

Balance

Rating

Balance

Fitch Ratings

BBB

600,000

BBB

600,000

Standard & Poor’s

BB

232,631

-

-

Moody’s

Baa3

207,764

-

-

-

-

17,200

-

182

1,057,595

600,182

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and not renegotiated as at the
reporting date
The table below shows the analysis of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired.
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Trade receivables

1,108,708

918,725

Promissory notes

1,057,595

600,182

284,363

150,862

Long-term loans issued

15,400

-

Short-term loans issued

9,938

119,496

Other long-term investments

4,654

3,084

Other receivables

1,138,648

1,293,411

Total

3,619,306

3,085,760

Interest receivable
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and not renegotiated as at the
reporting date (continued)
Neither past due nor impaired balances relate to the customers who have a long-standing relationship with the
Group and a sound trading history. Concentrations of trade receivables by type of customer are as follows:
31 December 2010

337,882

213,712

Distribution and retail outlets

736,165

672,962

34,661

32,051

1,108,708

918,725

Other not categorised
Total trade receivables

The majority of the customers do not have independent ratings. To minimize the risk of default on payment of
amounts due by counterparties for supplied goods or rendered services the Group regularly revises the maximum
amount of credit and grace periods for each significant customer.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired as at the reporting date
The table below shows the analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due but not impaired.
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Overdue loans issued
3 months and less

-

998

over a year

-

1,807

Overdue interest receivables
over a year
Total

-

10

-

2,815

Past due but not impaired loans issued relate to a number of independent counterparties for whom there is no
recent history of default.
Financial assets that are impaired as at the reporting date
The table below shows the analysis of impaired financial assets:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Nominal value

Impairment

Nominal value

Impairment

trade receivables

44,421

(30,707)

36,887

(21,542)

other receivables

23,377

(16,059)

25,739

(16,501)

67,798

(46,766)

62,626

(38,043)

Impaired receivables (Note 5):

Total

Financial assets are impaired when there is evidence that the Group will not receive the full amount due or receive
the full amount later than contracted. Factors to consider include whether the receivable is past due, the age of
the receivable and past experience with the counterparty.
Financial assets that would otherwise be impaired whose terms have been renegotiated
The carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is
as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Loans issued

97,672

304,054

Interest receivable

27,367

7,362

125,039

311,416

Total

111
ROS AGRO PLC

31 December 2011
Manufacturers (candy, juice and other)
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27. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group
Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. The Group Treasury
analyses the net debt position as disclosed in Note 13.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date:
At 31 December 2011

Carrying
value

Contractual undiscounted cash flows
Total

2012

2013

2014-2016

After 2016

31,871,718

31,980,472

17,028,758

2,521,735

9,376,081

3,053,898

100,372

5,964,163

1,916,292

1,414,193

2,198,779

434,899

1,022,607

1,022,607

1,022,607

-

-

-

32,994,697

38,967,242

19,967,657

3,935,928

11,574,860

3,488,797

Total

2011

2012

2013-2015

After 2015

19,399,401

19,527,396

11,142,602

263,770

7,135,778

985,246

57,746

3,827,244

1,289,662

910,139

1,553,997

73,446

14,664

14,664

9,362

5,302

-

-

-

4,083

3,276

807

-

-

1,574,851

1,574,851

1,574,851

-

-

-

21,046,662

24,948,238

14,019,753

1,180,018

8,689,775

1,058,692

Borrowings and loans
(Note 13)
principal amount
interest
Financial liabilities within
trade and other payables
(Note 14)
Total

At 31 December 2010
Borrowings and loans
(Note 13)
principal amount
interest
Finance leases (Note 13)
principal amount
interest
Financial liabilities within
trade and other payables
(Note 14)
Total

As at 31 December 2010 the Group had bank deposits in the amount of RR 980,800 maturing in 2011 pledged as
collateral for the third party’s obligations (Note 4).
The rate of CBRF used for calculating interest payments for government loans (see Note 13) is 8.00% (2010: 7.75%).
The exchange rates used for calculating payments for bank borrowings denominated in currencies other than
Russian Roubles:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

US Dollar

-

30.4769

Euro

-

40.3331

Market risk
Market risk, associated with financial instruments, is the risk of change of fair value of financial instruments or the
future cash flows expected on a financial instrument, owing to change in interest rates, exchange rates, prices for
the commodities or other market indicators. From the risks listed above the Group is essentially exposed to the
risks associated with changes in interest rates, exchange rates and commodity prices.
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Market risk (continued)

Interest rates under most of Group’s credit are fixed. However, the terms of the contracts stipulate the right of the
creditor for a unilateral change of the interest rate (both increase and decrease), which can be based, among other
triggers, on a decision of the CBRF to change the refinancing rate. Additionally, the Group has credit line with
Alfa-Bank with credit limit of RR 3,000,000 provided for interest rate based on the CBRF interest rate plus 3%. As
at 31 December 2011 and 2010 this credit facility was not utilised. Besides, under state budget loans (Note 13)
the Group pays interest at 1/4 of the current refinancing rate of the CBRF.
Bank deposits and loans issued bear fixed interest rate and therefore are not exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk.
The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a continuous basis. Various scenarios are considered taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. For each scenario, the same interest
rate shift is used for all currencies. The scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major interestbearing positions.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, had interest rate for borrowings with other than fixed rate been
increased/ decreased by 1%, the profit before taxation would have been RR 221,407 (2010: RR 133,585) lower/
higher.
Foreign exchange risk
The Group carries out essential import purchases of raw sugar from foreign suppliers. The payments are usually
made in US Dollars. Starting from 2010 the Group actively used irrevocable covered letters of credit as form of
payment to its raw sugar suppliers. The financing of the letter of credit was carried out through the credit line with
Sberbank in Russian roubles. Under this structure of payment the actual exchange rates for purchase price of raw
sugar were determined and fixed at the moment of borrowing funds from Sberbank.
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, foreign exchange risk arises on cash in banks, trade and other receivables,
borrowings and trade and other payables denominated in foreign currency (Notes 3, 4, 5, 13 and 14).
At 31 December 2011, if the Russian Rouble had weakened/strengthened by 10% (31 December 2010: 10%)
against the US dollar with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation would have been RR
102,465(2010: RR 65,517) higher/lower.
At 31 December 2011 if the Russian Rouble had weakened/strengthened by 10% (31 December 2010: 10%)
against the Euro with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation would have been RR
7,093 (2009: RR 564) lower/higher.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are exposed to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s policy is to maintain most of its borrowings in fixed rate instruments. The Group does not have formal
policies and procedures in place for management of fair value interest rate risk.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Purchase price risk
The Group purchases raw sugar and, starting from 2010, manages its exposure to this commodity price risk
through financial derivatives. In 2011, the Group’s total purchases of raw sugar were RR 11,885,582 (2010: RR
9,534,569). The Group trades raw sugar derivatives on ICE Futures US through an agent. Through derivatives,
management aims to offset its long position in sugar inventory in order to minimise effects of price fluctuations on
the results of the Group. The losses less gains on trading sugar derivatives of RR 313,264 (2010: gains less losses
on trading sugar derivatives of RR 1,214,660) are presented as a separate line within the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk arising on investments held by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position either as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 11). The Group does not manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities.
Sales price risk
Changes in white sugar prices from January till August are closely related to changes in world raw sugar prices that
is implicitly managed through the raw sugar derivatives (see above). The storage facilities of own sugar plants
permit to build up stocks of white sugar to defer sales to more favourable price periods.
The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in milk, meat and crops prices (Note 10).
Fair value estimation
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available market
information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily
required to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value. The Russian Federation continues to
display some characteristics of an emerging market and economic conditions continue to limit the volume of
activity in the financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated or reflect distress sale transactions and
therefore not represent fair values of financial instruments. Management has used all available market
information in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest rate instruments is based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current
interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. Discount rates used depend on
credit risk of the counterparty.
Liabilities carried at amortised cost
The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest rate instruments with stated maturity was estimated based on expected cash flows discounted at current
interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
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Financial instruments by measurement categories and fair values as at 31 December 2011
Other at
amortised
cost

Available for
sale

At fair value
through
profit or loss

Total
carrying
amount

Fair value

5,457,567

-

-

-

5,457,567

5,457,567

29,618

-

-

-

29,618

29,618

107,610

-

-

-

107,610

107,610

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash
Loans issued (Note 4)
Promissory notes

1,057,595

-

-

-

1,057,595

1,057,595

13,193,732

-

-

-

13,193,732

13,193,732

311,730

-

-

-

311,730

311,730

2,268,388

-

-

-

2,268,388

2,268,388

22,426,240

-

-

-

22,426,240

22,426,240

101,432

101,432

15,400

-

-

-

15,400

15,400

403,021

-

-

-

403,021

403,021

Securities at fair value
through profit and loss

-

-

-

37,904

37,904

37,904

Available-for-sale
investments

-

-

26,703

-

26,703

26,703

Other long-term
investments

-

-

4,654

-

4,654

4,654

Total long-term
financial assets

519,853

-

31,357

37,904

589,114

589,114

22,946,093

-

31,357

37,904

23,015,354

23,015,354

Short-term borrowings

-

17,129,130

-

-

17,129,130

17,129,130

Financial liabilities within
trade and other payables

-

1,022,607

-

-

1,022,607

1,022,607

Total short-term
financial liabilities

-

18,151,737

-

-

18,151,737

18,151,737

Long-term borrowings

-

14,842,960

-

-

14,842,960

14,842,960

Other non-current
liabilities

-

46,661

-

-

46,661

46,661

Total long-term
financial liabilities

-

14,889,621

-

-

14,889,621

14,889,621

TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

-

33,041,358

-

-

33,041,358

33,041,358

Bank deposits
Interest receivable
Financial assets within
trade and other
receivables
Total short-term
financial assets
Restricted cash
Loans issued (Note 11)
Bank deposits

TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS

101,432

Financial liabilities
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Financial instruments by measurement categories and fair values as at 31 December 2010
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Loans and
receivables

Other at
amortised
cost

Available for
sale

At fair value
through
profit or loss

Total
carrying
amount

Fair value

5,120,208

-

-

-

5,120,208

5,120,208

305,276

305,276
426,355

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash

305,276

Loans issued (Note 4)

426,355

-

-

-

426,355

Promissory notes

600,182

-

-

-

600,182

600,182

4,980,800

-

-

-

4,980,800

4,980,800

158,234

-

-

-

158,234

158,234

2,236,720

-

-

-

2,236,720

2,236,720

13,827,775

-

-

-

13,827,775

13,827,775

99,390

99,390

Bank deposits
Interest receivable
Financial assets within
trade and other
receivables
Total short-term
financial assets
Bank deposits

99,390

Securities at fair value
through profit and loss

-

-

-

42,799

42,799

42,799

Available-for-sale
investments

-

-

7,677

-

7,677

7,677

Other long-term
investments

3,084

-

-

-

3,084

3,084

Total long-term
financial assets

102,474

-

7,677

42,799

152,950

152,950

13,930,249

-

7,677

42,799

13,980,725

13,980,725

TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS
Financial liabilities

`-

11,209,711

-

-

11,209,711

11,209,711

Financial liabilities within
trade and other payables

Short-term borrowings

-

1,574,851

-

-

1,574,851

1,574,851

Total short-term
financial liabilities

-

12,784,562

-

-

12,784,562

12,784,562

Long-term borrowings

-

8,262,101

-

-

8,262,101

8,262,101

43,046

43,046

Other non-current
liabilities

43,046

Total long-term
financial liabilities

-

8,305,147

-

-

8,305,147

8,305,147

TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

-

21,089,709

-

-

21,089,709

21,089,709

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximize participants’ return while sustaining a
reasonable level of financial risks. The Group does not have a quantified target level of participants’ return or
capital ratios. To fulfil capital management objectives while providing for external financing of regular business
operations and investment projects, the Group’s management compares expected return of these operations and
projects with the costs of debt and maintains prudent financial risk management as described above.
The Group companies have complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout 2011 and
2010.
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Russian transfer pricing legislation enacted during the current period is effective prospectively to new transactions
from 1 January 2012. It introduces significant reporting and documentation requirements. The transfer pricing
legislation that is applicable to transactions on or prior to 31 December 2011, provides the possibility for tax
authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities in respect of all controllable
transactions, provided that the transaction price differs from the market price by more than 20%. Controllable
transactions include transactions with interdependent parties, as determined under the Russian Tax Code, all
cross-border transactions (irrespective of whether performed between related or unrelated parties), transactions
where the price applied by a taxpayer differs by more than 20% from the price applied in similar transactions by
the same taxpayer within a short period of time, and barter transactions. Significant difficulties exist in interpreting
and applying the transfer pricing legislation in practice. Any prior existing court decisions may provide guidance,
but are not legally binding for decisions by other or higher level courts in the future.
Tax liabilities arising from transactions between companies are determined using actual transaction prices. It is
possible with the evolution of the interpretation of the transfer pricing rules that such transfer prices could be
challenged. The impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the
financial position and/or the overall operations of the Group.
The Group includes certain companies incorporated outside of Russia. Tax liabilities of the Group are determined
on the assumption that these companies are not subject to Russian profits tax because they do not have a
permanent establishment in Russia. Russian tax laws do not provide detailed rules on taxation of foreign
companies. It is possible that with the evolution of the interpretation of these rules and the changes in the
approach of the Russian tax authorities, the non-taxable status of some or all of the foreign companies of the
Group in Russia may be challenged. The impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it
may be significant to the financial position and/or the overall operations of the Group.
In addition to the above matters, at 31 December 2010 management estimated that the Group has other possible
obligations from exposure to other than remote tax risks of RR 85 631. These exposures are estimates that result
from uncertainties in interpretation of applicable legislation and related documentation requirements. At 31
December 2011, management determined that there were no such obligations. Management will vigorously
defend the Group's positions and interpretations that were applied in determining taxes recognised in these
consolidated financial statements if these are challenged by the authorities.
Social obligations
Some production companies of the Group have collective agreements signed with the employees. Based on these
contracts the companies make social payments to the employees. The amounts payable are determined in each
case separately and depend primarily on performance of the company. These payments do not satisfy liability
recognition criteria listed in IAS 19, “Employee Benefits”. Therefore, no liability for social obligations was
recognised in these consolidated financial statements.
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Tax legislation
Russian tax and customs legislation which was enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
is subject to varying interpretations when being applied to the transactions and activities of the Group.
Consequently, tax positions taken by management and the formal documentation supporting the tax positions
may be successfully challenged by relevant authorities. Russian tax administration is gradually strengthening,
including the fact that there is a higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear business purpose or with
tax incompliant counterparties. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three
calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.
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28. Contingencies (continued)

Legal proceedings
From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group may be received. On the basis of
its own estimates, management is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims.
There are no current legal proceedings or other claims outstanding which could have a material effect on the
results of operations and financial position of the Group.
Operating environment of the Group
The uncertainties related to the operating environment of the Group are described in Note 1.

29. Commitments
Contractual capital expenditure commitments
As at 31 December 2011 the Group had outstanding contractual commitments in respect of purchases or
construction of property, plant and equipment in the amount of RR 4,965,043 (31 December 2010: RR 638,329).
As at 31 December 2011 the Group had outstanding contractual commitments in respect of purchases of
biological assets in the amount of RR 490,373 (31 December 2010: RR 27,822).
Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 260 land lease agreements (31 December 2010: 289). In 103 land lease
agreements (31 December 2010: 118) fixed rent payments are defined and denominated in Russian Roubles. For
these land lease agreements the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:
31 December 2011
Not later than 1 year

31 December 2010

47,516

69,049

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

108,242

116,996

Later than 5 years

490,638

556,545

Total

646,396

742,590

In addition, in 157 land lease agreements (31 December 2010: 171) the rent is established as a non-monetary
measure based on a certain share of agricultural produce harvested or a fixed volume of harvested crops. For 2011
related rent expenses were RR 149,308 (2010: RR 132,283).
Sales commitments
As at 31 December 2011 the Group had outstanding sales commitments in respect of sales of sugar to Federal
State Reserve Agency in 2012-2013 in the amount of RR 460,909 for each year (2010: no sales commitments).

30. Subsequent events
Since LLC Samaraagroprompererabotka did not meet performance conditions as at 31 December 2011, the
Group has obtained the right for repurchase of shares of OJSC Fats and Oil Integrated Works at the pre-agreed
price (Note 22). The Group utilised this right and repurchased the 10.5% ownership interest in OJSC Fats and Oil
Integrated Works for RR 178,989 in March 2012.
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